

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

April 19, 2024

Ms. Debbie-Anne A. Reese, Acting Secretary Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 888 First Street, NE Washington, D.C. 20426

Re: Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC Metadata Adjustments Docket No. PR24-53-000

Dear Acting Secretary Reese:

On February 28, 2024, Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC ("EOIT"), filed its annual fuel tracker filing pursuant to Section 284.123(e) of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission's ("FERC" or "Commission") regulations ("February 28 Filing") in Docket No. PR24-53-000. On Monday, April 8, EOIT was informed that the eTariff and eLibrary copies of the filing were inconsistent due to certain technical issues involving the February 28 Filing's metadata. EOIT hereby resubmits that filing to address those metadata issues.

Background

Specifically, the eLibrary version of the February 28 Filing has the tables found referred in Exhibit A-1 as separate files and kept all the footnotes found in the documents, specifically the footnote on the bottom of page 1 of Exhibit B, except in the FERC-generated .RTF tariff filing. Conversely, the eTariff files are missing Exhibit A-1 and retained Exhibit B but dropped the footnote on page 1 of Exhibit B. As a result, EOIT is making the instant filing to refile that exact same information but in such a way that, hopefully, will prevent these metadata errors.

While the data in the filing is unchanged, the company is making several technical changes to the electronic format of the filing. These changes will hopefully address the metadata malfunctions in the February 28 Filing. The attached statement of operating conditions ("SOC") supersedes and replaces the SOC, Version 0.0.33, filed by EOIT on February 28, 2024 in the above-referenced docket. In the event that this instant filing does not close Docket No. PR24-53-000, EOIT asks the Commission to reject as moot the tariff record filed in Docket No. PR24-53-000. In addition, EOIT is now reviewing other potential changes in future filings to avoid this matter in the future.

<u>Changes to the instant filing</u>: The tables found in Exhibit A-1 have been retyped and added to the underlying Word file as Word tables and not inserted from the related Excel file. Second, the footnote found in Exhibit B has been included as text. EOIT has also eliminated as many of the formatting options used in the Word file as possible. Examples of this include the table formatting used in the address and salutation sections of the cover letter and the communications and correspondence passage below. In addition, EOIT is also looking to minimize or eliminate footnotes wherever possible to simplify the related metadata issues.

Changes to future filings: EOIT will review the structure of its periodic filings and implement the above changes to those filings going forward. In addition, EOIT will determine if the tables in question (or tables like them) can be eliminated in future filings. The company will also explore other ways to reduce metadata malfunctions in future filings including but not necessarily limited to the use of section driven SOC's.

Other Filing Requirements

All communications and correspondence with respect to this filing should be addressed to the following individuals:

Joe White Director, Regulatory Affairs Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC 8020 Park Lane, Suite 200 Dallas, TX 75231 Tel: (469) 646-1060 joe.white@energytransfer.com

Jonathan D. Morris Chief Counsel Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC 499 W. Sheridan Ave., Suite 1500 Oklahoma City, OK 73102 Tel: (405) 530-7418 jonathan.morris@energytransfer.com

EOIT is concurrently sending to each Section 311 shipper for which EOIT has been provided an email address a message advising such shipper of this Fuel Tracker filing and providing a link to the location on the Energy Transfer website at which the public version of the complete filing may be accessed (https://pipelines.energytransfer.com/ipost/EOIT). See 18 C.F.R. § 385.2010(f)(3). Shippers and other interested persons may download a copy of the filing from the EOIT website, or shippers may request a hard copy of the filing from their EOIT Customer Representative.

> Respectfully submitted, Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC

/s/ Joe White Joe White Director, Regulatory Affairs

Attachments

Marked SOC

STATEMENT OF OPERATING CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

of

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

(filed in compliance with 18 C.F.R. Part 284)

March 8 February 28, 2023 2024

eTariff Information:

Tariff Subscriber: Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC

FERC Tariff Program Name: FERC NGPA Gas Tariff

Tariff Title: Transportation SOC database

Tariff Record Proposed Effective Date: April 1, 20232024

Tariff Record Title: Tariff, Enable Transportation Statement of Operating Conditions

Option Code: A

Other Information: Revised SOC

STATEMENT OF

OPERATING CONDITIONS OF

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC **IN COMPLIANCE WITH 18 C.F.R. PART 284**

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC (hereinafter "Enable" or

"Transporter"), an intrastate pipeline operating within the State of Oklahoma, will engage in the transportation of natural gas pursuant to Section 311(a)(2) of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 and pursuant to applicable regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission on the following terms and conditions:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	DEFINITIONS	2
2.	AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE	4
3.	APPLICABILITY AND CHARACTER OF SERVICE	5
4.	CURTAILMENT AND PRIORITY OF SERVICE	8
5.	VALID REQUESTS FOR SERVICE	9
6.	TERM	11
7.	RATES AND CHARGES	12
8.	NOMINATIONS, IMBALANCES AND SYSTEM OPERATIONS ORDERS	14
9.	OPERATING CONDITIONS	20
10.	DETERMINATION OF RECEIPTS AND DELIVERIES	21
11.	MISCELLANEOUS	22

FIRM AND INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

1. DEFINITIONS

In addition to the definitions of terms contained in the attached General Terms ("General Terms and Conditions"), and except where the context expressly states another meaning, the following terms, when used herein, shall have the following meanings:

- A. "Applicable Regulations" shall mean those regulations promulgated by FERC pursuant to Section 311(a)(2) of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 ("Section 311"), or other authority, including regulations at 18 C.F.R. Part 284, applicable to transportation under Section 311, as such regulations may be amended from time to time.
- **B.** "Central Clock Time" shall mean Central Standard Time or Central Daylight Savings Time, as applicable in Oklahoma.
- **C.** "Contract" or "Shipper's Contract" shall mean a service agreement for the transportation of Natural Gas between Transporter and Shipper, as such agreement may be amended from time to time.
- **D.** "Daily Imbalance" shall mean the daily volumetric variance between net receipts and allocated deliveries, adjusted for System Fuel.
- **E.** "Daily Index Penalty Percentage" shall mean the percentage obtained by referencing the Daily Imbalance percentage in the table included in Section 8.
- F. "East Daily Index Price" shall mean the arithmetic average of the applicable midpoint prices quoted for deliveries to Transporter in the Daily Price Surveys published by Gas Daily for the applicable Day of Gas flow and for (1) NGPL, Texok zone and (2) Enable Gas Transmission, East. Should one or both of such surveys no longer be published, Transporter will determine an acceptable substitute source or sources for such Daily Price Survey(s), as closely comparable as possible to that previously used. Transporter will post such new source(s) on Transporter's Internet Web Site.

- G. "East Zone" shall include all Transporter's facilities on or directly interconnected with (1) Transporter's Line 111 located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Sasakwa compressor station located in Section 1, 5N-6E in Seminole County, Oklahoma, (2) Transporter's Line 114 located East and/or downstream of Prague Junction in Section 36, T13N-R5E, Lincoln County, Oklahoma (3) Transporter's Lines 7 and 18, located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Noble interconnect with Williams Natural Gas located in Section 10, T21N-R2W, Noble County, Oklahoma, 4) Transporter's Line 1 located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Pink Compressor Station in Section 8, T9N-R2E, Pottawatomie County, Oklahoma and (5) Transporter's Line 22 located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Comanche Tie Compressor Station located in Section 23, T4N-R6W, Grady County, Oklahoma.
- **H.** "FERC" shall mean the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or any successor agency or governmental authority having jurisdiction under Section 311.
- I. "Point(s) of Delivery" shall mean the point(s) at which Transporter delivers Gas on Shipper's behalf.
- **J.** "Point(s) of Receipt" shall mean the point(s) at which Shipper delivers Gas to the Transporter for transport to a Point of Delivery.
- K. "Shipper" shall mean any person or entity who has requested Transporter to transport Natural Gas on behalf of an eligible person or entity and any person who has entered into a valid Contract with Transporter for the transportation of Natural Gas.
- L. "SOC" shall mean this Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services together with the attached General Terms and Conditions, which are fully incorporated by reference herein.

M. "Reasonable Discretion" shall mean Enable's discretion exercised in a reasonable and non-discriminatory manner.

- N. "System Fuel" shall mean mainline compression fuel plus lost and unaccounted for Gas on Transporter's System. Such System Fuel will be calculated pursuant to the Fuel Tracker set forth in Exhibit A hereto.
- **O.** "Transporter" shall mean Enable, an intrastate pipeline company operating within the State of Oklahoma which provides transportation service pursuant to the Applicable Regulations.
- P. "Transporter's System" shall mean the pipeline facilities, including appurtenant facilities, owned, leased, or operated by Transporter within the State of Oklahoma.
- **Q.** "West Daily Index Price" shall mean the arithmetic average of the applicable midpoint prices quoted for deliveries to Transporter in the Daily Price Surveys published by Gas Daily for the applicable Day of Gas flow and for (1) ANR, Okla. and (2) Panhandle, Tx. Okla. Should one or both of such surveys be no longer published, Transporter will determine an acceptable substitute source or sources for such Daily Price Survey(s), as closely comparable as possible to that previously used. Transporter will post such new source(s) on Transporter's Internet Web Site.
- **R.** "West Zone" shall include all portions of the Transporter's System that have not been designated as the East Zone.

2. AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE

- 2.1 Transportation service by Transporter is available for any Shipper to the extent that:
 - (1) Capacity is available on Transporter's System;
 - (2) Shipper (a) makes a valid request for service, including documentation to demonstrate its creditworthiness to the satisfaction of Transporter in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.G, and (b) executes a Contract with Transporter applicable to service; and

- (3) Said service complies with the terms and conditions of this Statement of Operating Conditions.
- 2.2 For the purpose of determining the availability of service in processing requests received pursuant to Section 5, Transporter shall not be required to grant any requests for transportation service:
 - (1) Which could, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, impair Transporter's Firm or Interruptible Service arrangements, jeopardize the integrity of Transporter's System, interfere with the efficient operation of its system or be detrimental to Transporter's compression, storage or other operations;
 - (2) Which would require the construction, modification, expansion, or acquisition of any facilities; provided, however, Transporter may agree, in its Reasonable Discretion, to construct, modify, expand, or acquire facilities to enable it to perform such service;
 - (3) If Transporter determines in accordance with Section 9 (Creditworthiness) of the General Terms and Conditions that Shipper is not creditworthy; or
 - (4) If Shipper's Contract has expired and no replacement or rollover agreement has been executed.
- 2.3 Nothing within this Section 2 is intended to control the interruption or curtailment of service once a request for service has been granted pursuant to Section 5 and while a Contract is in effect.

3. APPLICABILITY AND CHARACTER OF SERVICE

- 3.1 Section 311 transportation service provided under this Statement of Operating Conditions shall be performed under Subpart C of Part 284 of the Applicable Regulations ("Subpart C"). This Statement of Operating Conditions and any Contract covering the transportation of Natural Gas thereunder shall be subject to the provisions of Subpart C.
- 3.2 **Firm Transportation Service**. Transporter may contract for and provide firm transportation for either intrastate or Section 311 service. (A firm transportation contract between Transporter and Shipper will be referenced herein as a "Firm Contract" and a Shipper that has entered into a Firm Contract will be referenced as a "Firm Shipper".) Firm

transportation service ("Firm Service") shall mean transportation service that: is provided on a firm basis; is not subject to a prior claim by another customer or another class of service; and receives the same priority as firm service under any other Firm Contract in that it has the highest priority of transportation service offered by Transporter as set forth in Section 4. Transporter shall provide the Firm Service subject to the provisions of the Firm Contract between Transporter and Shipper, including the maximum daily quantity ("MDQ") specified therein, and the provisions of this SOC. Transporter may interrupt service hereunder whenever Shipper fails to comply with any provision of this SOC or of Shipper's currently effective Firm Contract(s). Transporter shall have the right to waive any one or more specific defaults by Shipper; provided, however, that no such waiver shall operate or be construed as a waiver of any other existing or future default or defaults, whether of a like or different character.

3.3 Interruptible Transportation Service. Transporter may contract for and provide interruptible transportation for either intrastate or Section 311 service. (An interruptible transportation contract between Transporter and Shipper will be referenced herein as an "Interruptible Contract" and a Shipper that has entered into an Interruptible Contract will be referenced as an "Interruptible Shipper"). Interruptible transportation service ("Interruptible Service") shall mean service that is subject to interruption at any time by Transporter, without liability as set forth herein, and shall have the priority as specified in Section 4. Transporter shall provide the Interruptible Service on an interruptible basis subject to the provisions of the Interruptible Contract between Transporter and Shipper, including the MDQ specified therein, and the provisions of this SOC. Interruptible Service shall be provided by Transporter on a ratable basis in accordance with Section 8 hereof. Transporter may interrupt service hereunder whenever Shipper fails to comply with any provision of this SOC or of Shipper's currently effective Interruptible Contract(s). Transporter shall have the right to waive any one or more specific defaults by Shipper; provided, however, that no such waiver shall operate or be construed as a waiver of any other existing or future default or defaults, whether of a like or different character. In addition, Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, may interrupt service if it deems such interruption necessary due to operating conditions or system requirements or to assure that Transporter can render service to its other customers according to the priorities of Section 4.

- 3.4 **Maximum Daily Quantity**. Upon delivery by Shipper of Gas to the Point(s) of Receipt specified under Shipper's Contract, Transporter shall receive such Gas and deliver on a firm or interruptible basis thermally equivalent quantities of such Gas for the account of Shipper to the Point(s) of Delivery up to the MDQ specified in Shipper's Contract, after deducting System Fuel from the volume received by Transporter. Transporter's obligation to receive and deliver the Gas tendered by Shipper is subject to the physical capacity and operating constraints of Transporter's System, including, but not limited to, the Gas quality specifications set forth in Section 2 of the General Terms and Conditions.
- 3.5 Shipper shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold Transporter harmless from and against any and all losses, damages, or expenses of every kind and character that Shipper or Transporter may suffer, sustain, or be liable for as a result of any interruption of service pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof; provided, however, that this provision shall not apply to losses, damages, or expenses attributable to gross negligence on the part of Transporter.
- 3.6 Transportation Service hereunder shall consist of the acceptance by Transporter of Natural Gas tendered or delivered by Shipper for transportation at the Point(s) of Receipt specified in the Contract, the transportation of that Natural Gas through Transporter's System, and the delivery of equivalent quantities of Natural Gas (less any reductions permitted under the Contract or this SOC) by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at the Point(s) of Delivery specified in the Contract. Transporter shall not be required to accept any Gas tendered or delivered by Shipper in excess of the maximum daily quantity specified in the Contract.

4. CURTAILMENT AND PRIORITY OF SERVICE

- 4.1 Service hereunder on all or any portion of Transporter's System may be allocated at the first of the Month or curtailed at any time during the Month due to capacity constraints on all or any portion of Transporter's System pursuant to the following provisions:
 - **A.** Firm Shippers shall receive first priority on a pro rata basis based on their nominations up to the MDQ set forth in their respective Firm Contracts.
 - **B.** Interruptible Shippers paying a higher unit rate per MMBtu shall receive a higher priority than Interruptible Shippers paying a lower unit rate. If, at the first of the Month, Transporter is required to allocate or, at any time during the Month, Transporter is required to curtail Interruptible Shippers because of changes in available capacity at any time, Transporter shall allocate or curtail as follows:

(1) Transporter shall, upon written or telephonic notice or notice given in person, refuse, curtail or interrupt service being provided under any Interruptible Contract to enable Transporter to provide or continue service to a Firm Shipper or another Shipper that is paying a higher unit rate per MMBtu. Transporter shall provide any Interruptible Shipper whose service is being subordinated by another Interruptible Shipper the right to bid for capacity through payment of a higher unit rate (if Section 311 service is involved, such rate may be bid up to the Maximum Interruptible Rate). If Shipper's bid for capacity results in a unit rate per MMBtu equal to or greater than the unit rate per MMBtu generated by service to the other interested Interruptible Shipper, then the Interruptible Shipper making such bid shall retain its priority, provided that priority between Shippers paying the same unit rate per MMBtu shall be determined as indicated below.

(2) If, after the specified bid process described above, volumes tendered for transportation by Interruptible Shippers under their respective Interruptible Contracts still exceed Transporter's ability to receive, transport and redeliver all nominated volumes, Interruptible Shippers paying the same unit rate per MMBtu shall be curtailed on a pro rata basis.

(3) Once capacity has been awarded, in accordance with this Statement of Operating Conditions, an Interruptible Shipper will not be interrupted during the Month due to a change in available capacity caused by a nomination of other Interruptible Shippers; provided however, that Interruptible Shippers are subject to being interrupted if a Firm Shipper submits a revised nomination pursuant to Section 8.1 of this Statement of Operating Conditions.

5. VALID REQUESTS FOR SERVICE

A request for service hereunder shall be valid as of the date received if it contains adequate information with respect to all items specified below, subject to any necessary verification of such information; provided, however, that a request shall not be valid if the service requested does not conform to the terms of this Statement of Operating Conditions or if the data provided are incomplete or not adequately substantiated. Transporter may waive any requirement below if it deems the information unnecessary in a specific case and may request additional information in a specific case if the data provided are, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, inadequate. Transporter shall promptly notify a Shipper whose request is rejected because of failure to submit or substantiate all data specified below or whose request fails to comply with any terms of this Statement of Operating Conditions.

Transporter shall promptly notify Shipper when its request for service is accepted and shall tender a Contract to Shipper for execution. Unless waived by Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, a request for service shall be invalid if Shipper fails to return an executed Contract within thirty (30) Days after such Contract has been tendered by Transporter to Shipper for execution. Requests for transportation service hereunder shall be deemed valid only after Shipper submits to Transporter at Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC, P.O. Box 24300, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73124-0300, a Transportation Service Request Form, which Transporter shall make available to any Shipper, via Transporter's Internet Web Site or Shipper may provide such information in letter or tabular form.

A. Gas Quantity. Shipper shall specify an MDQ, stated in MMBtus, to be received from Shipper and transported by Transporter.

- **B. Point(s) of Receipt.** Shipper shall identify the points at which it desires to nominate Gas to be received by Transporter into its facilities. However, Transporter shall retain operational control over receipts into its system, including, but not limited to, the right to require Shipper to comply with all provisions of Section 8. Should Shipper's failure to comply with any provision of Section 8 unreasonably interfere, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, with Transporter's control over its system, then Transporter may, at its option, cease transportation and terminate any relevant agreements, without limitation of Transporter's rights and remedies at law and equity. Shipper shall provide the names or other suitable identification of all entities that are providing Gas transportation service upstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt.
- **C. Point(s) of Delivery.** Shipper shall identify the point(s) at which it desires Transporter to deliver the Gas. Shipper shall also provide, if requested by Transporter, the names or other suitable identification of all entities transporting the Gas downstream of Transporter.
- **D. Term of Service.** Shipper shall state the date on which service is requested to commence. Transporter shall not be obligated to accept requests if the requested commencement date is more than three (3) Months after the date that the request for service was received by Transporter.
- **E. Shipper's Arrangements.** Shipper shall provide to Transporter sufficient detail as to Gas supply, intervening transportation or markets to permit Transporter to complete any regulatory or informational reports required under the Applicable Regulations.
- **F. Gas Analysis.** If Shipper is proposing or requesting the construction of new facilities connecting a new source of Gas supply to Transporter's System, Shipper shall submit a Gas analysis, including, but not limited to, test results and analyses for oxygen, carbon dioxide, nitrogen, water content (H₂O) and hydrogen sulfide, for Gas proposed to be received by Transporter. The analyses shall demonstrate that the Gas complies with the quality specifications for Gas to be received by

Transporter as set forth in Section 2 (Quality) of the General Terms and Conditions. If Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, determines that additional tests or analyses are required on the Gas, Shipper shall acquire those tests or analyses and submit the results thereof to Transporter. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Shipper shall permit Transporter to perform any tests and analyses that Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, deems necessary.

G. Creditworthiness. In accordance with the provisions of Section 8 (Creditworthiness) of the General Terms and Conditions:

1. Prior to commencing service hereunder, Shipper shall be required to establish creditworthiness with Transporter. Transporter shall not be required to process or review Shipper's request for service until it receives such credit information. After commencing service hereunder, Shipper shall be required to maintain creditworthiness with Transporter.

2. At any time upon request, Shipper shall provide Transporter with information sufficient to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter. Such information may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, bank references and trade references.

3. If Shipper fails to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, Transporter may require Shipper to provide Adequate Assurances; and

4. If Shipper fails to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, or if Shipper fails to provide Adequate Assurances if required, Transporter shall not be required to commence or continue service hereunder.

6. TERM

6.1 The term for Firm or Interruptible Service hereunder shall be as set forth in the Shipper's Contract from the effective date of Shipper's Contract. In addition to any termination rights in the Contract, Transporter may also terminate an Interruptible Contract if, among other things:

- A. Shipper fails to commence transportation service thereunder within three (3)
 Months of the effective date of the Contract;
- **B.** Shipper fails to tender Gas to Transporter for receipt, transportation and redelivery for any period greater than one hundred eighty (180) consecutive Days; or
- **C.** Shipper's Interconnect Agreement or Operational Balancing Agreement expires or is terminated.

7. RATES AND CHARGES

Shipper shall pay Transporter each Month hereunder the applicable charge for transportation services, together with such other charges as are identified herein and applicable to such transportation service.

- 7.1 The maximum rates for firm transportation service under Section 311 shall be the applicable maximum demand rate and the applicable maximum commodity rate approved by FERC ("Maximum Firm Rates"). *See* Exhibit B to this Statement of Operating Conditions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Transportation and Shipper may agree to a discount to the maximum demand rate and/or the maximum commodity rate for firm transportation service.
- 7.2 The maximum unit transportation charge for interruptible transportation service under Section 311 shall be the applicable maximum unit rate approved by the FERC for interruptible transportation by Transporter under Section 311 ("Maximum Interruptible Rate"). *See* Exhibit B to this SOC. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Transporter and Shipper may agree to a discount to the unit rate to be charged for interruptible transportation.
- 7.3 In Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, Transporter may provide transportation under the Applicable Regulations at a discount from Transporter's applicable Maximum Rates. Nothing herein shall obligate or require, or be construed to obligate or require, Transporter to offer such a discount. Transporter will offer any such discounts in a non-discriminatory manner.

- 7.4 Nothing in this Section shall be construed to modify any provision of Section 4.
- 7.5 Transporter shall invoice the Shipper each Month and the Shipper shall pay all charges applicable to each Contract.
- 7.6 Transporter's Maximum Rates for Section 311 service shall be determined pursuant to Section 284.123(b)(2) of the Applicable Regulations. Prior to approval by the FERC, Shipper shall pay, and Transporter shall be entitled to collect an agreed upon unit rate up to the applicable Maximum Rates for which approval from the FERC has been sought by Transporter, subject to Transporter's obligation to make refunds pursuant to FERC regulations, if necessary.
- 7.7 Transporter reserves the right to file for higher Maximum Rates during the term of the Contract.
- 7.8 Unless otherwise provided for by Shipper's Contract, Shipper shall reimburse Transporter, in kind, an amount equal to the FERC approved zonal fuel percentage(s) for System Fuel times the volumes received by Transporter.

As set forth more fully in Section 7 of the General Terms and Conditions hereto, within fifteen (15) days after the date of any invoice for payment, Shipper shall reimburse Transporter for all fees, including, but not limited to, FERC or other regulatory filing, reporting and application fees, transportation fees, construction costs or other applicable fees that:

- (1) Have been paid by Transporter; or
- (2) Were required to be paid by FERC or any other regulatory body; and
- (3) Were applicable to transportation service or other applicable service performed or being performed by Transporter for Shipper.
- 7.9 If Transporter agrees to (i) construct, acquire or modify any facilities, (ii) acquire the right to use facilities by lease, or (iii) contract with a third-party for the provision of upstream or downstream transportation service at the request of Shipper in order to perform transportation service hereunder, Shipper shall pay Transporter the cost of such facilities, lease payments or third-party service agreement payments, including all costs and charges

associated therewith. Transporter shall recover such costs, lease payments or third-party service agreement payments, and any costs or charges associated therewith, from the Shipper requesting Transporter to incur them by means of a separately stated facilities charge or charges to be included in Transporter's monthly invoice.

8. NOMINATIONS, IMBALANCES AND SYSTEM OPERATIONS ORDERS

8.1 Nominations. In accordance with the nomination deadlines set out below, Shipper shall provide to Transporter electronically, via Transporter's Internet Web Site unless otherwise specifically agreed to by Transporter, the nominations of volumes to be received by Transporter from Shipper at each Point(s) of Receipt and the aggregate of such nominations at all Point(s) of Receipt and the nominations of volumes to be delivered by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at each Point(s) of Delivery or pool(s) and the aggregate of all such nominations at all Point(s) of Delivery. Such nominations shall include all information deemed necessary, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, to adequately and correctly confirm, allocate and account for volumes so nominated, including, but not limited to, the number of Days for which the volume is nominated. If the number of Days for which the volume is nominated is not specified by Shipper, the nomination shall be presumed to be for one Day only. Transporter shall maintain a record of such nominations. Any Shipper who fails to provide Transporter with an electronic nomination on or before the nomination deadlines set out below shall be deemed to have nominated no volumes at any Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery; provided, however, that Transporter may, but shall not be obligated or required to, accept nominations from Shipper after the nomination deadlines set out below.

The deadline for nominations will be on or before 11:00 a.m. Central Clock Time on the 2nd working Day prior to the end of the Month preceding the Month in which nominations are to be effective. The nomination will consist of the Transportation Receipt Nomination which shall identify, by Zone, all volumes nominated to be received by Transporter for Shipper or for Shipper's Account and the Transportation Delivery Nomination which shall identify, by Zone, all volumes nominated to be delivered by Transporter for Shipper's Account and the Transportation Delivery Nomination which shall identify, by Zone, all volumes nominated to be delivered by Transporter for Shipper's Account.

All nominations received after the first of the Month must be received by Transporter by 1:00 p.m. Central Clock Time on the Day prior to requested flow. All such nominations shall include all information required by Transporter as set out hereinabove for first of the Month nominations.

Transporter may, but is not required or obligated to, accept:

- A) Any nomination which exceeds Shipper's maximum daily quantity specified in the Contract, or
- B) Any nomination not submitted via Transporter's Internet Web Site.

Transporter will confirm nominations with the operator(s) of the Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery ("Operator(s)") at downstream pipeline interconnects. Shipper understands and agrees to contact, or cause contact with, the Operator(s) to confirm Shipper's nominations of volumes to be received by Transporter from Shipper at each Point(s) of Receipt and the nominations of volumes to be delivered by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at each Point(s) of Delivery. Transporter will not be obligated to schedule a nomination if the Operator does not confirm such nomination electronically, via Transporter's Internet Web Site, unless Transporter and Operator agree otherwise. Operator confirmations must be made on or before 4:30 p.m. Central Clock Time on the 2nd working Day prior to the end of the Month. All nominations received after the first of the Month must be confirmed by the Operator by 4:30 p.m. Central Time on the business Day prior to requested flow.

Volumes of Gas received by Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt shall conform as closely as possible to the volumes nominated by Shipper at each Point(s) of Receipt and shall be delivered by Shipper to Transporter at hourly rates of flow that are as nearly as practicable uniform throughout the Day. Subject to Transporter's operating conditions and contractual requirements, volumes delivered by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at the Point(s) of Delivery shall conform as closely as possible to the volumes nominated by Shipper for delivery at Transporter's Point(s) of Delivery, less any deductions for System Fuel, and any provision for imbalance corrections, except that Transporter may conform such volumes to Shipper's volumes delivered at Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt less any deduction for System Fuel and any provision for imbalance corrections. Transporter may temporarily interrupt receipts and/or deliveries at any time and from time to time, in accordance with: 1) the provisions of Section 4, 2) due to Transporter's operating conditions, 3) system requirements or 4) system operations orders.

8.2 (a) Imbalances. Transporter shall maintain an imbalance account for each Shipper by Contract and by the applicable zone, which reflects, for any given Month, total volumes received, delivered and retained, previous and new imbalance positions, and any other information deemed necessary and appropriate by Transporter. Transporter may provide Shipper with notice of imbalances on Transporter's Internet Web Site, by electronic mail, by facsimile transmission, or in writing.

Actual receipts and deliveries must balance daily with nominated receipts and deliveries, respectively, and nominated receipts, less any deductions for System Fuel and any provision for imbalance corrections, shall equal nominated deliveries. Transporter shall inform Shipper when daily receipts and deliveries are not in balance and require Shipper to take such action as is necessary to balance on a daily basis.

Volumes to be received or delivered to resolve all or any portion of a then-existing imbalance will be specifically designated as balancing volumes. Shippers within the same Zone (East or West) may also correct imbalances by sales or purchases from each other's contracts within the same Zone. For example, a Shipper that is long in the West Zone may nominate and sell all or a portion of its long position to a Shipper that is short in the West Zone.

Transporter may apply volumes first received or delivered (as the case may be) if Transporter so elects, in its Reasonable Discretion, to offset Shipper's then-existing imbalance, but only upon notice to Shipper.

(b) **Penalties.** Transporter may advise Shipper of a specific action regarding daily imbalances to be taken if deemed necessary by Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion. In the event Transporter requires Shipper to take specific action, Transporter shall notify

Shipper thereof at a time and in a manner that is reasonable under the existing or expected conditions. Transporter may post notices of the required action on Transporter's Internet Web Site and shall make reasonable efforts to notify the employee(s) of Shipper responsible for the then most recent nomination(s). If Transporter provides the original notice telephonically, Transporter shall follow up in a reasonable time with written confirmation.

If Transporter requires a specific action to be taken and Shipper fails to take such action as requested in Transporter's notice, Transporter may assess and Shipper shall pay Transporter, an imbalance penalty calculated by multiplying the Shipper's Daily Imbalance times the East Daily Index Price or West Daily Index Price (as appropriate) times the Daily Index Penalty Percentage. The Daily Index Penalty Percentage is based upon a Shipper's Daily Imbalance penalty Imbalance penalty in the table below:

Daily Imbalance %	Daily Index Penalty %
0% to 5%	0%
>5% to 25%	25%
>25% to 50%	50%
>50% to 75%	100%
>75% to 100%	200%

In the event Transporter as a result of Shipper's over deliveries or under deliveries incurs costs and/or penalties, Shipper shall also be responsible for and shall reimburse Transporter for such costs and/or penalties in excess of the penalty levels described above.

If Shipper is advised or directed by any upstream or downstream pipeline or operator to reduce or suspend deliveries for transportation, Shipper shall immediately so notify Transporter by telephone (or in person) and shall confirm such reduction or suspension in writing with Transporter. Furthermore, if Transporter is advised by any upstream or downstream pipeline or operator of the reduction or suspension of deliveries for the account of Shipper, Transporter shall immediately so notify Shipper verbally and Shipper shall immediately confirm such reduction or suspension of deliveries in writing by way of a revised nomination to Transporter.

Shipper shall be responsible for and shall bear any penalties imposed or assessed by upstream or downstream pipelines or operators for imbalances in receipts and/or deliveries caused by Shipper action or inaction. Shipper shall indemnify and hold Transporter harmless and free from all such payments or charges for imbalances imposed or assessed against Transporter.

Shipper shall have ninety (90) Days to resolve any imbalance remaining at the termination of its Contract. If Shipper does not reduce the remaining imbalance to zero within ninety (90) Days of the termination of its Contract (unless due to the actions or inactions of Transporter), Transporter will:

- A. Charge Shipper and Shipper shall be obligated to pay for those quantities Shipper owes Transporter at a rate equal to 125% (one hundred and twenty five percent) of the final settlement price for the current prompt month NYMEX Henry Hub Natural Gas Contract which expired during the Month the ninetieth (90th) day occurred; or
- B. Be obligated to pay for those quantities Transporter owes Shipper at a rate equal to 75% (seventy five percent) of the final settlement price for the current prompt month NYMEX Henry Hub Natural Gas contract which expired during the Month the ninetieth (90th) day occurred.
- 8.3 (a) System Operations Orders. Transporter shall have the right to issue System Operations Orders when, in its Reasonable Discretion, such orders are necessary to maintain or restore the operational integrity of Transporter's System, alleviate conditions that threaten safe operations, or which are required to maintain efficient and reliable service. The operational integrity of Transporter's System shall encompass the integrity of the physical system and the preservation of physical assets and their performance, the overall operating performance of the entire physical system as an entity (or any portion thereof), and the maintenance (on a reliable and operationally sound basis) of total system

deliverability and the quality of Gas delivered. To accomplish these objectives, Transporter shall be entitled to take actions as described in this Section.

A System Operations Order shall require actions or measures that Transporter determines will neutralize or reduce threats to, or otherwise preserve, the integrity of all or a portion of Transporter's System and that may require immediate response as determined by Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion. System Operations Orders may require a Shipper or Shippers to take any of the following actions, or similar actions, to the extent such action(s) would tend to alleviate the situation to be addressed:

- Correct Daily Imbalances on a deficient segment of Transporter's System.
 A Shipper may, at its option, achieve the required balance by ceasing or reducing deliveries from deficient segments of Transporter's System or, alternatively, commencing or increasing supply inputs into deficient segments of Transporter's System; provided, however, that Transporter itself always retains the right to curtail deliveries, if necessary for system operations;
- (ii) Correct imbalances on an oversupplied segment of Transporter's system. A Shipper may, at its option, achieve the required balance by ceasing or reducing supply inputs into oversupplied segments of Transporter's System or, alternatively, commencing or increasing deliveries from oversupplied segments of Transporter's System; provided, however, that Transporter itself always retains the right to decline to receive supply, if necessary for system operations;
- (iii) Limit pool transfers or other aspects of pooling;
- (iv) Implement curtailments;
- (v) Such other actions as are within Shipper's control which would tend to alleviate or forestall the situation to be addressed.

(b) Penalties for Failure to Comply. A Shipper may be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with a System Operations Order calculated by multiplying the Shipper's Daily Imbalance times the East Daily Index Price or West Daily Index Price (as appropriate) times the Daily Index Penalty Percentage. The Daily Index Penalty Percentage is based upon a Shipper's Daily Imbalance percentage as indicated in the table in Section 8.2 above.

In the event that, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, actions undertaken pursuant to this Section are insufficient to remedy the situation or there is insufficient time to institute such actions, Transporter shall take such actions as are reasonably necessary to maintain System Operations, deliverability, reliable services and pressurization to all or any segment(s) of its system. Transporter is authorized to use all of the resources of its system to such ends, including line pack and all supply received into Transporter's System.

Transporter shall provide Shipper with notice of System Operations Order(s) at a time and in a manner that is reasonable under the existing or expected conditions. Transporter shall post notices of System Operations Order(s) on Transporter's Internet Web Site and shall make reasonable efforts to notify the employee(s) of Shipper responsible for the then most recent nomination(s). If Transporter provides the original notice telephonically, Transporter shall follow up in a reasonable time with written confirmation.

9. OPERATING CONDITIONS

- 9.1 Shipper shall make all necessary arrangements with other parties at or upstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt where Shipper tenders Gas to Transporter for transportation, and at or downstream of any Point(s) of Delivery at which Transporter redelivers Gas to or for the account of Shipper. Such arrangements shall otherwise meet the terms and conditions herein.
- 9.2 Shipper shall represent and warrant to Transporter in writing that all volumes of Gas delivered to Transporter may be transported under the Applicable Regulations. Furthermore, at Transporter's Reasonable Discretion and upon request, Shipper shall secure written "on-behalf-of" authorization, in a form satisfactory to Transporter, from an interstate pipeline or a local distribution company served by an interstate pipeline evidencing that the transportation to be performed hereunder is on such party's behalf

under Section 311. Transporter shall not be obligated to perform service hereunder unless and until Shipper has provided such written representation, warranty, and authorization, if requested.

- 9.3 Transporter shall not be required to perform any service hereunder unless all facilities necessary to render the service exist and are in good operating condition.
- 9.4 Shipper shall deliver Gas or cause Gas to be delivered to Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt at pressure(s) sufficient to allow the Gas to enter Transporter's System as such pressure will vary from time to time. Transporter shall not be required to compress into its pipeline Gas transported hereunder, lower its system operating pressure, alter the direction of Gas flow, the Gas load, or other operations or utilization of its facilities or otherwise change its pipeline operations in order to receive, transport, or deliver Gas hereunder. Unless waived by Transporter, at each Point(s) of Receipt, Shipper shall provide, or cause to be provided, equipment acceptable to Transporter which will prevent over pressuring Transporter's System.
- 9.5 Transporter shall deliver Gas at each Point of Delivery to, or for the account of, Shipper at the prevailing pressures on Transporter's system at each Point of Delivery, which pressures will vary from time to time.

10. DETERMINATION OF RECEIPTS AND DELIVERIES

10.1 If one Shipper or more than one Shipper delivers volumes to Transporter at the same point during the same Month under more than one Contract, Transporter shall use such Shipper's or Shippers' working interest, volumetric nominations, and/or any other information available to Transporter to allocate volumes received during that Month at such point. Shipper(s), and not Transporter, shall be responsible for and shall bear any liability for claims made, penalties imposed, or judgments obtained by or against Transporter, Shipper, upstream transporters, operators and/or interest owners for imbalances among interests in wells or for imbalances between Shippers at or upstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt.

If Transporter delivers volumes of Gas to one Shipper or more than one Shipper, or for such Shipper's or Shippers' accounts, at the same point during the same Month under more than one Contract, Transporter shall use such Shipper's or Shippers' volumetric nominations and/or any other information available to Transporter to allocate volumes delivered during that Month at such point. Shipper(s), and not Transporter, shall be responsible for and shall bear any liability for claims made, penalties imposed, or judgments obtained by or against Transporter, Shipper, downstream transporters, operators and/or interest owners for imbalances between Shippers at or downstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Delivery.

11. MISCELLANEOUS

- 11.1 To the extent Shipper builds facilities which connect with Transporter's System, such interconnecting facilities shall be constructed only with Transporter's approval and under the supervision of Transporter's personnel.
- 11.2 To the extent Transporter builds, acquires, or modifies any facilities in order to transport Shipper's Gas, any such facilities shall be and remain at all times the property of and under the operation of Transporter.
- 11.3 Transporter may waive any rights hereunder or any obligation of Shipper on a nondiscriminatory basis, provided, however, that no waiver shall operate or be construed as a waiver of other or future rights or obligations, whether of a like or different character.
- 11.4 The provisions of the General Terms and Conditions, as such provisions may be amended from time to time, are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof and as though stated herein, shall apply to service rendered hereunder.
- 11.5 Transporter reserves the right to add to, delete or modify any or all provisions of this Statement of Operating Conditions at any time. Any additions, deletions, modifications or other changes made by Transporter to this SOC, including the General Terms and Conditions, shall be filed with the FERC as required by and subject to the Applicable Regulations. Any such additions, deletions, modifications or other changes shall be effective no earlier than thirty (30) Days after filing the changes with the FERC.

- 11.6 Transporter is first and foremost an intrastate pipeline. Therefore, any Section 311 (a) (2) service which Transporter provides will be consistent with and shall not infringe upon its status as a non-jurisdictional intrastate pipeline and shall not subject Transporter to FERC's Natural Gas Act jurisdiction.
- 11.7 This Statement of Operating Conditions and the Transportation Service Request Form may be accessed electronically at Transporter's Internet Web Site.

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC **EXHIBIT A**

TO

Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services

Fuel Trackers

For The Enable System in Oklahoma

East Zone and West Zone

Effective August 1, 2010

Fixed Fuel Percentages

Enable charges fixed zonal fuel percentages for Gas shipped on the East Zone and West Zone of the Enable System (hereinafter referred to as "the System"). The fuel percentages for each Zone are adjusted annually and are in effect from April 1 through March 31 (the "Fuel Year"). Enable files the fuel percentages and supporting workpapers with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC" or "Commission") on or before February 28 of the year preceding the Fuel Year (or the next business day if February 28 is a weekend day or holiday) and implements the percentages on April 1 of the Fuel Year. The FERC notices the filing and establishes a deadline for comments or objections from shippers. Enable advises its shippers of the calculated percentages in sufficient time for such shippers to take the new fuel factors into account for their April nominations.

Annual Calculation of the Fuel Percentages

The fuel factors implemented as of April 1 of each Fuel Year reflect for each Zone, (1) the estimated fuel usage for the period April 1 to March 31 of the Fuel Year and (2) true-up adjustments for the prior two Fuel Years. Exhibit A-1, East Zone and Exhibit A-1, West Zone showing the methodology for calculation of the zonal fuel percentages are attached to this Exhibit A.

Enable calculates the fuel percentages for the Fuel Year based on actual experience in each Zone in the twelve Months, February to January, preceding the February 28 filing date. The annual calculations for each Fuel Year will also reflect expected changes for each Zone, if any, in fuel use

and deliveries, including changes attributable to changes in compressor capacity for such year, i.e., additions, retirements, upgrades or reconfigurations. See Exhibits A-1, line 40. To the extent that the estimates of usage and/or deliveries attributable to changes for each Zone prove to have been inaccurate, the following year's zonal true ups will correct for the overestimation or underestimation.

Dollar Valuation of the Fuel Volumes

The value of fuel retained, actual fuel used and the resulting over recovery or under recovery for each Zone will be determined by multiplying the difference between the monthly retained volumes and the monthly actual fuel for each Zone by the corresponding monthly average of "PRICES OF SPOT GAS DELIVERED TO PIPELINES," as published for the first Day of each Month in Platt's Inside FERC Gas Market Report for (1) NGPL, Texok and (2) CenterPoint, East index for the East Zone and for (1) ANR, Okla. and (2) Panhandle, Tx.-Okla. index for the West Zone.

True-Up of the Fuel Percentages

Enable has a very large number of receipt points and, accordingly, must plan for and accommodate a very large number of prior period adjustments. While the great majority of such prior period adjustments are made in the first six months after the Gas flows, experience has shown that these receipt points can generate additional prior period adjustments for up to two Fuel Years. For that reason, Enable reflects two Fuel Years of true-up adjustments in the calculation of the fuel percentages. See Exhibits A-1, lines 42 and 43 and lines 47 and 48. For purposes of the fuel tracker, Enable will ignore prior period adjustments after two years.

The true-up calculations also incorporate the dollar valuation of the fuel volumes.

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

EXHIBIT B

TO

Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services

RATE SUMMARY FOR SECTION 311 FIRM AND INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

In accordance with Section 284.123(b)(2) of the FERC's regulations, as revised by Order No. 714, Transporter hereby provides the following rate summary:

Firm Section 311 East Zone (Demand)	Firm Section 311 West Zone (Demand)	Interruptible Section 311 East Zone (Commodity)	Interruptible Section 311 West Zone (Commodity)
\$0.2155	\$0.1173	\$0.2320	\$0.1300

Maximum Rates Per MMBtu

Minimum Rates Per MMBtu

Firm Section 311 East Zone (Demand)	Firm Section 311 West Zone (Demand)	Interruptible Section 311 East Zone (Commodity)	Interruptible Section 311 West Zone (Commodity)
\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00

Fuel Percentages for April 1, 20222023 through March 31, 2023 131, 2024

<u>+</u>_ The tariff record reflecting the fuel percentages for the April 1, 2022 through March 31, 2023 Fuel Year was approved under the Commission's optional notice procedure in Docket No. PR22-26-000 effective April 1, 2022.

East Zone	West Zone
<u>1.060.90</u> %	0.51<u>0.59</u>%

Fuel Percentages for April 1, 2023 2024 through March 31, 2024 2025

East Zone	West Zone
<u>0.901.67</u> %	0.59 <u>0.82</u> %

<u>The tariff record reflecting the fuel percentages for the April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024 Fuel Year was</u> approved under the Commission's optional notice procedure in Docket No. PR23-36-000 effective April 1, 2023.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR STATEMENT OF **OPERATING CONDITIONS**

of

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

i (GT&C)

TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR STATEMENT OF OPERATING CONDITIONS OF ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

1.	DEFINITIONS	. 1
2.	QUALITY	. 3
3.	MEASUREMENT AND TESTS	. 5
4.	WARRANTY AND INDEMNIFICATION	. 9
5.	FORCE MAJEURE	. 9
6.	GOVERNMENTAL RULES, REGULATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS	11
7.	BILLINGS AND PAYMENT	11
8.	CREDITWORTHINESS	14
9.	CHOICE OF LAW	16
10.	EEOC COMPLIANCE	16
11.	MISCELLANEOUS	17
12.	DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS	17

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DEFINITIONS

In addition to the definitions of terms contained in Transporter's Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services ("SOC"), which are incorporated by reference, and except in those certain instances where the context expressly states another meaning, the following terms, when used in these General Terms and Conditions or in the Statement of Operating Conditions, Contract or other agreement into which these General Terms and Conditions are incorporated, shall have the following meanings:

- A. "Btu" shall mean British Thermal Unit and, where appropriate, shall mean the plural thereof. One (1) Btu shall mean one British Thermal Unit and is defined as the quantity of heat required to raise the temperature of one (1) pound of pure water from fifty-eight & five-tenths (58.5) degrees Fahrenheit to fifty-nine and five-tenths (59.5) degrees Fahrenheit at a constant pressure of fourteen & seventy-three hundredths' pounds per square inch absolute (14.73 psia). The term "MMBtu" shall mean one million (1,000,000) Btu.
- B. "Cubic Foot or Standard Cubic Foot" shall have the meaning ascribed in Section 4.1. The term "Mcf" shall mean one thousand (1,000) standard Cubic Feet of Gas.
- C. "Day" shall mean a period of twenty-four (24) consecutive hours beginning at 9:00 a.m. Central Clock Time.
- "Delivery", "deliver", or "delivered" shall refer to the physical transfer of D. possession of Gas from Transporter to Shipper or Shipper's carrier.
- "Equivalent Quantities" shall mean the sum of the volumes of Gas measured in E. MMBtu received by Transporter for the account of Shipper during any given period of time, reduced by Shipper's share of fuel and adjusted for any variations in Btu content. It is the intent of the parties that the volumes of Gas delivered for the account of Shipper be the thermal equivalent of the volumes of Gas received by Transporter for transportation, as so adjusted.

- F. "Gas" and "Natural Gas" shall mean natural gas as produced in its natural state, whether or not stored or processed prior to receipt or delivery, and that meets the respective quality standards for receipt and delivery contained in Section 2 (Quality).
- G. "Heating Value" shall mean, the number of Btu's produced by the complete combustion, at a constant pressure, of the amount of Gas which would occupy a volume of one (1) Cubic Foot at a temperature of sixty (60) degrees Fahrenheit if saturated with water vapor and at a constant pressure of fourteen and seventy-three hundredths pounds per square inch absolute (14.73 psia) and under standard gravitational force (acceleration 980.655 centimeters per second, per second), with air of the same temperature and pressure as the Gas, when the products of combustion are cooled to the initial temperature of the Gas and air and when the water formed by combustion is condensed to the liquid state; provided, however, if the Gas as received or delivered contains seven (7) pounds of water vapor or less per one million (1,000,000) standard Cubic Feet, such Gas shall be assumed to be dry.
- H. "Month" shall mean a period of time beginning at 9:00 a.m. Central Clock Time on the first (1st) Day of a calendar Month and extending to 9:00 a.m. Central Clock Time on the first (1st) Day of the following calendar Month.
- I. "Normal Operating Range of an Orifice Meter Station" shall mean the flow range from the minimum flowrate of a single meter tube to the maximum combined flowrate of all meter tubes installed in the meter station which does not require an orifice plate change.
- J. "p.s.i.g." shall mean pounds per square inch gauge. "p.s.i.a." shall mean pounds per square inch absolute.
- K. "Receipt", "Receive", or "Received" shall refer to the physical transfer of possession of Gas from Shipper or Shipper's carrier to Transporter.

- L. "Secondary Measurement Equipment" shall mean pressure and temperature sensing and recording equipment.
- M. "Thermal Content" shall mean the aggregate number of Btu contained in that volume, when applied to any volume of Gas.
- O. "Transporter's Internet Web Site" shall mean Transporter's electronically accessible site.

QUALITY

- 1.2 Gas tendered to Transporter for transportation must meet the quality specification in this Section 2.1 or such more stringent standards as may be required at any Point(s) of Delivery. Gas received by Transporter and delivered to Shipper under a Contract, including the Statement of Operating Conditions, shall meet the minimum quality specifications below:
 - The Gas shall in no event have in excess of seven (7) pounds of water vapor per million (1,000,000) standard Cubic Feet of Gas.
 - B. The Gas shall be free of objectionable liquids and solids and other impurities, including, but not limited to, methanol, and shall be commercially free from dust, gum, gum-forming constituents, free water and other liquids and solids.
 - C. The Gas shall not at any time have an oxygen content in excess of ten (10) parts per million by volume and the parties hereto shall make every reasonable effort to keep the Gas free of oxygen.
 - D. The Gas shall not contain more than one quarter (0.25) grain of hydrogen sulfide per one hundred (100) standard Cubic Feet (four (4) parts per million by volume).
 - E. The Gas shall not contain more than 5 grains of total sulfur (including the sulfur in any hydrogen sulfide and mercaptans) per one hundred (100) standard Cubic Feet.
 - F. The Gas shall not contain mercaptans in excess of one-quarter (.25) grain per one hundred standard Cubic Feet.

- G. The Gas shall not have a carbon dioxide content in excess of two (2) percent by volume.
- H. The Gas shall not contain more than three (3) percent nitrogen by volume.
- I. The Gas shall have a total heating value per Cubic Foot of not less than nine hundred seventy-five (975) Btu or more than one thousand eighty (1,080) Btu.
- J. The Gas shall not have a hydrocarbon dew point of more than forty (40) degreesFahrenheit (the hydrocarbon dew point shall be calculated at 600 psig).
- K. The Gas shall be received at a temperature not in excess of one hundred twenty (120) degrees Fahrenheit and not less than forty (40) degrees Fahrenheit.
- L. The Gas must be interchangeable with the Gas in Transporter's system at the Point(s) of Receipt.
- 1.3 If, at any time, Gas tendered for receipt shall fail to conform to any of the quality specifications set forth above, Transporter may, at its Reasonable Discretion, refuse to accept receipt of such Gas. Transporter shall notify Shipper of the deficiency as soon as possible after its occurrence. Such notice may be by any reasonable means, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, facsimile transmission and/or telephone, including voice messages. Transporter may elect to bill Shipper for all further costs for related Gas testing to confirm that any such deficiency has been corrected.
- 1.4 Transporter has the right to charge Shipper for all costs and expenses, including but not limited to, costs related to clean up and/or remediation, associated with the receipt of Gas that does not conform with the quality specifications for Gas to be received by Transporter as set forth in this Section.
- 1.5 Transporter's acceptance of non-conforming Gas without invoking its rights set forth in Sections 2.2 or 2.3 shall not constitute any continuing waiver of Transporter's rights to require compliance or application of Transporter's rights as set forth herein.

MEASUREMENT AND TESTS

The measurement of Gas at the Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery shall be in accordance with the following provisions:

- 1.6 For all of the purposes of the SOC, a standard Cubic Foot of Gas shall be that quantity which occupies one Cubic Foot of space at a temperature of sixty (60) degrees Fahrenheit and at a pressure of fourteen and seventy-three hundredths (14.73) pounds per square inch absolute. The volumes of Gas received and delivered hereunder shall be measured and computed in accordance with methods prescribed by the American Gas Association. Installation of new measurement facilities, whether by Transporter or Shipper, shall be in accordance with the latest and approved version of the applicable American Gas Association's standards.
- 1.7 The total heating value of the Gas in Btu per Cubic Foot and the specific gravity received and delivered hereunder shall be determined from a sample of Gas taken by means of a composite sampler, a spot sample, a Gas chromatograph, or any other method in general use in the Gas industry. The recorded average specific gravity to the nearest one thousandth (0.001), obtained while Gas is being received and/or delivered, shall be the applicable specific gravity of Gas for the period under consideration.
- 1.8 Transporter shall make reasonable efforts to collect spot samples from a flowing Gas stream during normal business hours. In the event that Transporter's attempts to coordinate spot sampling are unsuccessful, Transporter shall use the most recently available Gas sample information.
- 1.9 Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, may elect to discontinue Gas sampling at Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery that have been continuously inactive for sixty (60) consecutive Days.
- 1.10 If, at any time during the term hereof, a new method or technique is developed with respect to Gas measurement or determination of factors used in such Gas measurement, such new method or technique may, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, be substituted for the Gas measurement method or technique set forth herein.

- 1.11 Transporter may, at its Reasonable Discretion, install computers, transducers and other associated sensing devices to accomplish the accurate measurement of Gas received and/or delivered.
- 1.12 It is recognized that all facilities necessary to measure Gas at Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery have been or will be installed and in operation as of the date of first delivery of Gas to Transporter hereunder. Unless otherwise agreed, Transporter shall install, maintain and operate all facilities and equipment for the accurate measurement of the Gas received, transported and delivered hereunder. Shipper shall have access to the measuring equipment at all reasonable times, but readings, calibrations and adjustments thereof, and changing of charts, shall be done by Transporter unless otherwise agreed.
- 1.13 Upon written permission from Transporter, Shipper may, at its option, install, maintain and operate such new, additional or revised equipment, including check measuring and signal sharing equipment, as it may desire, at its own expense, and provided that such equipment is installed so as not to interfere with the custody measurement equipment of Transporter. Equipment installed by Shipper and not authorized in writing by Transporter may be removed by Transporter, at Shipper's expense. Each party shall have the right of access, at all reasonable times when Gas is being received or delivered, to the measuring equipment installed by the other party. The calibrating and adjusting of Transporter's measuring equipment and changing of meter charts on Transporter's meters shall be done only by Transporter and the calibrating and adjusting of Shipper's measuring equipment and changing of meter charts on its check meters shall be performed only by Shipper. Transporter, upon written request by Shipper, or Shipper, upon request by Transporter, shall mail or deliver to the other all meter charts and/or records used in measurement of Gas received and delivered hereunder during any specified period for which charts and/or records are required to be retained as hereinafter provided, but such charts and/or records shall be mailed or returned to Transporter or Shipper, as the case may be, within thirty (30) Days after their receipt. Transporter's Check Measurement Agreement form shall be available upon request.

- 1.14 Each party shall have the right to be present at the time of any scheduled installation, testing, cleaning, changing, repairing, inspection, calibration or adjusting of measuring equipment of the other party used in measurement of Gas received and delivered hereunder.
- 1.15 All measuring equipment shall be installed in such a manner as to permit an accurate determination of the quantity of Gas received or delivered and ready verification of the accuracy of measurement. The parties shall exercise reasonable care in the installation, maintenance and operation of check measuring, pressure regulating equipment, Gas compressors or other related equipment so as to prevent inaccuracy in the determination of the quantity of Gas being measured. Shipper shall control flow rates such that measurement of the Gas quantity is within the Normal Operating Range of the Orifice Meter Station. Transporter shall size the orifice plate such that the flow-dependent average monthly flow rate falls within the Normal Operating Range of the Orifice Meter Station. In its Reasonable Discretion, Transporter may elect to not provide volumetric adjustments pursuant to Section 3.13 for flow exceeding the differential pressure instrument's range or for flows resulting in damage to orifice plates. When Transporter determines that pulsation problems or other measurement inaccuracies exist, in addition to any remedies otherwise available to it, Transporter shall have the right to require Shipper or other third parties to install and continuously operate and maintain pulsation dampening equipment and/or to regulate Gas flows in a manner which would prevent or eliminate such problems or inaccuracies within thirty (30) business Days of notification by Transporter. Following notice to the affected parties and pending the correction of the problem, measurement based on charts or meters at any such affected points for system operating purposes shall be made in a manner which reasonably adjusts or compensates for the inaccuracy identified.
- 1.16 The accuracy of the measuring equipment at each Point(s) of Receipt and each Point(s) of Delivery shall be verified at intervals not exceeding one (1) year and at such other times as may be requested by Shipper or Transporter, and if any such verification shall be requested by Shipper or Transporter and the measuring equipment is found to measure Gas quantities within two percent (2%) accuracy, the expense of such verification shall be borne by the party requesting verification.

- 1.17 Transporter may elect to discontinue regular verification of measurement equipment accuracy at Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery that have been continuously inactive for sixty (60) Days. Following the discontinuation of measurement equipment accuracy verification at a Point of Receipt or Point of Delivery, Shipper must provide three (3) business Days' notice prior to Transporter's subsequent receipt or delivery of Gas at such Point of Receipt or Point of Delivery.
- 1.18 If, upon test, the measuring equipment measures Gas quantities within two percent (2%) accuracy at any Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery, previous readings of such equipment after the last preceding test shall be considered correct, but the equipment shall be adjusted to record accurately. However, even if the inaccuracy is less than two percent (2%), if the volume discrepancy is quantifiable and exceeds 250 MMBtu, the volumes shall be adjusted appropriately. If, at the Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery, upon any test, the measuring equipment measures Gas quantities with an inaccuracy requiring adjustment, or if at any time the measuring equipment should be out of service or not registering, Gas received or delivered through the period during which the measuring equipment was registering inaccurately or was out of service or not registering shall be estimated and agreed upon by use of the first of the following methods which may be applicable:
 - A. By using the registration of any check measuring equipment installed by either party if registering accurately; or
 - B. By computing error if percentage of error is ascertainable by calibration, test or mathematical calculation; or
 - C. By estimating the quantity received or delivered and/or its thermal content by reference to actual receipts or deliveries during preceding periods under similar conditions when the measuring equipment was registering accurately. If the period during which the measuring equipment at the Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery had been registering inaccurately or had been out of service or not registering is not definitely known or agreed upon, correction shall be made for the last half of the time elapsed since the measuring equipment was previously tested

and found to accurately measure Gas within two percent (2%). All corrections made as above provided shall be made to zero error.

1.19 The charts and/or records from the measuring equipment shall remain the property of the party owning the measuring equipment and shall be kept on file for a period of not less than two (2) years.

WARRANTY AND INDEMNIFICATION

1.20 Each party hereby warrants to the other that at the time of receipt or delivery of Gas hereunder, it will have the right to receive or deliver, as the case may be, such Gas, and that such Gas shall be free and clear of all liens and adverse claims; and each party agrees, with respect to the Gas received or delivered by it, to indemnify the other party against all suits, actions, debts, accounts, damages, costs (including reasonable attorney fees), losses and expenses arising from or out of any adverse claim of any and all persons to or against said Gas while that party has responsibility for the Gas.

FORCE MAJEURE

- 1.21 In the event of either party being rendered unable, wholly or in part, by reason of force majeure to carry out its obligations under the Contract (other than the obligation to make payment of amounts due hereunder), it is agreed that such party shall give notice and reasonably full particulars of such force majeure by electronic mail, facsimile transmission or in writing to the other party within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the cause relied on, and the obligations of the party giving such notice, so far as they are affected by such force majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of any inability so caused, but for no longer period, and such cause shall, so far as possible, be remedied with all reasonable dispatch.
- 1.22 The parties' obligations hereunder shall also be suspended during the continuance of any force majeure situation to the extent such force majeure conditions prevent delivery of Gas for Shipper's account.
- 1.23 The term, "force majeure", as employed herein shall mean acts of God; strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances; conditions arising from a change in governmental laws,

orders, rules, or regulations; acts of public enemy; wars; blockades; insurrections; riots; epidemics; landslides; lightning; earthquakes; fires; storms; floods; washouts; arrests and restraints of governments and people; civil disturbances; explosions; breakage or accident to machinery or lines of pipe; the necessity for making repairs, tests, alterations, or performing maintenance to machinery or lines of pipe; freezing of wells or lines of pipe; partial or entire failure of wells or treating facilities; and any other causes, whether of the kind herein enumerated or otherwise, not within the control of the party claiming suspension, and which by the exercise of due diligence, such party is unable to prevent or overcome. Such term shall likewise include: (a) those instances where either Transporter or Shipper is required to obtain servitudes, rights-of-way, grants, permits or licenses to enable such party to fulfill its obligations under the Contract; the inability of such party to acquire or the delays on the part of such party in acquiring, at reasonable costs, and after the exercise of reasonable diligence, such servitudes, rights-of-way, grants, permits, or licenses, and (b) those instances where either Transporter or Shipper is required to furnish materials and supplies for the purpose of constructing or maintaining facilities or is required to secure permits or permissions from any governmental agency to enable such party to fulfill its obligations under the Contract, the inability of such party to acquire, or the delays on the part of such party in acquiring, at reasonable costs, and after the exercise of reasonable diligence, such material and supplies, permits and permissions.

- 1.24 It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes or lockouts shall be entirely within the discretion of the party having the difficulty, and that the above requirement that any force majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall not require the settlement of strikes or lockouts by acceding to the demands of the opposing party when such course is inadvisable in the discretion of the party having the difficulty.
- 1.25 Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is specifically understood and agreed by the parties hereto that force majeure shall in no way terminate the parties' obligations to balance those volumes of Gas received and delivered hereunder.

GOVERNMENTAL RULES, REGULATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS

- 1.26 This Statement of Operating Conditions is subject to all valid orders, laws, rules and regulations of duly constituted governmental authorities having jurisdiction or control over the parties, their facilities or Gas supplies, this Statement of Operating Conditions or any provisions hereof. If at any time during the period of transportation of Gas hereunder, any such governmental authority shall take or threaten to take any action, directly or indirectly, whereby the receipt, transportation and delivery of Gas as contemplated hereunder shall be proscribed or possibly subjected to terms, conditions, restraints or regulations, including without limitation by enumeration, rate or price controls or ceilings that, in the sole judgment of the party affected, would be adverse or unduly burdensome to that party, such party may, upon written notice, cancel and terminate the Contract, including the Statement of Operating Conditions, without further liability hereunder except for payment for services provided hereunder prior to such cancellation and termination.
- 1.27 The parties agree to timely file and prosecute all applications, statements and notices with any governmental regulatory authority having appropriate and applicable jurisdiction.

BILLINGS AND PAYMENT

- 1.28 On or about the tenth (10th) Day of each Month after delivery of Gas has commenced hereunder, Transporter shall render to Shipper a statement for the preceding Month setting forth the total quantity of Gas, and the Btu content thereof, at the Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery which was received and delivered, respectively, the amount due Transporter by Shipper for the transportation or other applicable services performed hereunder and such other information sufficient to explain and support any adjustments made by Transporter in determining the amount billed.
- 1.29 Shipper shall pay Transporter the amount due on the later of the twenty-fifth (25th) Day of the Month following the Month of production or (i) fifteen (15) Days after the date of the invoice described in Section 8.1; or (ii) fifteen (15) Days after the date of any other invoice Transporter renders. In the event Shipper fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter will assess, and Shipper shall pay an interest charge equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) per Month on the unpaid balance. Further, in the event Shipper

fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter may, in its Reasonable Discretion, suspend all transportation of Gas pursuant to Section 7.6.

- 1.30 Under Firm Contracts for which demand charges are applicable, Transporter will submit an invoice to Shipper for demand charges during the Month preceding the Month to which such demand charges apply. Payment of such invoices shall be due on the latter of (i) the 25th day of the Month in which such invoice is received or (ii) fifteen (15) Days after the receipt of the invoice (the "Demand Payment Date"). Shipper shall pay the full amount of the demand charges set forth on the invoice on or before the Demand Payment Date. In the event that Shipper does not make timely payment of demand charges on or before the Demand Payment Date as required by this Section 7.3, Transporter may exercise all of its rights available at law and pursuant to the Firm Contract. In the event Shipper fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter will assess, and Shipper shall pay an interest charge equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) per Month on the unpaid balance.
- All parties hereto shall have the right at any and all reasonable times to examine the books 1.31 and records of the other party to the extent necessary to verify the accuracy of any statement, charge, computation or demand made under or pursuant to a Contract, including the Statement of Operating Conditions. The parties agree to schedule such audits in advance and at mutually agreeable times. Within thirty (30) Days following any such audit, the auditing party shall notify the audited party of the results of such audit and specifically, whether the accuracy of any statement, charge, computation or demand will be challenged. Such books and records shall be kept for not less than two (2) years following the month the charge was billed or the credit issued ("Exception Period"). All charges and credits shall be conclusively deemed to be correct and accurate unless written exception is taken to specific charges or credits within the Exception Period. All charges and credits beyond the Exception Period and not subject to written exception are considered final and not subject to review or adjustment with regard to any such statement, charge, computation or demand was made under or pursuant to a Contract, including the SOC. In the event the examination of either party's records requires disclosure of confidential third-party agreements, the auditing party shall use the services of an independent third-party auditor

who shall be required to keep the terms of such third-party agreements confidential and shall disclose confidential information only to the extent necessary to render the audit. Any requested disclosure of confidential information to the auditing party must be submitted to the audited party for approval. The cost of any independent third-party auditor shall be borne by the auditing party.

- 1.32 Shipper agrees to reimburse Transporter for all taxes that may be levied upon and/or paid by Transporter based on additional tax requirements imposed or implemented on or after the date the rates set forth in Exhibit B to this Statement of Operating Conditions became effective, with respect to the transportation services rendered hereunder.
- 1.33 If Shipper in good faith disputes any amount billed hereunder, Shipper shall not be required to pay interest in accordance with Sections 7.2 and 7.3 on any such amount that is ultimately determined to be in error; provided, however, interest shall be due if such amount billed is found not to be in error. Shipper shall pay when due the full amount of the invoice, including the amount in dispute, and Transporter shall refund with interest any disputed amount that ultimately is determined to be in error. If Shipper fails to pay any amount due hereunder, Transporter may, in addition to exercising any other rights it may have under the Contract, under the SOC, at law, or in equity, suspend service, including deliveries of Gas, subject to Transporter providing forty-eight (48) hours written notice of such intention to suspend. Transporter may, without waiving any other rights or remedies it may have, withhold further delivery until such payment or security is received or take whatever steps it deems necessary, in its sole judgment, to insure that non-payment of invoices by Shipper does not occur, including but not limited to, termination of Shipper's Contract. In the event Transporter pursues collection on late payment, Shipper shall be liable for any and all expenses and costs, including court costs and reasonable attorney fees, incurred as a result of such failure to timely pay.
- 7.7 Transporter may set off any amount owed by Transporter to Shipper under any Contract(s) against the amount owed by Transporter or any affiliate of Transporter under any Contract(s) and any other agreements.

CREDITWORTHINESS

- 1.34 To establish and maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, Shipper shall maintain an investment grade credit rating, and Shipper shall otherwise demonstrate to Transporter's satisfaction the ability to meet its financial obligations hereunder. An "investment grade credit rating" means a long-term senior unsecured non-credit enhanced debt rating of: at least BBB- from Standard & Poor's Rating Group (a division of McGraw-Hill Inc.) or its successor ("S&P") or "Baa3" from Moody's Investor Services, Inc. or its successor ("Moody's"), in either case with a short-term and long-term outlook or credit watch of stable or positive. If Shipper is rated by S&P and Moody's, the lower credit rating will apply.
- 1.35 Transporter shall not be required to commence service or to continue to provide service under a Contract with any Shipper that:
 - A. Is or has become insolvent;
 - B. Has voluntarily commenced a case or proceeding or the filing of any petition under any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law seeking dissolution, liquidation or reorganization or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator for itself or a substantial portion of its property, assets or business; or to effect a plan or other arrangement with its creditors; or has filed an answer admitting the jurisdiction of the court and the material allegations of any involuntary petition filed against it in any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar case or proceeding, has been adjudicated as bankrupt, has made a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or has consented to, or acquiesced in the appointment of, a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator for itself or a substantial portion of its property, assets or business or has taken corporate action for the purpose of effectuating any of the foregoing; or
 - C. Has been the subject of the commencement of involuntary proceedings or the filing of an involuntary petition against Shipper under any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law seeking the dissolution, liquidation, or reorganization of Shipper, or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator for Shipper, or of a

substantial part of the property, assets or business of Shipper, or the issuance or levy of any writ, judgment, warrant or attachment, execution or similar process against a substantial part of the property, assets, or business of Shipper; or

- D. Fails to establish and maintain creditworthiness with Transporter; or
- E. Fails to provide Adequate Assurances.
- 8.3 If Shipper fails to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, Shipper may be required by Transporter to provide adequate assurances. "Adequate Assurances" shall mean a cash prepayment, a guaranty or an irrevocable standby letter of credit, from a financial institution in a form acceptable to Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion, as may be requested by Transporter, in an amount equal to three (3) Months of service at the full Maximum Daily Quantity (or, for interruptible Shippers, an amount equal to three (3) Months of estimated service based on historical or projected usage, as determined by Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion), plus any other required monthly fees, plus an amount equal to the highest imbalance payment accrued in one (1) Month during the previous twelve (12) consecutive Months. Shipper must deliver to Transporter the Adequate Assurances within three (3) business Days of receipt of Transporter's written request, make payment in full within three (3) business Days of receipt of Transporter's written request for all amounts due from Shipper under any Contract(s) and any other agreements between Transporter and Shipper including netting arrangements, and maintain such Adequate Assurances until Shipper can establish creditworthiness with Transporter. If Shipper fails to provide Adequate Assurances upon request, Transporter may, in addition to exercising any other rights it may have under the Contract, under the SOC, at law, or in equity, immediately suspend service, including deliveries of Gas.
- 8.4 In the event that Transporter agrees to construct new facilities or to expand or extend its existing facilities and Shipper has agreed pursuant to Section 7.9 of this SOC to pay a facilities charge to defray the cost of such facilities, and regardless of whether Shipper is deemed "creditworthy" within the meaning of GT&C Section 8.1, Transporter may require additional Adequate Assurances in a form, amount, for a term and from an issuer all as reasonably acceptable to Transporter and as agreed to by the parties in a request for

service. Adequate Assurances for such new construction, expansion or extension may be in addition to, and shall not be limited to, amounts equal to three months of service at Shipper's full Maximum Daily Quantity or estimated service charges as described in GT&C Section 8.3 above.

CHOICE OF LAW

1.36 The interpretation and performance under Shipper's Contract, and the Statement of Operating Conditions and these General Terms and Conditions shall be in accordance with the laws of the State of Oklahoma, excluding any conflict of law principle that might refer such interpretation and performance to the laws of another jurisdiction. With respect to any cause of action associated directly or indirectly with the terms and conditions of a Contract and the Statement of Operating Conditions, the parties agree and consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal or state courts sitting in the State of Oklahoma, and acknowledge proper venue to be in either state or federal court located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, and hereby waive any defenses or objections thereto; provided, however, that Transporter may agree to permit a court with jurisdiction to decide venue as to a specific matter or matters.

EEOC COMPLIANCE

1.37 To the extent applicable, each party hereby respectively warrants that it is in compliance with, and during the term hereof will remain in compliance with, all applicable laws, executive orders and acts concerning equal opportunity employment and wage and hours regulations.

MISCELLANEOUS

1.38 As between the parties hereto, Shipper shall be deemed to be in exclusive control and in possession of the Gas prior to such Gas being received hereunder by Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt and responsible for any damages, losses or injuries caused thereby, except for injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Transporter. After Shipper delivers or causes Gas to be delivered to Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt, Transporter shall be deemed to be in exclusive control and possession of such Gas, and responsible for any injuries or damages

caused thereby, until it is redelivered to Shipper or for the account of Shipper at the Point(s) of Delivery, except injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Shipper following such redelivery. At the Point(s) of Delivery, Shipper shall thereafter be deemed to be in exclusive control and possession of such Gas and responsible for any injuries or damages caused thereby, except injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Transporter.

DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS

1.39 The descriptive headings of the provisions of Shipper's Contract and of this SOC, including these General Terms and Conditions are formulated and used for convenience only and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any such provision.

Clean SOC

STATEMENT OF OPERATING CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

of

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

(filed in compliance with 18 C.F.R. Part 284)

February 28, 2024

<u>eTariff Information</u>: Tariff Subscriber: **Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC** FERC Tariff Program Name: FERC NGPA Gas Tariff Tariff Title: Transportation SOC database Tariff Record Proposed Effective Date: April 1, 2024 Tariff Record Title: Tariff, Enable Transportation Statement of Operating Conditions Option Code: A Other Information: Revised SOC

STATEMENT OF

OPERATING CONDITIONS OF ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC IN COMPLIANCE WITH 18 C.F.R. PART 284

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC (hereinafter "Enable" or "Transporter"), an intrastate pipeline operating within the State of Oklahoma, will engage in the transportation of natural gas pursuant to Section 311(a)(2) of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 and pursuant to applicable regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission on the following terms and conditions:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	DEFINITIONS	2
2.	AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE	4
3.	APPLICABILITY AND CHARACTER OF SERVICE	5
4.	CURTAILMENT AND PRIORITY OF SERVICE	8
5.	VALID REQUESTS FOR SERVICE	9
6.	TERM	11
7.	RATES AND CHARGES	12
8.	NOMINATIONS, IMBALANCES AND SYSTEM OPERATIONS ORDERS	14
9.	OPERATING CONDITIONS	20
10.	DETERMINATION OF RECEIPTS AND DELIVERIES	21
11.	MISCELLANEOUS	22

FIRM AND INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

1. DEFINITIONS

In addition to the definitions of terms contained in the attached General Terms ("General Terms and Conditions"), and except where the context expressly states another meaning, the following terms, when used herein, shall have the following meanings:

- A. "Applicable Regulations" shall mean those regulations promulgated by FERC pursuant to Section 311(a)(2) of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 ("Section 311"), or other authority, including regulations at 18 C.F.R. Part 284, applicable to transportation under Section 311, as such regulations may be amended from time to time.
- **B.** "Central Clock Time" shall mean Central Standard Time or Central Daylight Savings Time, as applicable in Oklahoma.
- **C.** "Contract" or "Shipper's Contract" shall mean a service agreement for the transportation of Natural Gas between Transporter and Shipper, as such agreement may be amended from time to time.
- **D.** "Daily Imbalance" shall mean the daily volumetric variance between net receipts and allocated deliveries, adjusted for System Fuel.
- **E.** "Daily Index Penalty Percentage" shall mean the percentage obtained by referencing the Daily Imbalance percentage in the table included in Section 8.
- F. "East Daily Index Price" shall mean the arithmetic average of the applicable midpoint prices quoted for deliveries to Transporter in the Daily Price Surveys published by Gas Daily for the applicable Day of Gas flow and for (1) NGPL, Texok zone and (2) Enable Gas Transmission, East. Should one or both of such surveys no longer be published, Transporter will determine an acceptable substitute source or sources for such Daily Price Survey(s), as closely comparable as possible to that previously used. Transporter will post such new source(s) on Transporter's Internet Web Site.

- G. "East Zone" shall include all Transporter's facilities on or directly interconnected with (1) Transporter's Line 111 located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Sasakwa compressor station located in Section 1, 5N-6E in Seminole County, Oklahoma, (2) Transporter's Line 114 located East and/or downstream of Prague Junction in Section 36, T13N-R5E, Lincoln County, Oklahoma (3) Transporter's Lines 7 and 18, located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Noble interconnect with Williams Natural Gas located in Section 10, T21N-R2W, Noble County, Oklahoma, 4) Transporter's Line 1 located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Pink Compressor Station in Section 8, T9N-R2E, Pottawatomie County, Oklahoma and (5) Transporter's Line 22 located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Comanche Tie Compressor Station located in Section 23, T4N-R6W, Grady County, Oklahoma.
- **H.** "FERC" shall mean the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or any successor agency or governmental authority having jurisdiction under Section 311.
- I. "Point(s) of Delivery" shall mean the point(s) at which Transporter delivers Gas on Shipper's behalf.
- **J.** "Point(s) of Receipt" shall mean the point(s) at which Shipper delivers Gas to the Transporter for transport to a Point of Delivery.
- K. "Shipper" shall mean any person or entity who has requested Transporter to transport Natural Gas on behalf of an eligible person or entity and any person who has entered into a valid Contract with Transporter for the transportation of Natural Gas.
- L. "SOC" shall mean this Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services together with the attached General Terms and Conditions, which are fully incorporated by reference herein.

M. "Reasonable Discretion" shall mean Enable's discretion exercised in a reasonable and non-discriminatory manner.

- N. "System Fuel" shall mean mainline compression fuel plus lost and unaccounted for Gas on Transporter's System. Such System Fuel will be calculated pursuant to the Fuel Tracker set forth in Exhibit A hereto.
- **O.** "Transporter" shall mean Enable, an intrastate pipeline company operating within the State of Oklahoma which provides transportation service pursuant to the Applicable Regulations.
- P. "Transporter's System" shall mean the pipeline facilities, including appurtenant facilities, owned, leased, or operated by Transporter within the State of Oklahoma.
- **Q.** "West Daily Index Price" shall mean the arithmetic average of the applicable midpoint prices quoted for deliveries to Transporter in the Daily Price Surveys published by Gas Daily for the applicable Day of Gas flow and for (1) ANR, Okla. and (2) Panhandle, Tx. Okla. Should one or both of such surveys be no longer published, Transporter will determine an acceptable substitute source or sources for such Daily Price Survey(s), as closely comparable as possible to that previously used. Transporter will post such new source(s) on Transporter's Internet Web Site.
- **R.** "West Zone" shall include all portions of the Transporter's System that have not been designated as the East Zone.

2. AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE

- 2.1 Transportation service by Transporter is available for any Shipper to the extent that:
 - (1) Capacity is available on Transporter's System;
 - (2) Shipper (a) makes a valid request for service, including documentation to demonstrate its creditworthiness to the satisfaction of Transporter in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.G, and (b) executes a Contract with Transporter applicable to service; and

- (3) Said service complies with the terms and conditions of this Statement of Operating Conditions.
- 2.2 For the purpose of determining the availability of service in processing requests received pursuant to Section 5, Transporter shall not be required to grant any requests for transportation service:
 - (1) Which could, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, impair Transporter's Firm or Interruptible Service arrangements, jeopardize the integrity of Transporter's System, interfere with the efficient operation of its system or be detrimental to Transporter's compression, storage or other operations;
 - (2) Which would require the construction, modification, expansion, or acquisition of any facilities; provided, however, Transporter may agree, in its Reasonable Discretion, to construct, modify, expand, or acquire facilities to enable it to perform such service;
 - (3) If Transporter determines in accordance with Section 9 (Creditworthiness) of the General Terms and Conditions that Shipper is not creditworthy; or
 - (4) If Shipper's Contract has expired and no replacement or rollover agreement has been executed.
- 2.3 Nothing within this Section 2 is intended to control the interruption or curtailment of service once a request for service has been granted pursuant to Section 5 and while a Contract is in effect.

3. APPLICABILITY AND CHARACTER OF SERVICE

- 3.1 Section 311 transportation service provided under this Statement of Operating Conditions shall be performed under Subpart C of Part 284 of the Applicable Regulations ("Subpart C"). This Statement of Operating Conditions and any Contract covering the transportation of Natural Gas thereunder shall be subject to the provisions of Subpart C.
- 3.2 **Firm Transportation Service**. Transporter may contract for and provide firm transportation for either intrastate or Section 311 service. (A firm transportation contract between Transporter and Shipper will be referenced herein as a "Firm Contract" and a Shipper that has entered into a Firm Contract will be referenced as a "Firm Shipper".) Firm

transportation service ("Firm Service") shall mean transportation service that: is provided on a firm basis; is not subject to a prior claim by another customer or another class of service; and receives the same priority as firm service under any other Firm Contract in that it has the highest priority of transportation service offered by Transporter as set forth in Section 4. Transporter shall provide the Firm Service subject to the provisions of the Firm Contract between Transporter and Shipper, including the maximum daily quantity ("MDQ") specified therein, and the provisions of this SOC. Transporter may interrupt service hereunder whenever Shipper fails to comply with any provision of this SOC or of Shipper's currently effective Firm Contract(s). Transporter shall have the right to waive any one or more specific defaults by Shipper; provided, however, that no such waiver shall operate or be construed as a waiver of any other existing or future default or defaults, whether of a like or different character.

3.3 Interruptible Transportation Service. Transporter may contract for and provide interruptible transportation for either intrastate or Section 311 service. (An interruptible transportation contract between Transporter and Shipper will be referenced herein as an "Interruptible Contract" and a Shipper that has entered into an Interruptible Contract will be referenced as an "Interruptible Shipper"). Interruptible transportation service ("Interruptible Service") shall mean service that is subject to interruption at any time by Transporter, without liability as set forth herein, and shall have the priority as specified in Section 4. Transporter shall provide the Interruptible Service on an interruptible basis subject to the provisions of the Interruptible Contract between Transporter and Shipper, including the MDQ specified therein, and the provisions of this SOC. Interruptible Service shall be provided by Transporter on a ratable basis in accordance with Section 8 hereof. Transporter may interrupt service hereunder whenever Shipper fails to comply with any provision of this SOC or of Shipper's currently effective Interruptible Contract(s). Transporter shall have the right to waive any one or more specific defaults by Shipper; provided, however, that no such waiver shall operate or be construed as a waiver of any other existing or future default or defaults, whether of a like or different character. In addition, Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, may interrupt service if it deems such interruption necessary due to operating conditions or system requirements or to assure that Transporter can render service to its other customers according to the priorities of Section 4.

- 3.4 **Maximum Daily Quantity**. Upon delivery by Shipper of Gas to the Point(s) of Receipt specified under Shipper's Contract, Transporter shall receive such Gas and deliver on a firm or interruptible basis thermally equivalent quantities of such Gas for the account of Shipper to the Point(s) of Delivery up to the MDQ specified in Shipper's Contract, after deducting System Fuel from the volume received by Transporter. Transporter's obligation to receive and deliver the Gas tendered by Shipper is subject to the physical capacity and operating constraints of Transporter's System, including, but not limited to, the Gas quality specifications set forth in Section 2 of the General Terms and Conditions.
- 3.5 Shipper shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold Transporter harmless from and against any and all losses, damages, or expenses of every kind and character that Shipper or Transporter may suffer, sustain, or be liable for as a result of any interruption of service pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof; provided, however, that this provision shall not apply to losses, damages, or expenses attributable to gross negligence on the part of Transporter.
- 3.6 Transportation Service hereunder shall consist of the acceptance by Transporter of Natural Gas tendered or delivered by Shipper for transportation at the Point(s) of Receipt specified in the Contract, the transportation of that Natural Gas through Transporter's System, and the delivery of equivalent quantities of Natural Gas (less any reductions permitted under the Contract or this SOC) by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at the Point(s) of Delivery specified in the Contract. Transporter shall not be required to accept any Gas tendered or delivered by Shipper in excess of the maximum daily quantity specified in the Contract.

4. CURTAILMENT AND PRIORITY OF SERVICE

- 4.1 Service hereunder on all or any portion of Transporter's System may be allocated at the first of the Month or curtailed at any time during the Month due to capacity constraints on all or any portion of Transporter's System pursuant to the following provisions:
 - **A.** Firm Shippers shall receive first priority on a pro rata basis based on their nominations up to the MDQ set forth in their respective Firm Contracts.
 - **B.** Interruptible Shippers paying a higher unit rate per MMBtu shall receive a higher priority than Interruptible Shippers paying a lower unit rate. If, at the first of the Month, Transporter is required to allocate or, at any time during the Month, Transporter is required to curtail Interruptible Shippers because of changes in available capacity at any time, Transporter shall allocate or curtail as follows:

(1) Transporter shall, upon written or telephonic notice or notice given in person, refuse, curtail or interrupt service being provided under any Interruptible Contract to enable Transporter to provide or continue service to a Firm Shipper or another Shipper that is paying a higher unit rate per MMBtu. Transporter shall provide any Interruptible Shipper whose service is being subordinated by another Interruptible Shipper the right to bid for capacity through payment of a higher unit rate (if Section 311 service is involved, such rate may be bid up to the Maximum Interruptible Rate). If Shipper's bid for capacity results in a unit rate per MMBtu equal to or greater than the unit rate per MMBtu generated by service to the other interested Interruptible Shipper, then the Interruptible Shipper making such bid shall retain its priority, provided that priority between Shippers paying the same unit rate per MMBtu shall be determined as indicated below.

(2) If, after the specified bid process described above, volumes tendered for transportation by Interruptible Shippers under their respective Interruptible Contracts still exceed Transporter's ability to receive, transport and redeliver all nominated volumes, Interruptible Shippers paying the same unit rate per MMBtu shall be curtailed on a pro rata basis.

(3) Once capacity has been awarded, in accordance with this Statement of Operating Conditions, an Interruptible Shipper will not be interrupted during the Month due to a change in available capacity caused by a nomination of other Interruptible Shippers; provided however, that Interruptible Shippers are subject to being interrupted if a Firm Shipper submits a revised nomination pursuant to Section 8.1 of this Statement of Operating Conditions.

5. VALID REQUESTS FOR SERVICE

A request for service hereunder shall be valid as of the date received if it contains adequate information with respect to all items specified below, subject to any necessary verification of such information; provided, however, that a request shall not be valid if the service requested does not conform to the terms of this Statement of Operating Conditions or if the data provided are incomplete or not adequately substantiated. Transporter may waive any requirement below if it deems the information unnecessary in a specific case and may request additional information in a specific case if the data provided are, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, inadequate. Transporter shall promptly notify a Shipper whose request is rejected because of failure to submit or substantiate all data specified below or whose request fails to comply with any terms of this Statement of Operating Conditions.

Transporter shall promptly notify Shipper when its request for service is accepted and shall tender a Contract to Shipper for execution. Unless waived by Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, a request for service shall be invalid if Shipper fails to return an executed Contract within thirty (30) Days after such Contract has been tendered by Transporter to Shipper for execution. Requests for transportation service hereunder shall be deemed valid only after Shipper submits to Transporter at Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC, P.O. Box 24300, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73124-0300, a Transportation Service Request Form, which Transporter shall make available to any Shipper, via Transporter's Internet Web Site or Shipper may provide such information in letter or tabular form.

A. Gas Quantity. Shipper shall specify an MDQ, stated in MMBtus, to be received from Shipper and transported by Transporter.

- **B. Point(s) of Receipt.** Shipper shall identify the points at which it desires to nominate Gas to be received by Transporter into its facilities. However, Transporter shall retain operational control over receipts into its system, including, but not limited to, the right to require Shipper to comply with all provisions of Section 8. Should Shipper's failure to comply with any provision of Section 8 unreasonably interfere, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, with Transporter's control over its system, then Transporter may, at its option, cease transportation and terminate any relevant agreements, without limitation of Transporter's rights and remedies at law and equity. Shipper shall provide the names or other suitable identification of all entities that are providing Gas transportation service upstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt.
- **C. Point(s) of Delivery.** Shipper shall identify the point(s) at which it desires Transporter to deliver the Gas. Shipper shall also provide, if requested by Transporter, the names or other suitable identification of all entities transporting the Gas downstream of Transporter.
- **D. Term of Service.** Shipper shall state the date on which service is requested to commence. Transporter shall not be obligated to accept requests if the requested commencement date is more than three (3) Months after the date that the request for service was received by Transporter.
- **E.** Shipper's Arrangements. Shipper shall provide to Transporter sufficient detail as to Gas supply, intervening transportation or markets to permit Transporter to complete any regulatory or informational reports required under the Applicable Regulations.
- **F. Gas Analysis.** If Shipper is proposing or requesting the construction of new facilities connecting a new source of Gas supply to Transporter's System, Shipper shall submit a Gas analysis, including, but not limited to, test results and analyses for oxygen, carbon dioxide, nitrogen, water content (H₂O) and hydrogen sulfide, for Gas proposed to be received by Transporter. The analyses shall demonstrate that the Gas complies with the quality specifications for Gas to be received by

Transporter as set forth in Section 2 (Quality) of the General Terms and Conditions. If Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, determines that additional tests or analyses are required on the Gas, Shipper shall acquire those tests or analyses and submit the results thereof to Transporter. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Shipper shall permit Transporter to perform any tests and analyses that Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, deems necessary.

G. Creditworthiness. In accordance with the provisions of Section 8 (Creditworthiness) of the General Terms and Conditions:

1. Prior to commencing service hereunder, Shipper shall be required to establish creditworthiness with Transporter. Transporter shall not be required to process or review Shipper's request for service until it receives such credit information. After commencing service hereunder, Shipper shall be required to maintain creditworthiness with Transporter.

2. At any time upon request, Shipper shall provide Transporter with information sufficient to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter. Such information may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, bank references and trade references.

3. If Shipper fails to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, Transporter may require Shipper to provide Adequate Assurances; and

4. If Shipper fails to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, or if Shipper fails to provide Adequate Assurances if required, Transporter shall not be required to commence or continue service hereunder.

6. TERM

6.1 The term for Firm or Interruptible Service hereunder shall be as set forth in the Shipper's Contract from the effective date of Shipper's Contract. In addition to any termination rights in the Contract, Transporter may also terminate an Interruptible Contract if, among other things:

- A. Shipper fails to commence transportation service thereunder within three (3)
 Months of the effective date of the Contract;
- **B.** Shipper fails to tender Gas to Transporter for receipt, transportation and redelivery for any period greater than one hundred eighty (180) consecutive Days; or
- **C.** Shipper's Interconnect Agreement or Operational Balancing Agreement expires or is terminated.

7. RATES AND CHARGES

Shipper shall pay Transporter each Month hereunder the applicable charge for transportation services, together with such other charges as are identified herein and applicable to such transportation service.

- 7.1 The maximum rates for firm transportation service under Section 311 shall be the applicable maximum demand rate and the applicable maximum commodity rate approved by FERC ("Maximum Firm Rates"). *See* Exhibit B to this Statement of Operating Conditions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Transportation and Shipper may agree to a discount to the maximum demand rate and/or the maximum commodity rate for firm transportation service.
- 7.2 The maximum unit transportation charge for interruptible transportation service under Section 311 shall be the applicable maximum unit rate approved by the FERC for interruptible transportation by Transporter under Section 311 ("Maximum Interruptible Rate"). *See* Exhibit B to this SOC. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Transporter and Shipper may agree to a discount to the unit rate to be charged for interruptible transportation.
- 7.3 In Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, Transporter may provide transportation under the Applicable Regulations at a discount from Transporter's applicable Maximum Rates. Nothing herein shall obligate or require, or be construed to obligate or require, Transporter to offer such a discount. Transporter will offer any such discounts in a non-discriminatory manner.

- 7.4 Nothing in this Section shall be construed to modify any provision of Section 4.
- 7.5 Transporter shall invoice the Shipper each Month and the Shipper shall pay all charges applicable to each Contract.
- 7.6 Transporter's Maximum Rates for Section 311 service shall be determined pursuant to Section 284.123(b)(2) of the Applicable Regulations. Prior to approval by the FERC, Shipper shall pay, and Transporter shall be entitled to collect an agreed upon unit rate up to the applicable Maximum Rates for which approval from the FERC has been sought by Transporter, subject to Transporter's obligation to make refunds pursuant to FERC regulations, if necessary.
- 7.7 Transporter reserves the right to file for higher Maximum Rates during the term of the Contract.
- 7.8 Unless otherwise provided for by Shipper's Contract, Shipper shall reimburse Transporter, in kind, an amount equal to the FERC approved zonal fuel percentage(s) for System Fuel times the volumes received by Transporter.

As set forth more fully in Section 7 of the General Terms and Conditions hereto, within fifteen (15) days after the date of any invoice for payment, Shipper shall reimburse Transporter for all fees, including, but not limited to, FERC or other regulatory filing, reporting and application fees, transportation fees, construction costs or other applicable fees that:

- (1) Have been paid by Transporter; or
- (2) Were required to be paid by FERC or any other regulatory body; and
- (3) Were applicable to transportation service or other applicable service performed or being performed by Transporter for Shipper.
- 7.9 If Transporter agrees to (i) construct, acquire or modify any facilities, (ii) acquire the right to use facilities by lease, or (iii) contract with a third-party for the provision of upstream or downstream transportation service at the request of Shipper in order to perform transportation service hereunder, Shipper shall pay Transporter the cost of such facilities, lease payments or third-party service agreement payments, including all costs and charges

associated therewith. Transporter shall recover such costs, lease payments or third-party service agreement payments, and any costs or charges associated therewith, from the Shipper requesting Transporter to incur them by means of a separately stated facilities charge or charges to be included in Transporter's monthly invoice.

8. NOMINATIONS, IMBALANCES AND SYSTEM OPERATIONS ORDERS

8.1 Nominations. In accordance with the nomination deadlines set out below, Shipper shall provide to Transporter electronically, via Transporter's Internet Web Site unless otherwise specifically agreed to by Transporter, the nominations of volumes to be received by Transporter from Shipper at each Point(s) of Receipt and the aggregate of such nominations at all Point(s) of Receipt and the nominations of volumes to be delivered by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at each Point(s) of Delivery or pool(s) and the aggregate of all such nominations at all Point(s) of Delivery. Such nominations shall include all information deemed necessary, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, to adequately and correctly confirm, allocate and account for volumes so nominated, including, but not limited to, the number of Days for which the volume is nominated. If the number of Days for which the volume is nominated is not specified by Shipper, the nomination shall be presumed to be for one Day only. Transporter shall maintain a record of such nominations. Any Shipper who fails to provide Transporter with an electronic nomination on or before the nomination deadlines set out below shall be deemed to have nominated no volumes at any Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery; provided, however, that Transporter may, but shall not be obligated or required to, accept nominations from Shipper after the nomination deadlines set out below.

The deadline for nominations will be on or before 11:00 a.m. Central Clock Time on the 2nd working Day prior to the end of the Month preceding the Month in which nominations are to be effective. The nomination will consist of the Transportation Receipt Nomination which shall identify, by Zone, all volumes nominated to be received by Transporter for Shipper or for Shipper's Account and the Transportation Delivery Nomination which shall identify, by Zone, all volumes nominated to be delivered by Transporter for Shipper's Account and the Transportation Delivery Nomination which shall identify, by Zone, all volumes nominated to be delivered by Transporter for Shipper's Account.

All nominations received after the first of the Month must be received by Transporter by 1:00 p.m. Central Clock Time on the Day prior to requested flow. All such nominations shall include all information required by Transporter as set out hereinabove for first of the Month nominations.

Transporter may, but is not required or obligated to, accept:

- A) Any nomination which exceeds Shipper's maximum daily quantity specified in the Contract, or
- B) Any nomination not submitted via Transporter's Internet Web Site.

Transporter will confirm nominations with the operator(s) of the Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery ("Operator(s)") at downstream pipeline interconnects. Shipper understands and agrees to contact, or cause contact with, the Operator(s) to confirm Shipper's nominations of volumes to be received by Transporter from Shipper at each Point(s) of Receipt and the nominations of volumes to be delivered by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at each Point(s) of Delivery. Transporter will not be obligated to schedule a nomination if the Operator does not confirm such nomination electronically, via Transporter's Internet Web Site, unless Transporter and Operator agree otherwise. Operator confirmations must be made on or before 4:30 p.m. Central Clock Time on the 2nd working Day prior to the end of the Month. All nominations received after the first of the Month must be confirmed by the Operator by 4:30 p.m. Central Time on the business Day prior to requested flow.

Volumes of Gas received by Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt shall conform as closely as possible to the volumes nominated by Shipper at each Point(s) of Receipt and shall be delivered by Shipper to Transporter at hourly rates of flow that are as nearly as practicable uniform throughout the Day. Subject to Transporter's operating conditions and contractual requirements, volumes delivered by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at the Point(s) of Delivery shall conform as closely as possible to the volumes nominated by Shipper for delivery at Transporter's Point(s) of Delivery, less any deductions for System Fuel, and any provision for imbalance corrections, except that Transporter may conform such volumes to Shipper's volumes delivered at Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt less any deduction for System Fuel and any provision for imbalance corrections. Transporter may temporarily interrupt receipts and/or deliveries at any time and from time to time, in accordance with: 1) the provisions of Section 4, 2) due to Transporter's operating conditions, 3) system requirements or 4) system operations orders.

8.2 (a) Imbalances. Transporter shall maintain an imbalance account for each Shipper by Contract and by the applicable zone, which reflects, for any given Month, total volumes received, delivered and retained, previous and new imbalance positions, and any other information deemed necessary and appropriate by Transporter. Transporter may provide Shipper with notice of imbalances on Transporter's Internet Web Site, by electronic mail, by facsimile transmission, or in writing.

Actual receipts and deliveries must balance daily with nominated receipts and deliveries, respectively, and nominated receipts, less any deductions for System Fuel and any provision for imbalance corrections, shall equal nominated deliveries. Transporter shall inform Shipper when daily receipts and deliveries are not in balance and require Shipper to take such action as is necessary to balance on a daily basis.

Volumes to be received or delivered to resolve all or any portion of a then-existing imbalance will be specifically designated as balancing volumes. Shippers within the same Zone (East or West) may also correct imbalances by sales or purchases from each other's contracts within the same Zone. For example, a Shipper that is long in the West Zone may nominate and sell all or a portion of its long position to a Shipper that is short in the West Zone.

Transporter may apply volumes first received or delivered (as the case may be) if Transporter so elects, in its Reasonable Discretion, to offset Shipper's then-existing imbalance, but only upon notice to Shipper.

(b) **Penalties.** Transporter may advise Shipper of a specific action regarding daily imbalances to be taken if deemed necessary by Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion. In the event Transporter requires Shipper to take specific action, Transporter shall notify Shipper thereof at a time and in a manner that is reasonable under the existing or expected

conditions. Transporter may post notices of the required action on Transporter's Internet Web Site and shall make reasonable efforts to notify the employee(s) of Shipper responsible for the then most recent nomination(s). If Transporter provides the original notice telephonically, Transporter shall follow up in a reasonable time with written confirmation.

If Transporter requires a specific action to be taken and Shipper fails to take such action as requested in Transporter's notice, Transporter may assess and Shipper shall pay Transporter, an imbalance penalty calculated by multiplying the Shipper's Daily Imbalance times the East Daily Index Price or West Daily Index Price (as appropriate) times the Daily Index Penalty Percentage. The Daily Index Penalty Percentage is based upon a Shipper's Daily Imbalance penalty Imbalance penalty in the table below:

Daily Imbalance %	Daily Index Penalty %
0% to 5%	0%
>5% to 25%	25%
>25% to 50%	50%
>50% to 75%	100%
>75% to 100%	200%

In the event Transporter as a result of Shipper's over deliveries or under deliveries incurs costs and/or penalties, Shipper shall also be responsible for and shall reimburse Transporter for such costs and/or penalties in excess of the penalty levels described above.

If Shipper is advised or directed by any upstream or downstream pipeline or operator to reduce or suspend deliveries for transportation, Shipper shall immediately so notify Transporter by telephone (or in person) and shall confirm such reduction or suspension in writing with Transporter. Furthermore, if Transporter is advised by any upstream or downstream pipeline or operator of the reduction or suspension of deliveries for the account of Shipper, Transporter shall immediately so notify Shipper verbally and Shipper shall immediately confirm such reduction or suspension of deliveries in writing by way of a revised nomination to Transporter.

Shipper shall be responsible for and shall bear any penalties imposed or assessed by upstream or downstream pipelines or operators for imbalances in receipts and/or deliveries caused by Shipper action or inaction. Shipper shall indemnify and hold Transporter harmless and free from all such payments or charges for imbalances imposed or assessed against Transporter.

Shipper shall have ninety (90) Days to resolve any imbalance remaining at the termination of its Contract. If Shipper does not reduce the remaining imbalance to zero within ninety (90) Days of the termination of its Contract (unless due to the actions or inactions of Transporter), Transporter will:

- A. Charge Shipper and Shipper shall be obligated to pay for those quantities Shipper owes Transporter at a rate equal to 125% (one hundred and twenty five percent) of the final settlement price for the current prompt month NYMEX Henry Hub Natural Gas Contract which expired during the Month the ninetieth (90th) day occurred; or
- B. Be obligated to pay for those quantities Transporter owes Shipper at a rate equal to 75% (seventy five percent) of the final settlement price for the current prompt month NYMEX Henry Hub Natural Gas contract which expired during the Month the ninetieth (90th) day occurred.
- 8.3 (a) System Operations Orders. Transporter shall have the right to issue System Operations Orders when, in its Reasonable Discretion, such orders are necessary to maintain or restore the operational integrity of Transporter's System, alleviate conditions that threaten safe operations, or which are required to maintain efficient and reliable service. The operational integrity of Transporter's System shall encompass the integrity of the physical system and the preservation of physical assets and their performance, the overall operating performance of the entire physical system as an entity (or any portion thereof), and the maintenance (on a reliable and operationally sound basis) of total system deliverability and the quality of Gas delivered. To accomplish these objectives, Transporter shall be entitled to take actions as described in this Section.

A System Operations Order shall require actions or measures that Transporter determines will neutralize or reduce threats to, or otherwise preserve, the integrity of all or a portion of Transporter's System and that may require immediate response as determined by Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion. System Operations Orders may require a Shipper or Shippers to take any of the following actions, or similar actions, to the extent such action(s) would tend to alleviate the situation to be addressed:

- Correct Daily Imbalances on a deficient segment of Transporter's System.
 A Shipper may, at its option, achieve the required balance by ceasing or reducing deliveries from deficient segments of Transporter's System or, alternatively, commencing or increasing supply inputs into deficient segments of Transporter's System; provided, however, that Transporter itself always retains the right to curtail deliveries, if necessary for system operations;
- (ii) Correct imbalances on an oversupplied segment of Transporter's system. A Shipper may, at its option, achieve the required balance by ceasing or reducing supply inputs into oversupplied segments of Transporter's System or, alternatively, commencing or increasing deliveries from oversupplied segments of Transporter's System; provided, however, that Transporter itself always retains the right to decline to receive supply, if necessary for system operations;
- (iii) Limit pool transfers or other aspects of pooling;
- (iv) Implement curtailments;
- (v) Such other actions as are within Shipper's control which would tend to alleviate or forestall the situation to be addressed.

(b) Penalties for Failure to Comply. A Shipper may be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with a System Operations Order calculated by multiplying the Shipper's Daily Imbalance times the East Daily Index Price or West Daily Index Price (as appropriate) times the Daily Index Penalty Percentage. The Daily Index Penalty Percentage is based upon a Shipper's Daily Imbalance percentage as indicated in the table in Section 8.2 above.

In the event that, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, actions undertaken pursuant to this Section are insufficient to remedy the situation or there is insufficient time to institute such actions, Transporter shall take such actions as are reasonably necessary to maintain System Operations, deliverability, reliable services and pressurization to all or any segment(s) of its system. Transporter is authorized to use all of the resources of its system to such ends, including line pack and all supply received into Transporter's System.

Transporter shall provide Shipper with notice of System Operations Order(s) at a time and in a manner that is reasonable under the existing or expected conditions. Transporter shall post notices of System Operations Order(s) on Transporter's Internet Web Site and shall make reasonable efforts to notify the employee(s) of Shipper responsible for the then most recent nomination(s). If Transporter provides the original notice telephonically, Transporter shall follow up in a reasonable time with written confirmation.

9. OPERATING CONDITIONS

- 9.1 Shipper shall make all necessary arrangements with other parties at or upstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt where Shipper tenders Gas to Transporter for transportation, and at or downstream of any Point(s) of Delivery at which Transporter redelivers Gas to or for the account of Shipper. Such arrangements shall otherwise meet the terms and conditions herein.
- 9.2 Shipper shall represent and warrant to Transporter in writing that all volumes of Gas delivered to Transporter may be transported under the Applicable Regulations. Furthermore, at Transporter's Reasonable Discretion and upon request, Shipper shall secure written "on-behalf-of" authorization, in a form satisfactory to Transporter, from an interstate pipeline or a local distribution company served by an interstate pipeline evidencing that the transportation to be performed hereunder is on such party's behalf under Section 311. Transporter shall not be obligated to perform service hereunder unless and until Shipper has provided such written representation, warranty, and authorization, if requested.
- 9.3 Transporter shall not be required to perform any service hereunder unless all facilities necessary to render the service exist and are in good operating condition.

- 9.4 Shipper shall deliver Gas or cause Gas to be delivered to Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt at pressure(s) sufficient to allow the Gas to enter Transporter's System as such pressure will vary from time to time. Transporter shall not be required to compress into its pipeline Gas transported hereunder, lower its system operating pressure, alter the direction of Gas flow, the Gas load, or other operations or utilization of its facilities or otherwise change its pipeline operations in order to receive, transport, or deliver Gas hereunder. Unless waived by Transporter, at each Point(s) of Receipt, Shipper shall provide, or cause to be provided, equipment acceptable to Transporter which will prevent over pressuring Transporter's System.
- 9.5 Transporter shall deliver Gas at each Point of Delivery to, or for the account of, Shipper at the prevailing pressures on Transporter's system at each Point of Delivery, which pressures will vary from time to time.

10. DETERMINATION OF RECEIPTS AND DELIVERIES

10.1 If one Shipper or more than one Shipper delivers volumes to Transporter at the same point during the same Month under more than one Contract, Transporter shall use such Shipper's or Shippers' working interest, volumetric nominations, and/or any other information available to Transporter to allocate volumes received during that Month at such point. Shipper(s), and not Transporter, shall be responsible for and shall bear any liability for claims made, penalties imposed, or judgments obtained by or against Transporter, Shipper, upstream transporters, operators and/or interest owners for imbalances among interests in wells or for imbalances between Shippers at or upstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt.

If Transporter delivers volumes of Gas to one Shipper or more than one Shipper, or for such Shipper's or Shippers' accounts, at the same point during the same Month under more than one Contract, Transporter shall use such Shipper's or Shippers' volumetric nominations and/or any other information available to Transporter to allocate volumes delivered during that Month at such point. Shipper(s), and not Transporter, shall be responsible for and shall bear any liability for claims made, penalties imposed, or judgments obtained by or against Transporter, Shipper, downstream transporters, operators

and/or interest owners for imbalances between Shippers at or downstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Delivery.

11. MISCELLANEOUS

- 11.1 To the extent Shipper builds facilities which connect with Transporter's System, such interconnecting facilities shall be constructed only with Transporter's approval and under the supervision of Transporter's personnel.
- 11.2 To the extent Transporter builds, acquires, or modifies any facilities in order to transport Shipper's Gas, any such facilities shall be and remain at all times the property of and under the operation of Transporter.
- 11.3 Transporter may waive any rights hereunder or any obligation of Shipper on a nondiscriminatory basis, provided, however, that no waiver shall operate or be construed as a waiver of other or future rights or obligations, whether of a like or different character.
- 11.4 The provisions of the General Terms and Conditions, as such provisions may be amended from time to time, are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof and as though stated herein, shall apply to service rendered hereunder.
- 11.5 Transporter reserves the right to add to, delete or modify any or all provisions of this Statement of Operating Conditions at any time. Any additions, deletions, modifications or other changes made by Transporter to this SOC, including the General Terms and Conditions, shall be filed with the FERC as required by and subject to the Applicable Regulations. Any such additions, deletions, modifications or other changes shall be effective no earlier than thirty (30) Days after filing the changes with the FERC.
- 11.6 Transporter is first and foremost an intrastate pipeline. Therefore, any Section 311 (a) (2) service which Transporter provides will be consistent with and shall not infringe upon its status as a non-jurisdictional intrastate pipeline and shall not subject Transporter to FERC's Natural Gas Act jurisdiction.
- 11.7 This Statement of Operating Conditions and the Transportation Service Request Form may be accessed electronically at Transporter's Internet Web Site.

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC **EXHIBIT A**

TO

Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services

Fuel Trackers

For The Enable System in Oklahoma

East Zone and West Zone

Effective August 1, 2010

Fixed Fuel Percentages

Enable charges fixed zonal fuel percentages for Gas shipped on the East Zone and West Zone of the Enable System (hereinafter referred to as "the System"). The fuel percentages for each Zone are adjusted annually and are in effect from April 1 through March 31 (the "Fuel Year"). Enable files the fuel percentages and supporting workpapers with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC" or "Commission") on or before February 28 of the year preceding the Fuel Year (or the next business day if February 28 is a weekend day or holiday) and implements the percentages on April 1 of the Fuel Year. The FERC notices the filing and establishes a deadline for comments or objections from shippers. Enable advises its shippers of the calculated percentages in sufficient time for such shippers to take the new fuel factors into account for their April nominations.

Annual Calculation of the Fuel Percentages

The fuel factors implemented as of April 1 of each Fuel Year reflect for each Zone, (1) the estimated fuel usage for the period April 1 to March 31 of the Fuel Year and (2) true-up adjustments for the prior two Fuel Years. Exhibit A-1, East Zone and Exhibit A-1, West Zone showing the methodology for calculation of the zonal fuel percentages are attached to this Exhibit A.

Enable calculates the fuel percentages for the Fuel Year based on actual experience in each Zone in the twelve Months, February to January, preceding the February 28 filing date. The annual calculations for each Fuel Year will also reflect expected changes for each Zone, if any, in fuel use

and deliveries, including changes attributable to changes in compressor capacity for such year, i.e., additions, retirements, upgrades or reconfigurations. See Exhibits A-1, line 40. To the extent that the estimates of usage and/or deliveries attributable to changes for each Zone prove to have been inaccurate, the following year's zonal true ups will correct for the overestimation or underestimation.

Dollar Valuation of the Fuel Volumes

The value of fuel retained, actual fuel used and the resulting over recovery or under recovery for each Zone will be determined by multiplying the difference between the monthly retained volumes and the monthly actual fuel for each Zone by the corresponding monthly average of "PRICES OF SPOT GAS DELIVERED TO PIPELINES," as published for the first Day of each Month in Platt's Inside FERC Gas Market Report for (1) NGPL, Texok and (2) CenterPoint, East index for the East Zone and for (1) ANR, Okla. and (2) Panhandle, Tx.-Okla. index for the West Zone.

True-Up of the Fuel Percentages

Enable has a very large number of receipt points and, accordingly, must plan for and accommodate a very large number of prior period adjustments. While the great majority of such prior period adjustments are made in the first six months after the Gas flows, experience has shown that these receipt points can generate additional prior period adjustments for up to two Fuel Years. For that reason, Enable reflects two Fuel Years of true-up adjustments in the calculation of the fuel percentages. See Exhibits A-1, lines 42 and 43 and lines 47 and 48. For purposes of the fuel tracker, Enable will ignore prior period adjustments after two years.

The true-up calculations also incorporate the dollar valuation of the fuel volumes.

Fuel Year April 1, 2024 – March 31, 2025

Exhibit A-1 East Zone

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC EAST ZONE

EXHIBIT A-1

		ELLC East					
			MMBTU			VAL	UE
		Deliveries	System Fuel	Fuel Retained (Calculated)	NGPL-Texok/ CenterPoint East \$/MMBTU	System Fuel	Fuel Retained (Calculated)
		[a]	[b]	[c]	[d]	[e]	
	2022 ACTUAL					[b*d]	[c *d]
1	Apr-22	30,019,358	313,773	318,205	4.8150	1,510,815	1,532,158
2	May-22	31,531,571	318,174	334,235	6.7550	2,149,262	2,257,755
3	Jun-22	30,345,480	242,925	321,662	8.4850	2,061,220	2,729,303
4	Jul-22	34,408,412	179,765	364,729	6.0650	1,090,274	2,212,082
5	Aug-22	33,604,616	247,555	356,209	8.2150	2,033,666	2,926,256
6	Sep-22	29,481,818	252,718	312,507	8.5050	2,149,363	2,657,874
7	Oct-22	30,859,031	196,601	327,106	5.0950	1,001,680	1,666,604
8	Nov-22	29,765,446	291,641	315,514	4.5050	1,313,842	1,421,389
9	Dec-22	29,993,907	309,470	317,935	6.2950	1,948,111	2,001,403
10	Jan-23	32,362,132	267,885	343,039	5.0500	1,352,820	1,732,345
11	Feb-23	26,339,117	323,517	279,195	3.1600	1,022,313	882,255
12	Mar-23	30,643,850	381,571	324,825	2.0950	799,391	680,508
13	TOTAL	369,354,738	3,325,592	3,915,160	\$ 5.733	\$ 18,432,756	\$ 22,699,933
	2023 ACTUAL						
14	Apr-23	28,557,753	566,675	257,020	1.6900	957,680	434,363
15	May-23	31,395,303	587,801	282,558	1.8450	1,084,493	521,319
16	Jun-23	31,746,165	683,291	285,715	1.9150	1,308,503	547,145
17	Jul-23	34,315,998	736,934	308,844	2.3250	1,713,371	718,062
18	Aug-23	33,582,178	656,578	302,240	2.1450	1,408,359	648,304
19	Sep-23	32,044,526	652,129	288,401	2.2300	1,454,247	643,134
20	Oct-23	30,493,676	588,143	274,443	2.2650	1,332,143	621,614
21	Nov-23	29,527,574	507,512	265,748	2.5900	1,314,455	688,288
22	Dec-23	32,092,984	498,338	288,837	2.5850	1,288,203	746,643
23	Jan-24	32,206,629	468,146	289,860	2.5650	1,200,795	743,490
24	Feb-24	32,348,678	349,119	291,138	2.6950	940,876	784,617
25	Mar-24	34,562,186	395,451	311,060	1.5593	616,607	485,020
26	TOTAL	382,873,650	6,690,115	3,445,863	\$ 2.2008	\$ 14,619,732	\$ 7,581,999

PR24-53-000

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC EAST ZONE EXHIBIT A-1

			MMBTU			VALUE	
				Fuel Retained	NYMEX LESS		Fuel Retained
		Deliveries	System Fuel	(Calculated)	BASIS \$/MMBTU	System Fuel	(Calculated)
		[a]	[b]	[c]	[d]	[e]	[f]
	2022 ACTUAL					[b*d]	[c *d]
27	Apr-24	33,853,929	485,946		1.5980		
28	May-24	37,587,366	530,063		1.7428		
29	Jun-24	38,587,213	452,457		1.9570		
30	Jul-24	42,603,620	482,163		2.2195		
31	Aug-24	41,518,097	488,705		2.2583		
32	Sep-24	39,421,361	550,016		2.1358		
33	Oct-24	33,747,467	486,308		2.1120		
34	Nov-24	32,448,187	433,765		2.5705		
35	Dec-24	35,084,382	377,629		3.2425		
36	Jan-25	33,618,799	345,802		3.9473		
37	Feb-25	30,235,767	344,462		3.8228		
38	Mar-25	32,609,842	385,260		2.9005		
39	TOTAL	431,316,030	5,362,574		\$ 2.5422	\$ –	\$ -

	2024 FUEL VOLUME (MMBTU)		
40	Estimated inc/(dec) to system fuel for 2023	_	Based on expected changes. (Ref Appendix 1, Line 13, Col. b)
41	2024 Estimated Fuel	5,362,574	L. 39 + L. 40, Col. b
42	2023 Volume True-Up-inc/(dec)	1,825,358	L. 65, Col. a
43	2022 Volume True-Up-inc/(dec)	_	L. 61, Col. a
44	TOTAL	7,187,932	L. 41 + L. 42 + L. 43
	2024 FUEL %		
45	2023 Estimated Deliveries (mmbtu) + Anticipated Deliveries	431,316,030	L. 39, Col. a + Appendix 1, Line 13, Col. a
46	2024 % before true-ups	1.24%	L. 41/L. 45
47	True-Up for 2023	0.42%	L. 42/L. 45
48	True-Up for 2022	0.00%	L. 43/L. 45
49	2024 Fuel Recovery Rate	1.67%	L. 46 + L. 47 + L. 48

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC EAST ZONE EXHIBIT A-1

ANALYSIS OF FUEL RETAINED

	2022 Retainage	Value		
50	Retained for Tracker Year 2021	1,869,924	PR10-52-0000, E	Exhibit A-1 East Zone Col. a. L. 53
51	Retained for Tracker Year 2022	20,830,010		
52	Total	22,699,933		
	2023 Retainage			
53	Retained for Tracker Year 2022	(2,397,254)	L. 13, Col. e - L.	51
54	Retained for Tracker Year 2023		L. 26, Col. f + L 3	
55	Total	7,581,999		
ANAL	YSIS OF TRUE-UP	MMBTU	Value	
		[a]	[b]	
	2022 True-up	E d		
56	2022 Actual Fuel		18,432,756	L. 13, Col.e
57	2022 Retained for 2022		20,830,010	L. 51
58	2023 Retained for 2022		(2,397,254)	L. 53
59	Total Retained for 2022		18,432,756	L. 57 + L. 58
60	Remaining value to recover for 2022		-	L. 56 - L. 59
61	Price adjusted volume to apply in 2024 to recover	-		L. 60/ L. 39, Col.d
	remaining value			
	2023 True-up			
62	2023 - 2024 Actual Fuel		14,619,732	
63	2023 - 2024 Retained for 2023		9,979,253	
64	Remaining value to recover for 2023		4,640,479	
65	Price adjusted volume to apply in 2023 to recover	1,825,358		L. 64/ L. 39, Col.d
	remaining value			

NOTES:

1-P. 1, Column d prices for Apr 2022 through Feb 2024 are the average of actual Inside FERC NGPL-Texok and Enable prices. 2-P. 2, Column d prices for Mar 2024 through Mar 2025 are NYMEX Henry Hub futures prices less a current basis quote as of Feb 22, 2024.

Appendix 1

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC APPENDIX 1

East Zone Projected Adjustments						
2024-	2025 Adjustments	Deliveries MMBtu [a]	System Fuel MMBtu [b]			
1	Apr-24		_			
	May-24		_			
3	Jun-24		_			
	Jul-24		_			
5	Aug-24		_			
6	Sep-24		-			
	Oct-24		—			
	Nov-24		—			
	Dec-24		-			
10	Jan-25		_			
11	Feb-25		—			
12	Mar-25		-			
13	TOTAL	_				

	West Zone Projected Adjustments							
2024-	2025 Adjustments	Deliveries MMBtu [a]	System Fuel MMBtu [b]					
1	Apr-24		_					
	May-24		-					
3	Jun-24		-					
	Jul-24		-					
5	Aug-24		-					
6	Sep-24		-					
	Oct-24		-					
	Nov-24		-					
	Dec-24		-					
10	Jan-25		_					
11	Feb-25		_					
12	Mar-25							
13	TOTAL	-	-					

Fuel Year April 1, 2024 – March 31, 2024

Exhibit A-1 West Zone

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC WEST ZONE

EXHIBIT A-1

		ELLC West					
			MMBTU			VAI	LUE
					NGPL-Texok/		
				Fuel Retained	CenterPoint		Fuel Retained
		Deliveries	System Fuel	(Calculated)	West \$/MMBTU	System Fuel	(Calculated)
		[a]	[b]	[c]	[d]	[e]	[f]
	2022 ACTUAL					[b*d]	[c*d]
1	Apr-22	31,846,203	204,277	162,416	4.8200	984,613	782,843
2	May-22	32,348,124	198,998	164,975	6.7400	1,341,245	1,111,934
3	Jun-22	33,775,342	170,639	172,254	8.5100	1,452,140	1,465,884
4	Jul-22	38,569,739	136,326	196,706	6.1150	833,635	1,202,855
5	Aug-22	38,928,551	173,824	198,536	8.2450	1,433,181	1,636,926
6	Sep-22	38,516,935	189,511	196,436	8.4200	1,595,681	1,653,994
7	Oct-22	38,445,229	163,478	196,071	5.2300	854,988	1,025,450
8	Nov-22	36,530,345	207,620	186,305	4.6150	958,166	859,796
9	Dec-22	35,779,091	182,059	182,473	6.6950	1,218,883	1,221,659
10	Jan-23	37,430,710	185,033	190,897	6.3750	1,179,582	1,216,966
11	Feb-23	32,943,501	192,071	168,012	4.6350	890,251	778,735
12	Mar-23	35,005,014	103,348	178,526	2.2900	236,667	408,824
13	TOTAL	430,118,784	2,107,183	2,193,606	\$ 6.0575	\$ 12,979,033	\$ 13,365,867
	2023 ACTUAL						
14	Apr-23	33,175,141	266,672	195,733	1.8350	489,343	359,171
15	May-23	36,481,519	287,326	215,241	1.8650	535,863	401,424
16	Jun-23	38,664,430	255,909	228,120	1.8900	483,668	431,147
17	Jul-23	41,287,427	373,503	243,596	2.2900	855,323	557,834
18	Aug-23	40,747,032	347,796	240,407	2.1200	737,328	509,664
19	Sep-23	37,334,847	359,052	220,276	2.1750	780,939	479,099
20	Oct-23	35,449,810	365,579	209,154	2.1750	795,134	454,910
21	Nov-23	45,881,543	349,607	270,701	2.6600	929,955	720,065
22	Dec-23	34,697,152	264,138	204,713	2.7050	714,493	553,749
23	Jan-24	30,623,418	263,893	180,678	2.7600	728,346	498,672
24	Feb-24	36,685,234	210,262	216,443	3.2000	672,838	692,617
25	Mar-24	39,353,414	168,464	232,185	1.5805	266,257	366,969
26	TOTAL	450,380,967	3,512,202	2,657,248	\$ 2.2713	\$ 7,989,488	\$ 6,025,321

PR24-53-000

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC WEST ZONE EXHIBIT A-1

			MMBTU			VALUE	
	-			Fuel Retained	NYMEX LESS		Fuel Retained
		Deliveries	System Fuel	(Calculated)	BASIS \$/MMBTU	System Fuel	(Calculated)
		[a]	[b]	[c]	[d]	[e]	[f]
	2024 ESTIMATED					[b*d]	[c*d]
27	Apr-24	38,499,675	177,041		1.6280		
28	May-24	42,999,989	409,887		1.7365		
29	Jun-24	43,705,212	383,931		1.9370		
30	Jul-24	48,046,620	440,400		2.1183		
31	Aug-24	47,588,122	384,527		2.1720		
32	Sep-24	45,710,701	484,326		2.0395		
33	Oct-24	38,871,345	484,860		2.0545		
34	Nov-24	37,305,184	358,631		2.5630		
35	Dec-24	40,482,873	280,787		3.5113		
36	Jan-25	38,716,248	280,903		4.5210		
37	Feb-25	34,638,315	208,551		4.4028		
38	Mar-25	37,500,044	117,133		2.9880		
39	TOTAL	494,064,328	4,010,978		\$ 2.6393	\$ -	\$ -

	2024 FUEL VOLUME (MMBTU)		
40	Estimated inc/(dec) to system fuel for 2023	-	Based on expected changes. (Ref Appendix 1, Line 13,
			Col. b)
41	2024 Estimated Fuel	4,010,978	L. 39 + L. 40, Col. b
42	2023 Volume True-Up-inc/(dec)	64,811	L. 65, Col. a
43	2022 Volume True-Up-inc/(dec)	_	L. 61, Col. a
44	TOTAL	4,075,788	L. 41 + L. 42 + L. 43
	2024 FUEL %		
45	2023 Estimated Deliveries (mmbtu) + Anticipated Deliveries	494,064,328	L. 39, Col. a + Appendix 1, Line 13, Col. a
46	2024 % before true-ups	0.81%	L. 41/L. 45
47	True-Up for 2023	0.01%	L. 42/L. 45
48	True-Up for 2022	0.00%	L. 43/L. 45
49	2024 Fuel Recovery Rate	0.82%	L. 46 + L. 47 + L. 48

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC WEST ZONE

EXHIBIT A-1

ANALYSIS OF FUEL RETAINED

	TSIS OF FUEL RETAINED			
	2022 Retainage	Value		
50	Retained for Tracker Year 2021	(1,406,277)	PR10-52-0000, Ex	khibit A-1 West Zone Col. a. L. 53
51	Retained for Tracker Year 2022	14,772,143	L. 13, Col. f - L. 50)
52	Total	13,365,867	L. 13, Col. f	
	2023 Retainage			
53	Retained for Tracker Year 2022	(1,793,110)	L. 13, Col. e - L. 5	1
54	Retained for Tracker Year 2023	7,818,432	L. 26, Col. f + L 39	9, Col. f - L. 53
55	Total	6,025,321	L. 26, Col. f + L 39), Col. F
			·	
ANA	LYSIS OF TRUE-UP	MMBTU	Value	
		[a]	[b]	
	2022 True-up			
56	2022 Actual Fuel		12,979,033	L. 13, Col.e
57	2022 Retained for 2022		14,772,143	L. 51
58	2023 Retained for 2022		(1,793,110)	L. 53
59	Total Retained for 2022		12,979,033	L. 57 + L. 58
60	Remaining value to recover for 2022		_	L. 56 - L. 59
61	Price adjusted volume to apply in 2024 to recover	-		L. 60/ L. 39, Col.d
	remaining value			
	2023 True-up			
62	2023 - 2024 Actual Fuel		7,989,488	L. 26, Col.e + L. 39, Col.e
63	2023 - 2024 Retained for 2023		7,818,432	L. 54
64	Remaining value to recover for 2023		171,056	L. 62 - L. 63
65	Price adjusted volume to apply in 2023 to recover remaining value	64,811		L. 64/ L. 39, Col.d

NOTES:

1-P. 1, Column d prices for Apr 2021 through Feb 2023 are the average of actual Inside FERC ANR-Okla and Panhandle, Tx-Okla prices.

2-P. 2, Column d prices for Mar 2024 through Mar 2025 are NYMEX Henry Hub futures prices less a current basis quote as of Feb 22, 2024.

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

EXHIBIT B

TO

Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services

RATE SUMMARY FOR SECTION 311 FIRM AND INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

In accordance with Section 284.123(b)(2) of the FERC's regulations, as revised by Order No. 714, Transporter hereby provides the following rate summary:

Maximum Rates Per MMBtu

Firm Section 311 East Zone (Demand)	Firm Section 311 West Zone (Demand)	Interruptible Section 311 East Zone (Commodity)	Interruptible Section 311 West Zone (Commodity)
\$0.2155	\$0.1173	\$0.2320	\$0.1300

Minimum Rates Per MMBtu

Firm Section 311 East Zone (Demand)	Firm Section 311 West Zone (Demand)	Interruptible Section 311 East Zone (Commodity)	Interruptible Section 311 West Zone (Commodity)
\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00

Fuel Percentages for April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024

East Zone	West Zone
0.90%	0.59%

Fuel Percentages for April 1, 2024 through March 31, 2025

East Zone	West Zone
1.67%	0.82%

The tariff record reflecting the fuel percentages for the April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024 Fuel Year was approved under the Commission's optional notice procedure in Docket No. PR23-36-000 effective April 1, 2023.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR STATEMENT OF **OPERATING CONDITIONS**

of

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR STATEMENT OF OPERATING CONDITIONS OF ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

DEFINITIONS	1
QUALITY	3
MEASUREMENT AND TESTS	5
WARRANTY AND INDEMNIFICATION	9
FORCE MAJEURE	9
GOVERNMENTAL RULES, REGULATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS	. 11
BILLINGS AND PAYMENT	. 11
CREDITWORTHINESS	. 14
CHOICE OF LAW	. 16
EEOC COMPLIANCE	. 16
MISCELLANEOUS	. 17
DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS	. 17
	QUALITY MEASUREMENT AND TESTS WARRANTY AND INDEMNIFICATION FORCE MAJEURE GOVERNMENTAL RULES, REGULATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS BILLINGS AND PAYMENT CREDITWORTHINESS CHOICE OF LAW EEOC COMPLIANCE MISCELLANEOUS

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. **DEFINITIONS**

In addition to the definitions of terms contained in Transporter's Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services ("SOC"), which are incorporated by reference, and except in those certain instances where the context expressly states another meaning, the following terms, when used in these General Terms and Conditions or in the Statement of Operating Conditions, Contract or other agreement into which these General Terms and Conditions are incorporated, shall have the following meanings:

- A. "Btu" shall mean British Thermal Unit and, where appropriate, shall mean the plural thereof. One (1) Btu shall mean one British Thermal Unit and is defined as the quantity of heat required to raise the temperature of one (1) pound of pure water from fifty-eight & five-tenths (58.5) degrees Fahrenheit to fifty-nine and five-tenths (59.5) degrees Fahrenheit at a constant pressure of fourteen & seventy-three hundredths' pounds per square inch absolute (14.73 psia). The term "MMBtu" shall mean one million (1,000,000) Btu.
- B. "Cubic Foot or Standard Cubic Foot" shall have the meaning ascribed in Section 4.1. The term "Mcf" shall mean one thousand (1,000) standard Cubic Feet of Gas.
- C. "Day" shall mean a period of twenty-four (24) consecutive hours beginning at 9:00 a.m. Central Clock Time.
- "Delivery", "deliver", or "delivered" shall refer to the physical transfer of D. possession of Gas from Transporter to Shipper or Shipper's carrier.
- "Equivalent Quantities" shall mean the sum of the volumes of Gas measured in E. MMBtu received by Transporter for the account of Shipper during any given period of time, reduced by Shipper's share of fuel and adjusted for any variations in Btu content. It is the intent of the parties that the volumes of Gas delivered for the account of Shipper be the thermal equivalent of the volumes of Gas received by Transporter for transportation, as so adjusted.

- F. "Gas" and "Natural Gas" shall mean natural gas as produced in its natural state, whether or not stored or processed prior to receipt or delivery, and that meets the respective quality standards for receipt and delivery contained in Section 2 (Quality).
- G. "Heating Value" shall mean, the number of Btu's produced by the complete combustion, at a constant pressure, of the amount of Gas which would occupy a volume of one (1) Cubic Foot at a temperature of sixty (60) degrees Fahrenheit if saturated with water vapor and at a constant pressure of fourteen and seventy-three hundredths pounds per square inch absolute (14.73 psia) and under standard gravitational force (acceleration 980.655 centimeters per second, per second), with air of the same temperature and pressure as the Gas, when the products of combustion are cooled to the initial temperature of the Gas and air and when the water formed by combustion is condensed to the liquid state; provided, however, if the Gas as received or delivered contains seven (7) pounds of water vapor or less per one million (1,000,000) standard Cubic Feet, such Gas shall be assumed to be dry.
- H. "Month" shall mean a period of time beginning at 9:00 a.m. Central Clock Time on the first (1st) Day of a calendar Month and extending to 9:00 a.m. Central Clock Time on the first (1st) Day of the following calendar Month.
- I. "Normal Operating Range of an Orifice Meter Station" shall mean the flow range from the minimum flowrate of a single meter tube to the maximum combined flowrate of all meter tubes installed in the meter station which does not require an orifice plate change.
- J. "p.s.i.g." shall mean pounds per square inch gauge. "p.s.i.a." shall mean pounds per square inch absolute.
- K. "Receipt", "Receive", or "Received" shall refer to the physical transfer of possession of Gas from Shipper or Shipper's carrier to Transporter.

- L. "Secondary Measurement Equipment" shall mean pressure and temperature sensing and recording equipment.
- M. "Thermal Content" shall mean the aggregate number of Btu contained in that volume, when applied to any volume of Gas.
- O. "Transporter's Internet Web Site" shall mean Transporter's electronically accessible site.

2. QUALITY

- 2.1 Gas tendered to Transporter for transportation must meet the quality specification in this Section 2.1 or such more stringent standards as may be required at any Point(s) of Delivery. Gas received by Transporter and delivered to Shipper under a Contract, including the Statement of Operating Conditions, shall meet the minimum quality specifications below:
 - A. The Gas shall in no event have in excess of seven (7) pounds of water vapor per million (1,000,000) standard Cubic Feet of Gas.
 - B. The Gas shall be free of objectionable liquids and solids and other impurities, including, but not limited to, methanol, and shall be commercially free from dust, gum, gum-forming constituents, free water and other liquids and solids.
 - C. The Gas shall not at any time have an oxygen content in excess of ten (10) parts per million by volume and the parties hereto shall make every reasonable effort to keep the Gas free of oxygen.
 - D. The Gas shall not contain more than one quarter (0.25) grain of hydrogen sulfide per one hundred (100) standard Cubic Feet (four (4) parts per million by volume).
 - E. The Gas shall not contain more than 5 grains of total sulfur (including the sulfur in any hydrogen sulfide and mercaptans) per one hundred (100) standard Cubic Feet.
 - F. The Gas shall not contain mercaptans in excess of one-quarter (.25) grain per one hundred standard Cubic Feet.

- G. The Gas shall not have a carbon dioxide content in excess of two (2) percent by volume.
- H. The Gas shall not contain more than three (3) percent nitrogen by volume.
- I. The Gas shall have a total heating value per Cubic Foot of not less than nine hundred seventy-five (975) Btu or more than one thousand eighty (1,080) Btu.
- J. The Gas shall not have a hydrocarbon dew point of more than forty (40) degrees Fahrenheit (the hydrocarbon dew point shall be calculated at 600 psig).
- K. The Gas shall be received at a temperature not in excess of one hundred twenty (120) degrees Fahrenheit and not less than forty (40) degrees Fahrenheit.
- L. The Gas must be interchangeable with the Gas in Transporter's system at the Point(s) of Receipt.
- 2.2 If, at any time, Gas tendered for receipt shall fail to conform to any of the quality specifications set forth above, Transporter may, at its Reasonable Discretion, refuse to accept receipt of such Gas. Transporter shall notify Shipper of the deficiency as soon as possible after its occurrence. Such notice may be by any reasonable means, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, facsimile transmission and/or telephone, including voice messages. Transporter may elect to bill Shipper for all further costs for related Gas testing to confirm that any such deficiency has been corrected.
- 2.3 Transporter has the right to charge Shipper for all costs and expenses, including but not limited to, costs related to clean up and/or remediation, associated with the receipt of Gas that does not conform with the quality specifications for Gas to be received by Transporter as set forth in this Section.
- 2.4 Transporter's acceptance of non-conforming Gas without invoking its rights set forth in Sections 2.2 or 2.3 shall not constitute any continuing waiver of Transporter's rights to require compliance or application of Transporter's rights as set forth herein.

3. MEASUREMENT AND TESTS

The measurement of Gas at the Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery shall be in accordance with the following provisions:

- 3.1 For all of the purposes of the SOC, a standard Cubic Foot of Gas shall be that quantity which occupies one Cubic Foot of space at a temperature of sixty (60) degrees Fahrenheit and at a pressure of fourteen and seventy-three hundredths (14.73) pounds per square inch absolute. The volumes of Gas received and delivered hereunder shall be measured and computed in accordance with methods prescribed by the American Gas Association. Installation of new measurement facilities, whether by Transporter or Shipper, shall be in accordance with the latest and approved version of the applicable American Gas Association's standards.
- 3.2 The total heating value of the Gas in Btu per Cubic Foot and the specific gravity received and delivered hereunder shall be determined from a sample of Gas taken by means of a composite sampler, a spot sample, a Gas chromatograph, or any other method in general use in the Gas industry. The recorded average specific gravity to the nearest one thousandth (0.001), obtained while Gas is being received and/or delivered, shall be the applicable specific gravity of Gas for the period under consideration.
- 3.3 Transporter shall make reasonable efforts to collect spot samples from a flowing Gas stream during normal business hours. In the event that Transporter's attempts to coordinate spot sampling are unsuccessful, Transporter shall use the most recently available Gas sample information.
- 3.4 Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, may elect to discontinue Gas sampling at Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery that have been continuously inactive for sixty (60) consecutive Days.
- 3.5 If, at any time during the term hereof, a new method or technique is developed with respect to Gas measurement or determination of factors used in such Gas measurement, such new method or technique may, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, be substituted for the Gas measurement method or technique set forth herein.

- 3.6 Transporter may, at its Reasonable Discretion, install computers, transducers and other associated sensing devices to accomplish the accurate measurement of Gas received and/or delivered.
- 3.7 It is recognized that all facilities necessary to measure Gas at Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery have been or will be installed and in operation as of the date of first delivery of Gas to Transporter hereunder. Unless otherwise agreed, Transporter shall install, maintain and operate all facilities and equipment for the accurate measurement of the Gas received, transported and delivered hereunder. Shipper shall have access to the measuring equipment at all reasonable times, but readings, calibrations and adjustments thereof, and changing of charts, shall be done by Transporter unless otherwise agreed.
- 3.8 Upon written permission from Transporter, Shipper may, at its option, install, maintain and operate such new, additional or revised equipment, including check measuring and signal sharing equipment, as it may desire, at its own expense, and provided that such equipment is installed so as not to interfere with the custody measurement equipment of Transporter. Equipment installed by Shipper and not authorized in writing by Transporter may be removed by Transporter, at Shipper's expense. Each party shall have the right of access, at all reasonable times when Gas is being received or delivered, to the measuring equipment installed by the other party. The calibrating and adjusting of Transporter's measuring equipment and changing of meter charts on Transporter's meters shall be done only by Transporter and the calibrating and adjusting of Shipper's measuring equipment and changing of meter charts on its check meters shall be performed only by Shipper. Transporter, upon written request by Shipper, or Shipper, upon request by Transporter, shall mail or deliver to the other all meter charts and/or records used in measurement of Gas received and delivered hereunder during any specified period for which charts and/or records are required to be retained as hereinafter provided, but such charts and/or records shall be mailed or returned to Transporter or Shipper, as the case may be, within thirty (30) Days after their receipt. Transporter's Check Measurement Agreement form shall be available upon request.

- 3.9 Each party shall have the right to be present at the time of any scheduled installation, testing, cleaning, changing, repairing, inspection, calibration or adjusting of measuring equipment of the other party used in measurement of Gas received and delivered hereunder.
- 3.10 All measuring equipment shall be installed in such a manner as to permit an accurate determination of the quantity of Gas received or delivered and ready verification of the accuracy of measurement. The parties shall exercise reasonable care in the installation, maintenance and operation of check measuring, pressure regulating equipment, Gas compressors or other related equipment so as to prevent inaccuracy in the determination of the quantity of Gas being measured. Shipper shall control flow rates such that measurement of the Gas quantity is within the Normal Operating Range of the Orifice Meter Station. Transporter shall size the orifice plate such that the flow-dependent average monthly flow rate falls within the Normal Operating Range of the Orifice Meter Station. In its Reasonable Discretion, Transporter may elect to not provide volumetric adjustments pursuant to Section 3.13 for flow exceeding the differential pressure instrument's range or for flows resulting in damage to orifice plates. When Transporter determines that pulsation problems or other measurement inaccuracies exist, in addition to any remedies otherwise available to it, Transporter shall have the right to require Shipper or other third parties to install and continuously operate and maintain pulsation dampening equipment and/or to regulate Gas flows in a manner which would prevent or eliminate such problems or inaccuracies within thirty (30) business Days of notification by Transporter. Following notice to the affected parties and pending the correction of the problem, measurement based on charts or meters at any such affected points for system operating purposes shall be made in a manner which reasonably adjusts or compensates for the inaccuracy identified.
- 3.11 The accuracy of the measuring equipment at each Point(s) of Receipt and each Point(s) of Delivery shall be verified at intervals not exceeding one (1) year and at such other times as may be requested by Shipper or Transporter, and if any such verification shall be requested by Shipper or Transporter and the measuring equipment is found to measure Gas quantities within two percent (2%) accuracy, the expense of such verification shall be borne by the party requesting verification.

- 3.12 Transporter may elect to discontinue regular verification of measurement equipment accuracy at Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery that have been continuously inactive for sixty (60) Days. Following the discontinuation of measurement equipment accuracy verification at a Point of Receipt or Point of Delivery, Shipper must provide three (3) business Days' notice prior to Transporter's subsequent receipt or delivery of Gas at such Point of Receipt or Point of Delivery.
- 3.13 If, upon test, the measuring equipment measures Gas quantities within two percent (2%) accuracy at any Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery, previous readings of such equipment after the last preceding test shall be considered correct, but the equipment shall be adjusted to record accurately. However, even if the inaccuracy is less than two percent (2%), if the volume discrepancy is quantifiable and exceeds 250 MMBtu, the volumes shall be adjusted appropriately. If, at the Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery, upon any test, the measuring equipment measures Gas quantities with an inaccuracy requiring adjustment, or if at any time the measuring equipment should be out of service or not registering, Gas received or delivered through the period during which the measuring equipment was registering inaccurately or was out of service or not registering shall be estimated and agreed upon by use of the first of the following methods which may be applicable:
 - A. By using the registration of any check measuring equipment installed by either party if registering accurately; or
 - B. By computing error if percentage of error is ascertainable by calibration, test or mathematical calculation; or
 - C. By estimating the quantity received or delivered and/or its thermal content by reference to actual receipts or deliveries during preceding periods under similar conditions when the measuring equipment was registering accurately. If the period during which the measuring equipment at the Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery had been registering inaccurately or had been out of service or not registering is not definitely known or agreed upon, correction shall be made for the last half of the time elapsed since the measuring equipment was previously tested

and found to accurately measure Gas within two percent (2%). All corrections made as above provided shall be made to zero error.

3.14 The charts and/or records from the measuring equipment shall remain the property of the party owning the measuring equipment and shall be kept on file for a period of not less than two (2) years.

4. WARRANTY AND INDEMNIFICATION

4.1 Each party hereby warrants to the other that at the time of receipt or delivery of Gas hereunder, it will have the right to receive or deliver, as the case may be, such Gas, and that such Gas shall be free and clear of all liens and adverse claims; and each party agrees, with respect to the Gas received or delivered by it, to indemnify the other party against all suits, actions, debts, accounts, damages, costs (including reasonable attorney fees), losses and expenses arising from or out of any adverse claim of any and all persons to or against said Gas while that party has responsibility for the Gas.

5. FORCE MAJEURE

- 5.1 In the event of either party being rendered unable, wholly or in part, by reason of force majeure to carry out its obligations under the Contract (other than the obligation to make payment of amounts due hereunder), it is agreed that such party shall give notice and reasonably full particulars of such force majeure by electronic mail, facsimile transmission or in writing to the other party within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the cause relied on, and the obligations of the party giving such notice, so far as they are affected by such force majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of any inability so caused, but for no longer period, and such cause shall, so far as possible, be remedied with all reasonable dispatch.
- 5.2 The parties' obligations hereunder shall also be suspended during the continuance of any force majeure situation to the extent such force majeure conditions prevent delivery of Gas for Shipper's account.
- 5.3 The term, "force majeure", as employed herein shall mean acts of God; strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances; conditions arising from a change in governmental laws,

orders, rules, or regulations; acts of public enemy; wars; blockades; insurrections; riots; epidemics; landslides; lightning; earthquakes; fires; storms; floods; washouts; arrests and restraints of governments and people; civil disturbances; explosions; breakage or accident to machinery or lines of pipe; the necessity for making repairs, tests, alterations, or performing maintenance to machinery or lines of pipe; freezing of wells or lines of pipe; partial or entire failure of wells or treating facilities; and any other causes, whether of the kind herein enumerated or otherwise, not within the control of the party claiming suspension, and which by the exercise of due diligence, such party is unable to prevent or overcome. Such term shall likewise include: (a) those instances where either Transporter or Shipper is required to obtain servitudes, rights-of-way, grants, permits or licenses to enable such party to fulfill its obligations under the Contract; the inability of such party to acquire or the delays on the part of such party in acquiring, at reasonable costs, and after the exercise of reasonable diligence, such servitudes, rights-of-way, grants, permits, or licenses, and (b) those instances where either Transporter or Shipper is required to furnish materials and supplies for the purpose of constructing or maintaining facilities or is required to secure permits or permissions from any governmental agency to enable such party to fulfill its obligations under the Contract, the inability of such party to acquire, or the delays on the part of such party in acquiring, at reasonable costs, and after the exercise of reasonable diligence, such material and supplies, permits and permissions.

- 5.4 It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes or lockouts shall be entirely within the discretion of the party having the difficulty, and that the above requirement that any force majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall not require the settlement of strikes or lockouts by acceding to the demands of the opposing party when such course is inadvisable in the discretion of the party having the difficulty.
- 5.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is specifically understood and agreed by the parties hereto that force majeure shall in no way terminate the parties' obligations to balance those volumes of Gas received and delivered hereunder.

6. GOVERNMENTAL RULES, REGULATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS

- 6.1 This Statement of Operating Conditions is subject to all valid orders, laws, rules and regulations of duly constituted governmental authorities having jurisdiction or control over the parties, their facilities or Gas supplies, this Statement of Operating Conditions or any provisions hereof. If at any time during the period of transportation of Gas hereunder, any such governmental authority shall take or threaten to take any action, directly or indirectly, whereby the receipt, transportation and delivery of Gas as contemplated hereunder shall be proscribed or possibly subjected to terms, conditions, restraints or regulations, including without limitation by enumeration, rate or price controls or ceilings that, in the sole judgment of the party affected, would be adverse or unduly burdensome to that party, such party may, upon written notice, cancel and terminate the Contract, including the Statement of Operating Conditions, without further liability hereunder except for payment for services provided hereunder prior to such cancellation and termination.
- 6.2 The parties agree to timely file and prosecute all applications, statements and notices with any governmental regulatory authority having appropriate and applicable jurisdiction.

7. BILLINGS AND PAYMENT

- 7.1 On or about the tenth (10th) Day of each Month after delivery of Gas has commenced hereunder, Transporter shall render to Shipper a statement for the preceding Month setting forth the total quantity of Gas, and the Btu content thereof, at the Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery which was received and delivered, respectively, the amount due Transporter by Shipper for the transportation or other applicable services performed hereunder and such other information sufficient to explain and support any adjustments made by Transporter in determining the amount billed.
- 7.2 Shipper shall pay Transporter the amount due on the later of the twenty-fifth (25th) Day of the Month following the Month of production or (i) fifteen (15) Days after the date of the invoice described in Section 8.1; or (ii) fifteen (15) Days after the date of any other invoice Transporter renders. In the event Shipper fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter will assess, and Shipper shall pay an interest charge equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) per Month on the unpaid balance. Further, in the event Shipper

fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter may, in its Reasonable Discretion, suspend all transportation of Gas pursuant to Section 7.6.

- 7.3 Under Firm Contracts for which demand charges are applicable, Transporter will submit an invoice to Shipper for demand charges during the Month preceding the Month to which such demand charges apply. Payment of such invoices shall be due on the latter of (i) the 25th day of the Month in which such invoice is received or (ii) fifteen (15) Days after the receipt of the invoice (the "Demand Payment Date"). Shipper shall pay the full amount of the demand charges set forth on the invoice on or before the Demand Payment Date. In the event that Shipper does not make timely payment of demand charges on or before the Demand Payment Date as required by this Section 7.3, Transporter may exercise all of its rights available at law and pursuant to the Firm Contract. In the event Shipper fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter will assess, and Shipper shall pay an interest charge equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) per Month on the unpaid balance.
- All parties hereto shall have the right at any and all reasonable times to examine the books 7.4 and records of the other party to the extent necessary to verify the accuracy of any statement, charge, computation or demand made under or pursuant to a Contract, including the Statement of Operating Conditions. The parties agree to schedule such audits in advance and at mutually agreeable times. Within thirty (30) Days following any such audit, the auditing party shall notify the audited party of the results of such audit and specifically, whether the accuracy of any statement, charge, computation or demand will be challenged. Such books and records shall be kept for not less than two (2) years following the month the charge was billed or the credit issued ("Exception Period"). All charges and credits shall be conclusively deemed to be correct and accurate unless written exception is taken to specific charges or credits within the Exception Period. All charges and credits beyond the Exception Period and not subject to written exception are considered final and not subject to review or adjustment with regard to any such statement, charge, computation or demand was made under or pursuant to a Contract, including the SOC. In the event the examination of either party's records requires disclosure of confidential third-party agreements, the auditing party shall use the services of an independent third-party auditor

who shall be required to keep the terms of such third-party agreements confidential and shall disclose confidential information only to the extent necessary to render the audit. Any requested disclosure of confidential information to the auditing party must be submitted to the audited party for approval. The cost of any independent third-party auditor shall be borne by the auditing party.

- 7.5 Shipper agrees to reimburse Transporter for all taxes that may be levied upon and/or paid by Transporter based on additional tax requirements imposed or implemented on or after the date the rates set forth in Exhibit B to this Statement of Operating Conditions became effective, with respect to the transportation services rendered hereunder.
- 7.6 If Shipper in good faith disputes any amount billed hereunder, Shipper shall not be required to pay interest in accordance with Sections 7.2 and 7.3 on any such amount that is ultimately determined to be in error; provided, however, interest shall be due if such amount billed is found not to be in error. Shipper shall pay when due the full amount of the invoice, including the amount in dispute, and Transporter shall refund with interest any disputed amount that ultimately is determined to be in error. If Shipper fails to pay any amount due hereunder, Transporter may, in addition to exercising any other rights it may have under the Contract, under the SOC, at law, or in equity, suspend service, including deliveries of Gas, subject to Transporter providing forty-eight (48) hours written notice of such intention to suspend. Transporter may, without waiving any other rights or remedies it may have, withhold further delivery until such payment or security is received or take whatever steps it deems necessary, in its sole judgment, to insure that non-payment of invoices by Shipper does not occur, including but not limited to, termination of Shipper's Contract. In the event Transporter pursues collection on late payment, Shipper shall be liable for any and all expenses and costs, including court costs and reasonable attorney fees, incurred as a result of such failure to timely pay.
- 7.7 Transporter may set off any amount owed by Transporter to Shipper under any Contract(s) against the amount owed by Transporter or any affiliate of Transporter under any Contract(s) and any other agreements.

8. CREDITWORTHINESS

- 8.1 To establish and maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, Shipper shall maintain an investment grade credit rating, and Shipper shall otherwise demonstrate to Transporter's satisfaction the ability to meet its financial obligations hereunder. An "investment grade credit rating" means a long-term senior unsecured non-credit enhanced debt rating of: at least BBB- from Standard & Poor's Rating Group (a division of McGraw-Hill Inc.) or its successor ("S&P") or "Baa3" from Moody's Investor Services, Inc. or its successor ("Moody's"), in either case with a short-term and long-term outlook or credit watch of stable or positive. If Shipper is rated by S&P and Moody's, the lower credit rating will apply.
- 8.2 Transporter shall not be required to commence service or to continue to provide service under a Contract with any Shipper that:
 - A. Is or has become insolvent;
 - B. Has voluntarily commenced a case or proceeding or the filing of any petition under any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law seeking dissolution, liquidation or reorganization or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator for itself or a substantial portion of its property, assets or business; or to effect a plan or other arrangement with its creditors; or has filed an answer admitting the jurisdiction of the court and the material allegations of any involuntary petition filed against it in any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar case or proceeding, has been adjudicated as bankrupt, has made a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or has consented to, or acquiesced in the appointment of, a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator for itself or a substantial portion of its property, assets or business or has taken corporate action for the purpose of effectuating any of the foregoing; or
 - C. Has been the subject of the commencement of involuntary proceedings or the filing of an involuntary petition against Shipper under any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law seeking the dissolution, liquidation, or reorganization of Shipper, or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator for Shipper, or of a

substantial part of the property, assets or business of Shipper, or the issuance or levy of any writ, judgment, warrant or attachment, execution or similar process against a substantial part of the property, assets, or business of Shipper; or

- D. Fails to establish and maintain creditworthiness with Transporter; or
- E. Fails to provide Adequate Assurances.
- 8.3 If Shipper fails to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, Shipper may be required by Transporter to provide adequate assurances. "Adequate Assurances" shall mean a cash prepayment, a guaranty or an irrevocable standby letter of credit, from a financial institution in a form acceptable to Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion, as may be requested by Transporter, in an amount equal to three (3) Months of service at the full Maximum Daily Quantity (or, for interruptible Shippers, an amount equal to three (3) Months of estimated service based on historical or projected usage, as determined by Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion), plus any other required monthly fees, plus an amount equal to the highest imbalance payment accrued in one (1) Month during the previous twelve (12) consecutive Months. Shipper must deliver to Transporter the Adequate Assurances within three (3) business Days of receipt of Transporter's written request, make payment in full within three (3) business Days of receipt of Transporter's written request for all amounts due from Shipper under any Contract(s) and any other agreements between Transporter and Shipper including netting arrangements, and maintain such Adequate Assurances until Shipper can establish creditworthiness with Transporter. If Shipper fails to provide Adequate Assurances upon request, Transporter may, in addition to exercising any other rights it may have under the Contract, under the SOC, at law, or in equity, immediately suspend service, including deliveries of Gas.
- 8.4 In the event that Transporter agrees to construct new facilities or to expand or extend its existing facilities and Shipper has agreed pursuant to Section 7.9 of this SOC to pay a facilities charge to defray the cost of such facilities, and regardless of whether Shipper is deemed "creditworthy" within the meaning of GT&C Section 8.1, Transporter may require additional Adequate Assurances in a form, amount, for a term and from an issuer all as reasonably acceptable to Transporter and as agreed to by the parties in a request for

service. Adequate Assurances for such new construction, expansion or extension may be in addition to, and shall not be limited to, amounts equal to three months of service at Shipper's full Maximum Daily Quantity or estimated service charges as described in GT&C Section 8.3 above.

9. CHOICE OF LAW

9.1 The interpretation and performance under Shipper's Contract, and the Statement of Operating Conditions and these General Terms and Conditions shall be in accordance with the laws of the State of Oklahoma, excluding any conflict of law principle that might refer such interpretation and performance to the laws of another jurisdiction. With respect to any cause of action associated directly or indirectly with the terms and conditions of a Contract and the Statement of Operating Conditions, the parties agree and consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal or state courts sitting in the State of Oklahoma, and acknowledge proper venue to be in either state or federal court located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, and hereby waive any defenses or objections thereto; provided, however, that Transporter may agree to permit a court with jurisdiction to decide venue as to a specific matter or matters.

10. EEOC COMPLIANCE

10.1 To the extent applicable, each party hereby respectively warrants that it is in compliance with, and during the term hereof will remain in compliance with, all applicable laws, executive orders and acts concerning equal opportunity employment and wage and hours regulations.

11. MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 As between the parties hereto, Shipper shall be deemed to be in exclusive control and in possession of the Gas prior to such Gas being received hereunder by Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt and responsible for any damages, losses or injuries caused thereby, except for injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Transporter. After Shipper delivers or causes Gas to be delivered to Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt, Transporter shall be deemed to be in exclusive control and possession of such Gas, and responsible for any injuries or damages

caused thereby, until it is redelivered to Shipper or for the account of Shipper at the Point(s) of Delivery, except injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Shipper following such redelivery. At the Point(s) of Delivery, Shipper shall thereafter be deemed to be in exclusive control and possession of such Gas and responsible for any injuries or damages caused thereby, except injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Transporter.

12. DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS

12.1 The descriptive headings of the provisions of Shipper's Contract and of this SOC, including these General Terms and Conditions are formulated and used for convenience only and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any such provision.

FERC rendition of the electronically filed tariff records in Docket No. PR24-00053-001 Filing Data: CID: C000960 Filing Title: Metadata filing 4-19-24 Company Filing Identifier: 450 Type of Filing Code: 1350 Associated Filing Identifier: 449 Tariff Title: Transportation SOC Databse Tariff ID: 3 Payment Confirmation: Suspension Motion: N

Tariff Record Data: Record Content Description, Tariff Record Title, Record Version Number, Option Code: Tariff, Enable Oklahoma Storage Statement of Operating Conditions, 0.0.34, A Record Narative Name: Revised Transportation SOC - Petition for Section 311 Rate Approval (Settlement) Tariff Record ID: 11 Tariff Record Collation Value: 8388608 Tariff Record Parent Identifier: 0 Proposed Date: 2024-04-01 Priority Order: 600 Record Change Type: Change Record Content Type: 1 Associated Filing Identifier: 449

Clean SOC

STATEMENT OF OPERATING CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

of

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

(filed in compliance with 18 C.F.R. Part 284)

February 28, 2024

<u>eTariff Information</u>: Tariff Subscriber: **Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC** FERC Tariff Program Name: FERC NGPA Gas Tariff Tariff Title: Transportation SOC database Tariff Record Proposed Effective Date: April 1, 2024 Tariff Record Title: Tariff, Enable Transportation Statement of Operating Conditions Option Code: A Other Information: Revised SOC

STATEMENT OF

OPERATING CONDITIONS OF

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

IN COMPLIANCE WITH 18 C.F.R. PART 284

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC (hereinafter "Enable" or "Transporter"), an intrastate pipeline operating within the State of Oklahoma, will engage in the transportation of natural gas pursuant to Section 311(a)(2) of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 and pursuant to applicable regulations of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission on the following terms and conditions:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	DEFINITIONS	.2
2.	AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE	.4
3.	APPLICABILITY AND CHARACTER OF SERVICE	.5

4.	CURTAILMENT AND PRIORITY OF SERVICE	8
5.	VALID REQUESTS FOR SERVICE	9
6.	TERM	11
7.	RATES AND CHARGES	12
8.	NOMINATIONS, IMBALANCES AND SYSTEM OPERATIONS ORDERS	14
9.	OPERATING CONDITIONS	20
10.	DETERMINATION OF RECEIPTS AND DELIVERIES	21
11.	MISCELLANEOUS	22

FIRM AND INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

1. **DEFINITIONS**

In addition to the definitions of terms contained in the attached General Terms ("General Terms and Conditions"), and except where the context expressly states another meaning, the following terms, when used herein, shall have the following meanings:

- A. "Applicable Regulations" shall mean those regulations promulgated by FERC pursuant to Section 311(a)(2) of the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 ("Section 311"), or other authority, including regulations at 18 C.F.R. Part 284, applicable to transportation under Section 311, as such regulations may be amended from time to time.
- **B.** "Central Clock Time" shall mean Central Standard Time or Central Daylight Savings Time, as applicable in Oklahoma.
- **C.** "Contract" or "Shipper's Contract" shall mean a service agreement for the transportation of Natural Gas between Transporter and Shipper, as such agreement may be amended from time to time.
- **D.** "Daily Imbalance" shall mean the daily volumetric variance between net receipts and allocated deliveries, adjusted for System Fuel.
- **E.** "Daily Index Penalty Percentage" shall mean the percentage obtained by referencing the Daily Imbalance percentage in the table included in Section 8.

- **F.** "East Daily Index Price" shall mean the arithmetic average of the applicable midpoint prices quoted for deliveries to Transporter in the Daily Price Surveys published by Gas Daily for the applicable Day of Gas flow and for (1) NGPL, Texok zone and (2) Enable Gas Transmission, East. Should one or both of such surveys no longer be published, Transporter will determine an acceptable substitute source or sources for such Daily Price Survey(s), as closely comparable as possible to that previously used. Transporter will post such new source(s) on Transporter's Internet Web Site.
- G. "East Zone" shall include all Transporter's facilities on or directly interconnected with (1) Transporter's Line 111 located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Sasakwa compressor station located in Section 1, 5N-6E in Seminole County, Oklahoma, (2) Transporter's Line 114 located East and/or downstream of Prague Junction in Section 36, T13N-R5E, Lincoln County, Oklahoma (3) Transporter's Lines 7 and 18, located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Noble interconnect with Williams Natural Gas located in Section 10, T21N-R2W, Noble County, Oklahoma, 4) Transporter's Line 1 located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Pink Compressor Station in Section 8, T9N-R2E, Pottawatomie County, Oklahoma and (5) Transporter's Line 22 located East and/or downstream of Transporter's Comanche Tie Compressor Station located in Section 23, T4N-R6W, Grady County, Oklahoma.
- **H.** "FERC" shall mean the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or any successor agency or governmental authority having jurisdiction under Section 311.
- I. "Point(s) of Delivery" shall mean the point(s) at which Transporter delivers Gas on Shipper's behalf.
- J. "Point(s) of Receipt" shall mean the point(s) at which Shipper delivers Gas to the Transporter for transport to a Point of Delivery.
- **K.** "Shipper" shall mean any person or entity who has requested Transporter to transport Natural Gas on behalf of an eligible person or entity and any person who

has entered into a valid Contract with Transporter for the transportation of Natural Gas.

L. "SOC" shall mean this Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services together with the attached General Terms and Conditions, which are fully incorporated by reference herein.

M. "Reasonable Discretion" shall mean Enable's discretion exercised in a reasonable and non-discriminatory manner.

- N. "System Fuel" shall mean mainline compression fuel plus lost and unaccounted for Gas on Transporter's System. Such System Fuel will be calculated pursuant to the Fuel Tracker set forth in Exhibit A hereto.
- **O.** "Transporter" shall mean Enable, an intrastate pipeline company operating within the State of Oklahoma which provides transportation service pursuant to the Applicable Regulations.
- P. "Transporter's System" shall mean the pipeline facilities, including appurtenant facilities, owned, leased, or operated by Transporter within the State of Oklahoma.
- Q. "West Daily Index Price" shall mean the arithmetic average of the applicable midpoint prices quoted for deliveries to Transporter in the Daily Price Surveys published by Gas Daily for the applicable Day of Gas flow and for (1) ANR, Okla. and (2) Panhandle, Tx. Okla. Should one or both of such surveys be no longer published, Transporter will determine an acceptable substitute source or sources for such Daily Price Survey(s), as closely comparable as possible to that previously used. Transporter will post such new source(s) on Transporter's Internet Web Site.
- **R.** "West Zone" shall include all portions of the Transporter's System that have not been designated as the East Zone.

2. **AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE**

- 2.1 Transportation service by Transporter is available for any Shipper to the extent that:
 - (1) Capacity is available on Transporter's System;
 - Shipper (a) makes a valid request for service, including documentation to (2)demonstrate its creditworthiness to the satisfaction of Transporter in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.G, and (b) executes a Contract with Transporter applicable to service; and
 - Said service complies with the terms and conditions of this Statement of (3) Operating Conditions.
- 2.2 For the purpose of determining the availability of service in processing requests received pursuant to Section 5, Transporter shall not be required to grant any requests for transportation service:
 - (1)Which could, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, impair Transporter's Firm or Interruptible Service arrangements, jeopardize the integrity of Transporter's System, interfere with the efficient operation of its system or be detrimental to Transporter's compression, storage or other operations;
 - Which would require the construction, modification, expansion, or (2)acquisition of any facilities; provided, however, Transporter may agree, in its Reasonable Discretion, to construct, modify, expand, or acquire facilities to enable it to perform such service;
 - If Transporter determines in accordance with Section 9 (Creditworthiness) (3) of the General Terms and Conditions that Shipper is not creditworthy; or
 - If Shipper's Contract has expired and no replacement or rollover (4) agreement has been executed.
- 2.3 Nothing within this Section 2 is intended to control the interruption or curtailment of service once a request for service has been granted pursuant to Section 5 and while a Contract is in effect.

3. APPLICABILITY AND CHARACTER OF SERVICE

- 3.1 Section 311 transportation service provided under this Statement of Operating Conditions shall be performed under Subpart C of Part 284 of the Applicable Regulations ("Subpart C"). This Statement of Operating Conditions and any Contract covering the transportation of Natural Gas thereunder shall be subject to the provisions of Subpart C.
- 3.2 Firm Transportation Service. Transporter may contract for and provide firm transportation for either intrastate or Section 311 service. (A firm transportation contract between Transporter and Shipper will be referenced herein as a "Firm Contract" and a Shipper that has entered into a Firm Contract will be referenced as a "Firm Shipper".) Firm transportation service ("Firm Service") shall mean transportation service that: is provided on a firm basis; is not subject to a prior claim by another customer or another class of service; and receives the same priority as firm service under any other Firm Contract in that it has the highest priority of transportation service offered by Transporter as set forth in Section 4. Transporter shall provide the Firm Service subject to the provisions of the Firm Contract between Transporter and Shipper, including the maximum daily quantity ("MDQ") specified therein, and the provisions of this SOC. Transporter may interrupt service hereunder whenever Shipper fails to comply with any provision of this SOC or of Shipper's currently effective Firm Contract(s). Transporter shall have the right to waive any one or more specific defaults by Shipper; provided, however, that no such waiver shall operate or be construed as a waiver of any other existing or future default or defaults, whether of a like or different character.
- 3.3 Interruptible Transportation Service. Transporter may contract for and provide interruptible transportation for either intrastate or Section 311 service. (An interruptible transportation contract between Transporter and Shipper will be referenced herein as an "Interruptible Contract" and a Shipper that has entered into an Interruptible Contract will be referenced as an "Interruptible Shipper"). Interruptible transportation service ("Interruptible Service") shall mean service that is subject to interruption at any time by Transporter, without liability as set forth herein, and shall have the priority as specified in Section 4. Transporter shall provide the Interruptible Service on an interruptible basis subject to the provisions of the Interruptible Contract between Transporter and Shipper,

including the MDQ specified therein, and the provisions of this SOC. Interruptible Service shall be provided by Transporter on a ratable basis in accordance with Section 8 hereof. Transporter may interrupt service hereunder whenever Shipper fails to comply with any provision of this SOC or of Shipper's currently effective Interruptible Contract(s). Transporter shall have the right to waive any one or more specific defaults by Shipper; provided, however, that no such waiver shall operate or be construed as a waiver of any other existing or future default or defaults, whether of a like or different character. In addition, Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, may interrupt service if it deems such interruption necessary due to operating conditions or system requirements or to assure that Transporter can render service to its other customers according to the priorities of Section 4.

- 3.4 **Maximum Daily Quantity**. Upon delivery by Shipper of Gas to the Point(s) of Receipt specified under Shipper's Contract, Transporter shall receive such Gas and deliver on a firm or interruptible basis thermally equivalent quantities of such Gas for the account of Shipper to the Point(s) of Delivery up to the MDQ specified in Shipper's Contract, after deducting System Fuel from the volume received by Transporter. Transporter's obligation to receive and deliver the Gas tendered by Shipper is subject to the physical capacity and operating constraints of Transporter's System, including, but not limited to, the Gas quality specifications set forth in Section 2 of the General Terms and Conditions.
- 3.5 Shipper shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold Transporter harmless from and against any and all losses, damages, or expenses of every kind and character that Shipper or Transporter may suffer, sustain, or be liable for as a result of any interruption of service pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof; provided, however, that this provision shall not apply to losses, damages, or expenses attributable to gross negligence on the part of Transporter.
- 3.6 Transportation Service hereunder shall consist of the acceptance by Transporter of Natural Gas tendered or delivered by Shipper for transportation at the Point(s) of Receipt specified in the Contract, the transportation of that Natural Gas through Transporter's System, and the delivery of equivalent quantities of Natural Gas (less any reductions

permitted under the Contract or this SOC) by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at the Point(s) of Delivery specified in the Contract. Transporter shall not be required to accept any Gas tendered or delivered by Shipper in excess of the maximum daily quantity specified in the Contract.

4. CURTAILMENT AND PRIORITY OF SERVICE

- 4.1 Service hereunder on all or any portion of Transporter's System may be allocated at the first of the Month or curtailed at any time during the Month due to capacity constraints on all or any portion of Transporter's System pursuant to the following provisions:
 - **A.** Firm Shippers shall receive first priority on a pro rata basis based on their nominations up to the MDQ set forth in their respective Firm Contracts.
 - **B.** Interruptible Shippers paying a higher unit rate per MMBtu shall receive a higher priority than Interruptible Shippers paying a lower unit rate. If, at the first of the Month, Transporter is required to allocate or, at any time during the Month, Transporter is required to curtail Interruptible Shippers because of changes in available capacity at any time, Transporter shall allocate or curtail as follows:

(1) Transporter shall, upon written or telephonic notice or notice given in person, refuse, curtail or interrupt service being provided under any Interruptible Contract to enable Transporter to provide or continue service to a Firm Shipper or another Shipper that is paying a higher unit rate per MMBtu. Transporter shall provide any Interruptible Shipper whose service is being subordinated by another Interruptible Shipper the right to bid for capacity through payment of a higher unit rate (if Section 311 service is involved, such rate may be bid up to the Maximum Interruptible Rate). If Shipper's bid for capacity results in a unit rate per MMBtu equal to or greater than the unit rate per MMBtu generated by service to the other interested Interruptible Shipper, then the Interruptible Shipper making such bid shall retain its priority, provided that priority between Shippers paying the same unit rate per MMBtu shall be determined as indicated below.

(2) If, after the specified bid process described above, volumes tendered for transportation by Interruptible Shippers under their respective Interruptible Contracts still exceed Transporter's ability to receive, transport and redeliver all nominated volumes, Interruptible Shippers paying the same unit rate per MMBtu shall be curtailed on a pro rata basis.

(3) Once capacity has been awarded, in accordance with this Statement of Operating Conditions, an Interruptible Shipper will not be interrupted during the Month due to a change in available capacity caused by a nomination of other Interruptible Shippers; provided however, that Interruptible Shippers are subject to being interrupted if a Firm Shipper submits a revised nomination pursuant to Section 8.1 of this Statement of Operating Conditions.

5. VALID REQUESTS FOR SERVICE

A request for service hereunder shall be valid as of the date received if it contains adequate information with respect to all items specified below, subject to any necessary verification of such information; provided, however, that a request shall not be valid if the service requested does not conform to the terms of this Statement of Operating Conditions or if the data provided are incomplete or not adequately substantiated. Transporter may waive any requirement below if it deems the information unnecessary in a specific case and may request additional information in a specific case if the data provided are, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, inadequate. Transporter shall promptly notify a Shipper whose request is rejected because of failure to submit or substantiate all data specified below or whose request fails to comply with any terms of this Statement of Operating Conditions.

Transporter shall promptly notify Shipper when its request for service is accepted and shall tender a Contract to Shipper for execution. Unless waived by Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, a request for service shall be invalid if Shipper fails to return an executed Contract within thirty (30) Days after such Contract has been tendered by Transporter to Shipper for execution. Requests for transportation service hereunder shall be deemed valid only after Shipper submits to Transporter at Enable Oklahoma Intrastate Transmission, LLC, P.O. Box 24300, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73124-0300, a Transportation Service Request Form, which

Transporter shall make available to any Shipper, via Transporter's Internet Web Site or Shipper may provide such information in letter or tabular form.

- **A. Gas Quantity**. Shipper shall specify an MDQ, stated in MMBtus, to be received from Shipper and transported by Transporter.
- **B. Point(s) of Receipt.** Shipper shall identify the points at which it desires to nominate Gas to be received by Transporter into its facilities. However, Transporter shall retain operational control over receipts into its system, including, but not limited to, the right to require Shipper to comply with all provisions of Section 8. Should Shipper's failure to comply with any provision of Section 8 unreasonably interfere, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, with Transporter's control over its system, then Transporter may, at its option, cease transportation and terminate any relevant agreements, without limitation of Transporter's rights and remedies at law and equity. Shipper shall provide the names or other suitable identification of all entities that are providing Gas transportation service upstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt.
- C. Point(s) of Delivery. Shipper shall identify the point(s) at which it desires Transporter to deliver the Gas. Shipper shall also provide, if requested by Transporter, the names or other suitable identification of all entities transporting the Gas downstream of Transporter.
- **D. Term of Service.** Shipper shall state the date on which service is requested to commence. Transporter shall not be obligated to accept requests if the requested commencement date is more than three (3) Months after the date that the request for service was received by Transporter.
- E. Shipper's Arrangements. Shipper shall provide to Transporter sufficient detail as to Gas supply, intervening transportation or markets to permit Transporter to complete any regulatory or informational reports required under the Applicable Regulations.

- **F. Gas Analysis.** If Shipper is proposing or requesting the construction of new facilities connecting a new source of Gas supply to Transporter's System, Shipper shall submit a Gas analysis, including, but not limited to, test results and analyses for oxygen, carbon dioxide, nitrogen, water content (H₂O) and hydrogen sulfide, for Gas proposed to be received by Transporter. The analyses shall demonstrate that the Gas complies with the quality specifications for Gas to be received by Transporter as set forth in Section 2 (Quality) of the General Terms and Conditions. If Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, determines that additional tests or analyses are required on the Gas, Shipper shall acquire those tests or analyses and submit the results thereof to Transporter. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Shipper shall permit Transporter to perform any tests and analyses that Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, deems necessary.
- **G. Creditworthiness.** In accordance with the provisions of Section 8 (Creditworthiness) of the General Terms and Conditions:

1. Prior to commencing service hereunder, Shipper shall be required to establish creditworthiness with Transporter. Transporter shall not be required to process or review Shipper's request for service until it receives such credit information. After commencing service hereunder, Shipper shall be required to maintain creditworthiness with Transporter.

2. At any time upon request, Shipper shall provide Transporter with information sufficient to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter. Such information may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, bank references and trade references.

3. If Shipper fails to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, Transporter may require Shipper to provide Adequate Assurances; and

4. If Shipper fails to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, or if Shipper fails to provide Adequate Assurances if required, Transporter shall not be required to commence or continue service hereunder.

6. TERM

- 6.1 The term for Firm or Interruptible Service hereunder shall be as set forth in the Shipper's Contract from the effective date of Shipper's Contract. In addition to any termination rights in the Contract, Transporter may also terminate an Interruptible Contract if, among other things:
 - A. Shipper fails to commence transportation service thereunder within three (3)
 Months of the effective date of the Contract;
 - **B.** Shipper fails to tender Gas to Transporter for receipt, transportation and redelivery for any period greater than one hundred eighty (180) consecutive Days; or
 - **C.** Shipper's Interconnect Agreement or Operational Balancing Agreement expires or is terminated.

7. RATES AND CHARGES

Shipper shall pay Transporter each Month hereunder the applicable charge for transportation services, together with such other charges as are identified herein and applicable to such transportation service.

- 7.1 The maximum rates for firm transportation service under Section 311 shall be the applicable maximum demand rate and the applicable maximum commodity rate approved by FERC ("Maximum Firm Rates"). *See* Exhibit B to this Statement of Operating Conditions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Transportation and Shipper may agree to a discount to the maximum demand rate and/or the maximum commodity rate for firm transportation service.
- 7.2 The maximum unit transportation charge for interruptible transportation service under Section 311 shall be the applicable maximum unit rate approved by the FERC for interruptible transportation by Transporter under Section 311 ("Maximum Interruptible Rate"). See Exhibit B to this SOC. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Transporter and

Shipper may agree to a discount to the unit rate to be charged for interruptible transportation.

- 7.3 In Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, Transporter may provide transportation under the Applicable Regulations at a discount from Transporter's applicable Maximum Rates. Nothing herein shall obligate or require, or be construed to obligate or require, Transporter to offer such a discount. Transporter will offer any such discounts in a non-discriminatory manner.
- 7.4 Nothing in this Section shall be construed to modify any provision of Section 4.
- 7.5 Transporter shall invoice the Shipper each Month and the Shipper shall pay all charges applicable to each Contract.
- 7.6 Transporter's Maximum Rates for Section 311 service shall be determined pursuant to Section 284.123(b)(2) of the Applicable Regulations. Prior to approval by the FERC, Shipper shall pay, and Transporter shall be entitled to collect an agreed upon unit rate up to the applicable Maximum Rates for which approval from the FERC has been sought by Transporter, subject to Transporter's obligation to make refunds pursuant to FERC regulations, if necessary.
- 7.7 Transporter reserves the right to file for higher Maximum Rates during the term of the Contract.
- 7.8 Unless otherwise provided for by Shipper's Contract, Shipper shall reimburse Transporter, in kind, an amount equal to the FERC approved zonal fuel percentage(s) for System Fuel times the volumes received by Transporter.

As set forth more fully in Section 7 of the General Terms and Conditions hereto, within fifteen (15) days after the date of any invoice for payment, Shipper shall reimburse Transporter for all fees, including, but not limited to, FERC or other regulatory filing, reporting and application fees, transportation fees, construction costs or other applicable fees that:

(1) Have been paid by Transporter; or

- (2) Were required to be paid by FERC or any other regulatory body; and
- (3) Were applicable to transportation service or other applicable service performed or being performed by Transporter for Shipper.
- 7.9 If Transporter agrees to (i) construct, acquire or modify any facilities, (ii) acquire the right to use facilities by lease, or (iii) contract with a third-party for the provision of upstream or downstream transportation service at the request of Shipper in order to perform transportation service hereunder, Shipper shall pay Transporter the cost of such facilities, lease payments or third-party service agreement payments, including all costs and charges associated therewith. Transporter shall recover such costs, lease payments or third-party service agreement payments or charges associated therewith, from the Shipper requesting Transporter to incur them by means of a separately stated facilities charge or charges to be included in Transporter's monthly invoice.

8. NOMINATIONS, IMBALANCES AND SYSTEM OPERATIONS ORDERS

8.1 Nominations. In accordance with the nomination deadlines set out below, Shipper shall provide to Transporter electronically, via Transporter's Internet Web Site unless otherwise specifically agreed to by Transporter, the nominations of volumes to be received by Transporter from Shipper at each Point(s) of Receipt and the aggregate of such nominations at all Point(s) of Receipt and the nominations of volumes to be delivered by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at each Point(s) of Delivery or pool(s) and the aggregate of all such nominations at all Point(s) of Delivery. Such nominations shall include all information deemed necessary, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, to adequately and correctly confirm, allocate and account for volumes so nominated, including, but not limited to, the number of Days for which the volume is nominated. If the number of Days for which the volume is nominated is not specified by Shipper, the nomination shall be presumed to be for one Day only. Transporter shall maintain a record of such nominations. Any Shipper who fails to provide Transporter with an electronic nomination on or before the nomination deadlines set out below shall be deemed to have nominated no volumes at any Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery; provided, however, that Transporter may, but shall not be obligated or required to, accept nominations from Shipper after the nomination deadlines set out below.

The deadline for nominations will be on or before 11:00 a.m. Central Clock Time on the 2nd working Day prior to the end of the Month preceding the Month in which nominations are to be effective. The nomination will consist of the Transportation Receipt Nomination which shall identify, by Zone, all volumes nominated to be received by Transporter for Shipper or for Shipper's Account and the Transportation Delivery Nomination which shall identify, by Zone, all volumes nominated to be delivered by Transporter for Shipper or for Shipper's Account and the Transportation Delivery Nomination which shall identify, by Zone, all volumes nominated to be delivered by Transporter for Shipper or for Shipper's Account.

All nominations received after the first of the Month must be received by Transporter by 1:00 p.m. Central Clock Time on the Day prior to requested flow. All such nominations shall include all information required by Transporter as set out hereinabove for first of the Month nominations.

Transporter may, but is not required or obligated to, accept:

- Any nomination which exceeds Shipper's maximum daily quantity specified in the Contract, or
- B) Any nomination not submitted via Transporter's Internet Web Site.

Transporter will confirm nominations with the operator(s) of the Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery ("Operator(s)") at downstream pipeline interconnects. Shipper understands and agrees to contact, or cause contact with, the Operator(s) to confirm Shipper's nominations of volumes to be received by Transporter from Shipper at each Point(s) of Receipt and the nominations of volumes to be delivered by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at each Point(s) of Delivery. Transporter will not be obligated to schedule a nomination if the Operator does not confirm such nomination electronically, via Transporter's Internet Web Site, unless Transporter and Operator agree otherwise. Operator confirmations must be made on or before 4:30 p.m. Central Clock Time on the 2nd working Day prior to the end of the Month. All nominations received after the first of the Month must be confirmed by the Operator by 4:30 p.m. Central Time on the business Day prior to requested flow.

Volumes of Gas received by Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt shall conform as closely as possible to the volumes nominated by Shipper at each Point(s) of Receipt and shall be delivered by Shipper to Transporter at hourly rates of flow that are as nearly as practicable uniform throughout the Day. Subject to Transporter's operating conditions and contractual requirements, volumes delivered by Transporter to Shipper or for Shipper's account at the Point(s) of Delivery shall conform as closely as possible to the volumes nominated by Shipper for delivery at Transporter's Point(s) of Delivery, less any deductions for System Fuel, and any provision for imbalance corrections, except that Transporter may conform such volumes to Shipper's volumes delivered at Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt less any deduction for System Fuel and any provision for imbalance corrections. Transporter may temporarily interrupt receipts and/or deliveries at any time and from time to time, in accordance with: 1) the provisions of Section 4, 2) due to Transporter's operating conditions, 3) system requirements or 4) system operations orders.

8.2 (a) Imbalances. Transporter shall maintain an imbalance account for each Shipper by Contract and by the applicable zone, which reflects, for any given Month, total volumes received, delivered and retained, previous and new imbalance positions, and any other information deemed necessary and appropriate by Transporter. Transporter may provide Shipper with notice of imbalances on Transporter's Internet Web Site, by electronic mail, by facsimile transmission, or in writing.

Actual receipts and deliveries must balance daily with nominated receipts and deliveries, respectively, and nominated receipts, less any deductions for System Fuel and any provision for imbalance corrections, shall equal nominated deliveries. Transporter shall inform Shipper when daily receipts and deliveries are not in balance and require Shipper to take such action as is necessary to balance on a daily basis.

Volumes to be received or delivered to resolve all or any portion of a then-existing imbalance will be specifically designated as balancing volumes. Shippers within the same Zone (East or West) may also correct imbalances by sales or purchases from each other's contracts within the same Zone. For example, a Shipper that is long in the West

Zone may nominate and sell all or a portion of its long position to a Shipper that is short in the West Zone.

Transporter may apply volumes first received or delivered (as the case may be) if Transporter so elects, in its Reasonable Discretion, to offset Shipper's then-existing imbalance, but only upon notice to Shipper.

(b) Penalties. Transporter may advise Shipper of a specific action regarding daily imbalances to be taken if deemed necessary by Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion. In the event Transporter requires Shipper to take specific action, Transporter shall notify Shipper thereof at a time and in a manner that is reasonable under the existing or expected conditions. Transporter may post notices of the required action on Transporter's Internet Web Site and shall make reasonable efforts to notify the employee(s) of Shipper responsible for the then most recent nomination(s). If Transporter provides the original notice telephonically, Transporter shall follow up in a reasonable time with written confirmation.

If Transporter requires a specific action to be taken and Shipper fails to take such action as requested in Transporter's notice, Transporter may assess and Shipper shall pay Transporter, an imbalance penalty calculated by multiplying the Shipper's Daily Imbalance times the East Daily Index Price or West Daily Index Price (as appropriate) times the Daily Index Penalty Percentage. The Daily Index Penalty Percentage is based upon a Shipper's Daily Imbalance percentage as indicated in the table below:

Daily Imbalance %	Daily Index Penalty %
0% to 5%	0%
>5% to 25%	25%
>25% to 50%	50%
>50% to 75%	100%
>75% to 100%	200%

In the event Transporter as a result of Shipper's over deliveries or under deliveries incurs costs and/or penalties, Shipper shall also be responsible for and shall reimburse Transporter for such costs and/or penalties in excess of the penalty levels described above.

If Shipper is advised or directed by any upstream or downstream pipeline or operator to reduce or suspend deliveries for transportation, Shipper shall immediately so notify Transporter by telephone (or in person) and shall confirm such reduction or suspension in writing with Transporter. Furthermore, if Transporter is advised by any upstream or downstream pipeline or operator of the reduction or suspension of deliveries for the account of Shipper, Transporter shall immediately so notify Shipper verbally and Shipper shall immediately confirm such reduction or suspension of deliveries in writing by way of a revised nomination to Transporter.

Shipper shall be responsible for and shall bear any penalties imposed or assessed by upstream or downstream pipelines or operators for imbalances in receipts and/or deliveries caused by Shipper action or inaction. Shipper shall indemnify and hold Transporter harmless and free from all such payments or charges for imbalances imposed or assessed against Transporter.

Shipper shall have ninety (90) Days to resolve any imbalance remaining at the termination of its Contract. If Shipper does not reduce the remaining imbalance to zero within ninety (90) Days of the termination of its Contract (unless due to the actions or inactions of Transporter), Transporter will:

- A. Charge Shipper and Shipper shall be obligated to pay for those quantities Shipper owes Transporter at a rate equal to 125% (one hundred and twenty five percent) of the final settlement price for the current prompt month NYMEX Henry Hub Natural Gas Contract which expired during the Month the ninetieth (90th) day occurred; or
- **B.** Be obligated to pay for those quantities Transporter owes Shipper at a rate equal to 75% (seventy five percent) of the final settlement price for the current prompt

month NYMEX Henry Hub Natural Gas contract which expired during the Month the ninetieth (90th) day occurred.

8.3 (a) System Operations Orders. Transporter shall have the right to issue System Operations Orders when, in its Reasonable Discretion, such orders are necessary to maintain or restore the operational integrity of Transporter's System, alleviate conditions that threaten safe operations, or which are required to maintain efficient and reliable service. The operational integrity of Transporter's System shall encompass the integrity of the physical system and the preservation of physical assets and their performance, the overall operating performance of the entire physical system as an entity (or any portion thereof), and the maintenance (on a reliable and operationally sound basis) of total system deliverability and the quality of Gas delivered. To accomplish these objectives, Transporter shall be entitled to take actions as described in this Section.

A System Operations Order shall require actions or measures that Transporter determines will neutralize or reduce threats to, or otherwise preserve, the integrity of all or a portion of Transporter's System and that may require immediate response as determined by Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion. System Operations Orders may require a Shipper or Shippers to take any of the following actions, or similar actions, to the extent such action(s) would tend to alleviate the situation to be addressed:

- (i) Correct Daily Imbalances on a deficient segment of Transporter's System. A Shipper may, at its option, achieve the required balance by ceasing or reducing deliveries from deficient segments of Transporter's System or, alternatively, commencing or increasing supply inputs into deficient segments of Transporter's System; provided, however, that Transporter itself always retains the right to curtail deliveries, if necessary for system operations;
- (ii) Correct imbalances on an oversupplied segment of Transporter's system.
 A Shipper may, at its option, achieve the required balance by ceasing or reducing supply inputs into oversupplied segments of Transporter's System or, alternatively, commencing or increasing deliveries from

oversupplied segments of Transporter's System; provided, however, that Transporter itself always retains the right to decline to receive supply, if necessary for system operations;

- (iii) Limit pool transfers or other aspects of pooling;
- (iv) Implement curtailments;
- (v) Such other actions as are within Shipper's control which would tend to alleviate or forestall the situation to be addressed.

(b) Penalties for Failure to Comply. A Shipper may be subject to a penalty for failure to comply with a System Operations Order calculated by multiplying the Shipper's Daily Imbalance times the East Daily Index Price or West Daily Index Price (as appropriate) times the Daily Index Penalty Percentage. The Daily Index Penalty Percentage is based upon a Shipper's Daily Imbalance percentage as indicated in the table in Section 8.2 above.

In the event that, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, actions undertaken pursuant to this Section are insufficient to remedy the situation or there is insufficient time to institute such actions, Transporter shall take such actions as are reasonably necessary to maintain System Operations, deliverability, reliable services and pressurization to all or any segment(s) of its system. Transporter is authorized to use all of the resources of its system to such ends, including line pack and all supply received into Transporter's System.

Transporter shall provide Shipper with notice of System Operations Order(s) at a time and in a manner that is reasonable under the existing or expected conditions. Transporter shall post notices of System Operations Order(s) on Transporter's Internet Web Site and shall make reasonable efforts to notify the employee(s) of Shipper responsible for the then most recent nomination(s). If Transporter provides the original notice telephonically, Transporter shall follow up in a reasonable time with written confirmation.

9. **OPERATING CONDITIONS**

- 9.1 Shipper shall make all necessary arrangements with other parties at or upstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt where Shipper tenders Gas to Transporter for transportation, and at or downstream of any Point(s) of Delivery at which Transporter redelivers Gas to or for the account of Shipper. Such arrangements shall otherwise meet the terms and conditions herein.
- 9.2 Shipper shall represent and warrant to Transporter in writing that all volumes of Gas delivered to Transporter may be transported under the Applicable Regulations. Furthermore, at Transporter's Reasonable Discretion and upon request, Shipper shall secure written "on-behalf-of" authorization, in a form satisfactory to Transporter, from an interstate pipeline or a local distribution company served by an interstate pipeline evidencing that the transportation to be performed hereunder is on such party's behalf under Section 311. Transporter shall not be obligated to perform service hereunder unless and until Shipper has provided such written representation, warranty, and authorization, if requested.
- 9.3 Transporter shall not be required to perform any service hereunder unless all facilities necessary to render the service exist and are in good operating condition.
- 9.4 Shipper shall deliver Gas or cause Gas to be delivered to Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt at pressure(s) sufficient to allow the Gas to enter Transporter's System as such pressure will vary from time to time. Transporter shall not be required to compress into its pipeline Gas transported hereunder, lower its system operating pressure, alter the direction of Gas flow, the Gas load, or other operations or utilization of its facilities or otherwise change its pipeline operations in order to receive, transport, or deliver Gas hereunder. Unless waived by Transporter, at each Point(s) of Receipt, Shipper shall provide, or cause to be provided, equipment acceptable to Transporter which will prevent over pressuring Transporter's System.
- 9.5 Transporter shall deliver Gas at each Point of Delivery to, or for the account of, Shipper at the prevailing pressures on Transporter's system at each Point of Delivery, which pressures will vary from time to time.

10. DETERMINATION OF RECEIPTS AND DELIVERIES

10.1 If one Shipper or more than one Shipper delivers volumes to Transporter at the same point during the same Month under more than one Contract, Transporter shall use such Shipper's or Shippers' working interest, volumetric nominations, and/or any other information available to Transporter to allocate volumes received during that Month at such point. Shipper(s), and not Transporter, shall be responsible for and shall bear any liability for claims made, penalties imposed, or judgments obtained by or against Transporter, Shipper, upstream transporters, operators and/or interest owners for imbalances among interests in wells or for imbalances between Shippers at or upstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Receipt.

If Transporter delivers volumes of Gas to one Shipper or more than one Shipper, or for such Shipper's or Shippers' accounts, at the same point during the same Month under more than one Contract, Transporter shall use such Shipper's or Shippers' volumetric nominations and/or any other information available to Transporter to allocate volumes delivered during that Month at such point. Shipper(s), and not Transporter, shall be responsible for and shall bear any liability for claims made, penalties imposed, or judgments obtained by or against Transporter, Shipper, downstream transporters, operators and/or interest owners for imbalances between Shippers at or downstream of Transporter's Point(s) of Delivery.

11. MISCELLANEOUS

- 11.1 To the extent Shipper builds facilities which connect with Transporter's System, such interconnecting facilities shall be constructed only with Transporter's approval and under the supervision of Transporter's personnel.
- 11.2 To the extent Transporter builds, acquires, or modifies any facilities in order to transport Shipper's Gas, any such facilities shall be and remain at all times the property of and under the operation of Transporter.
- 11.3 Transporter may waive any rights hereunder or any obligation of Shipper on a non-discriminatory basis, provided, however, that no waiver shall operate or be construed

as a waiver of other or future rights or obligations, whether of a like or different character.

- 11.4 The provisions of the General Terms and Conditions, as such provisions may be amended from time to time, are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof and as though stated herein, shall apply to service rendered hereunder.
- 11.5 Transporter reserves the right to add to, delete or modify any or all provisions of this Statement of Operating Conditions at any time. Any additions, deletions, modifications or other changes made by Transporter to this SOC, including the General Terms and Conditions, shall be filed with the FERC as required by and subject to the Applicable Regulations. Any such additions, deletions, modifications or other changes shall be effective no earlier than thirty (30) Days after filing the changes with the FERC.
- 11.6 Transporter is first and foremost an intrastate pipeline. Therefore, any Section 311 (a)
 (2) service which Transporter provides will be consistent with and shall not infringe upon its status as a non-jurisdictional intrastate pipeline and shall not subject Transporter to FERC's Natural Gas Act jurisdiction.
- 11.7 This Statement of Operating Conditions and the Transportation Service Request Form may be accessed electronically at Transporter's Internet Web Site.

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC **EXHIBIT A**

TO

Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services

Fuel Trackers

For The Enable System in Oklahoma

East Zone and West Zone

Effective August 1, 2010

Fixed Fuel Percentages

Enable charges fixed zonal fuel percentages for Gas shipped on the East Zone and West Zone of the Enable System (hereinafter referred to as "the System"). The fuel percentages for each Zone are adjusted annually and are in effect from April 1 through March 31 (the "Fuel Year"). Enable files the fuel percentages and supporting workpapers with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC" or "Commission") on or before February 28 of the year preceding the Fuel Year (or the next business day if February 28 is a weekend day or holiday) and implements the percentages on April 1 of the Fuel Year. The FERC notices the filing and establishes a deadline for comments or objections from shippers. Enable advises its shippers of the calculated percentages in sufficient time for such shippers to take the new fuel factors into account for their April nominations.

Annual Calculation of the Fuel Percentages

The fuel factors implemented as of April 1 of each Fuel Year reflect for each Zone, (1) the estimated fuel usage for the period April 1 to March 31 of the Fuel Year and (2) true-up adjustments for the prior two Fuel Years. Exhibit A-1, East Zone and Exhibit A-1, West Zone showing the methodology for calculation of the zonal fuel percentages are attached to this Exhibit A.

Enable calculates the fuel percentages for the Fuel Year based on actual experience in each Zone in the twelve Months, February to January, preceding the February 28 filing date. The annual calculations for each Fuel Year will also reflect expected changes for each Zone, if any, in fuel use and deliveries, including changes attributable to changes in compressor capacity for such year, i.e., additions, retirements, upgrades or reconfigurations. See Exhibits A-1, line 40. To the extent that the estimates of usage and/or deliveries attributable to changes for each Zone prove to have been inaccurate, the following year's zonal true ups will correct for the overestimation or underestimation.

Dollar Valuation of the Fuel Volumes

The value of fuel retained, actual fuel used and the resulting over recovery or under recovery for each Zone will be determined by multiplying the difference between the monthly retained volumes and the monthly actual fuel for each Zone by the corresponding monthly average of "PRICES OF SPOT GAS DELIVERED TO PIPELINES," as published for the first Day of each Month in Platt's Inside FERC Gas Market Report for (1) NGPL, Texok and (2) CenterPoint, East index for the East Zone and for (1) ANR, Okla. and (2) Panhandle, Tx.-Okla. index for the West Zone.

True-Up of the Fuel Percentages

Enable has a very large number of receipt points and, accordingly, must plan for and accommodate a very large number of prior period adjustments. While the great majority of such prior period adjustments are made in the first six months after the Gas flows, experience has shown that these receipt points can generate additional prior period adjustments for up to two Fuel Years. For that reason, Enable reflects two Fuel Years of true-up adjustments in the calculation of the fuel percentages. See Exhibits A-1, lines 42 and 43 and lines 47 and 48. For purposes of the fuel tracker, Enable will ignore prior period adjustments after two years.

The true-up calculations also incorporate the dollar valuation of the fuel volumes.

Fuel Year April 1, 2024 – March 31, 2025 Exhibit A-1 East Zone

	ſ	II	,,	ii	NGPL-Texok/
	I	1	ı – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – – –	Fuel Retained	CenterPoint East
		Deliveries	System Fuel	(Calculated)	\$/MMBTU
		[a]	[b]	[c]	[d]
	2022 ACTUAL	<u> </u>			
1	Apr-22	30,019,358	313,773	318,205	4.8150
2	May-22	31,531,571	318,174	334,235	6.7550
3	Jun-22	30,345,480	242,925	321,662	8.4850
4	Jul-22	34,408,412	179,765	364,729	6.0650
5	Aug-22	33,604,616	247,555	356,209	8.2150
6	Sep-22	29,481,818	252,718	312,507	8.5050
7	Oct-22	30,859,031	196,601	327,106	5.0950
8	Nov-22	29,765,446	291,641	315,514	4.5050
9	Dec-22	29,993,907	309,470	317,935	6.2950
10	Jan-23	32,362,132	267,885	343,039	5.0500
11	Feb-23	26,339,117	323,517	279,195	3.1600
12	Mar-23	30,643,850	381,571	324,825	2.0950
13	TOTAL	369,354,738	3,325,592	3,915,160	\$ 5.733
	2023 ACTUAL				
14	Apr-23	28,557,753	566,675	257,020	1.6900
15	May-23	31,395,303	587,801	282,558	1.8450
16	Jun-23	31,746,165	683,291	285,715	1.9150
17	Jul-23	34,315,998	736,934	308,844	2.3250
18	Aug-23	33,582,178	656,578	302,240	2.1450
19	Sep-23	32,044,526	652,129	288,401	2.2300
20	Oct-23	30,493,676	588,143	274,443	2.2650
21	Nov-23	29,527,574	507,512	265,748	2.5900
22	Dec-23	32,092,984	498,338	288,837	2.5850
23	Jan-24	32,206,629	468,146	289,860	2.5650
24	Feb-24	32,348,678	349,119	291,138	2.6950
25	Mar-24	34,562,186	395,451	311,060	1.5593
26	TOTAL	382,873,650	6,690,115	3,445,863	\$ 2.2008

			MMBTU		
	Γ	,	I	Fuel Retained	NYMEX LESS
		Deliveries	System Fuel	(Calculated)	BASIS \$/MMBTU
		[a]	[b]	[c]	[d]
	2022 ACTUAL	ا ۱ا	ı!	1	
27	Apr-24	33,853,929	485,946		1.5980
28	May-24	37,587,366	530,063		1.7428
29	Jun-24	38,587,213	452,457		1.9570
30	Jul-24	42,603,620	482,163		2.2195
31	Aug-24	41,518,097	488,705		2.2583
32	Sep-24	39,421,361	550,016		2.1358
33	Oct-24	33,747,467	486,308		2.1120
34	Nov-24	32,448,187	433,765		2.5705
35	Dec-24	35,084,382	377,629		3.2425
36	Jan-25	33,618,799	345,802		3.9473
37	Feb-25	30,235,767	344,462		3.8228
38	Mar-25	32,609,842	385,260		2.9005
39	TOTAL	431,316,030	5,362,574		\$ 2.5422

	2024 FUEL VOLUME (MMBTU)	
40	Estimated inc/(dec) to system fuel for 2023 –	Based on expected cha
41	2024 Estimated Fuel 5,362,574	L. 39 + L. 40, Col. b
42	2023 Volume True-Up-inc/(dec) 1,825,358	L. 65, Col. a
43	2022 Volume True-Up-inc/(dec) –	L. 61, Col. a
44	TOTAL 7,187,932	L. 41 + L. 42 + L. 43
	2024 FUEL %	
45	2023 Estimated Deliveries (mmbtu) + Anticipated Deliveries 431,316,030	L. 39, Col. a + Appendi
46	2024 % before true-ups 1.24%	L. 41/L. 45
47	True-Up for 2023 0.42%	L. 42/L. 45
48	True-Up for 2022 0.00%	L. 43/L. 45
49	2024 Fuel Recovery Rate 1.67%	L. 46 + L. 47 + L. 48

	2022 Retainage	Value		
50	Retained for Tracker Year 2021	1,869,924	PR10-52-0000, E	xhibit
51	Retained for Tracker Year 2022	20,830,010	L. 13, Col. f - L. 5	50
52	Total	22,699,933	L. 13, Col. f	
	2023 Retainage			
53	Retained for Tracker Year 2022	(2,397,254)	L. 13, Col. e - L. 5	51
54	Retained for Tracker Year 2023	9,979,253	L. 26, Col. f + L 3	9, Col
55	Total	7,581,999	L. 26, Col. f + L 3	9, Col
ANAL	YSIS OF TRUE-UP	MMBTU	Value	
		[a]	[b]	
	2022 True-up			
56	2022 Actual Fuel		18,432,756	L. 13
57	2022 Retained for 2022		20,830,010	L. 51
58	2023 Retained for 2022		(2,397,254)	L. 53
59	Total Retained for 2022		18,432,756	L. 57
60	Remaining value to recover for 2022		-	L. 56
61	Price adjusted volume to apply in 2024 to recover	-		L. 60
	remaining value			
	2023 True-up			
62	2023 - 2024 Actual Fuel		14,619,732	L. 26
63	2023 - 2024 Retained for 2023		9,979,253	L. 54
64	Remaining value to recover for 2023		4,640,479	L. 62
65	Price adjusted volume to apply in 2023 to recover remaining value	1,825,358		L. 64

ANALYSIS OF FUEL RETAINED

NOTES:

1-P. 1, Column d prices for Apr 2022 through Feb 2024 are the average of actual Inside FERC NGPL-Texok and Enable prices.

2-P. 2, Column d prices for Mar 2024 through Mar 2025 are NYMEX Henry Hub futures prices less a current basis quote as of Feb 22, 2024.

Appendix 1

	East Zone Projected Adjustments							
2024-	System Fuel MMBtu [b]							
1	Apr-24		-					
	May-24		-					
3	Jun-24		-					
	Jul-24		-					
5	Aug-24		-					
6	Sep-24		-					

	Oct-24		_
	Nov-24		-
	Dec-24		-
10	Jan-25		_
11	Feb-25		_
12	Mar-25		_
13	TOTAL	_	-

	West Zone Projected Adjustments							
2024-	2025 Adjustments	Deliveries MMBtu [a]	System Fuel MMBtu [b]					
1	Apr-24		-					
	May-24		-					
3	Jun-24		-					
	Jul-24		-					
5	Aug-24		-					
6	Sep-24		-					
	Oct-24		-					
	Nov-24		-					
	Dec-24		-					
10	Jan-25		-					
11	Feb-25		-					
12	Mar-25		_					
13	TOTAL		_					

Fuel Year April 1, 2024 – March 31, 2024

Exhibit A-1 West Zone

		ELLC West				
			MMBTU			
		Deliveries	System Fuel	Fuel Retained (Calculated)	NGPL-Texok/ CenterPoint West \$/MMBTU	System Fue
		[a]	[b]	[c]	[d]	[e]
	2022 ACTUAL		 			[b*d]
1	Apr-22	31,846,203	204,277	162,416	4.8200	984,
2	May-22	32,348,124	198,998	164,975	6.7400	1,341,
3	Jun-22	33,775,342	170,639	172,254	8.5100	1,452,
4	Jul-22	38,569,739	136,326	196,706	6.1150	833,
5	Aug-22	38,928,551	173,824	198,536	8.2450	1,433,
6	Sep-22	38,516,935	189,511	196,436	8.4200	1,595
7	Oct-22	38,445,229	163,478	196,071	5.2300	854,
8	Nov-22	36,530,345	207,620	186,305	4.6150	958
9	Dec-22	35,779,091	182,059	182,473	6.6950	1,218

10	Jan-23	37,430,710	185,033	190,897	6.3750	1,179,
11	Feb-23	32,943,501	192,071	168,012	4.6350	890,
12	Mar-23	35,005,014	103,348	178,526	2.2900	236,
13	TOTAL	430,118,784	2,107,183	2,193,606	\$ 6.0575	\$ 12,979,
	2023 ACTUAL					
14	Apr-23	33,175,141	266,672	195,733	1.8350	489,
15	May-23	36,481,519	287,326	215,241	1.8650	535,
16	Jun-23	38,664,430	255,909	228,120	1.8900	483,
17	Jul-23	41,287,427	373,503	243,596	2.2900	855,
18	Aug-23	40,747,032	347,796	240,407	2.1200	737,
19	Sep-23	37,334,847	359,052	220,276	2.1750	780,
20	Oct-23	35,449,810	365,579	209,154	2.1750	795,
21	Nov-23	45,881,543	349,607	270,701	2.6600	929,
22	Dec-23	34,697,152	264,138	204,713	2.7050	714,
23	Jan-24	30,623,418	263,893	180,678	2.7600	728,
24	Feb-24	36,685,234	210,262	216,443	3.2000	672,
25	Mar-24	39,353,414	168,464	232,185	1.5805	266,
26	TOTAL	450,380,967	3,512,202	2,657,248	\$ 2.2713	\$ 7,989,

	MMBTU				VALUE	
	-			Fuel Retained	NYMEX LESS	.7.202
		Deliveries	System Fuel	(Calculated)	BASIS \$/MMBTU	System Fu
		[a]	[b]	[c]	[d]	[e]
	2024 ESTIMATED					[b*d]
27	Apr-24	38,499,675	177,041		1.6280	
28	May-24	42,999,989	409,887		1.7365	
29	Jun-24	43,705,212	383,931		1.9370	
30	Jul-24	48,046,620	440,400		2.1183	
31	Aug-24	47,588,122	384,527		2.1720	
32	Sep-24	45,710,701	484,326		2.0395	
33	Oct-24	38,871,345	484,860		2.0545	
34	Nov-24	37,305,184	358,631		2.5630	
35	Dec-24	40,482,873	280,787		3.5113	
36	Jan-25	38,716,248	280,903		4.5210	
37	Feb-25	34,638,315	208,551		4.4028	
38	Mar-25	37,500,044	117,133		2.9880	
39	TOTAL	494,064,328	4,010,978		\$ 2.6393	\$

	2024 FUEL VOLUME (MMBTU)		
40	Estimated inc/(dec) to system fuel for 2023	-	Based on expected changes. (Re
			Col. b)
41	2024 Estimated Fuel	4,010,978	L. 39 + L. 40, Col. b
42	2023 Volume True-Up-inc/(dec)	64,811	L. 65, Col. a
43	2022 Volume True-Up-inc/(dec)	—	L. 61, Col. a
44	TOTAL	4,075,788	L. 41 + L. 42 + L. 43
	2024 FUEL %		
45	2023 Estimated Deliveries (mmbtu) + Anticipated Deliveries	494,064,328	L. 39, Col. a + Appendix 1, Line 13
46	2024 % before true-ups	0.81%	L. 41/L. 45
47	True-Up for 2023	0.01%	L. 42/L. 45
48	True-Up for 2022	0.00%	L. 43/L. 45

49	2024 Fuel Recovery Rate	0.82%	L. 46 + L. 47 + L. 48

ANALYSIS OF FUEL RETAINED

/ (11/ (
	2022 Retainage	Value		
50	Retained for Tracker Year 2021	(1,406,277)	PR10-52-0000, E	xhibit A-1 West Zone Col
51	Retained for Tracker Year 2022	14,772,143	L. 13, Col. f - L. 50)
52	Total	13,365,867	L. 13, Col. f	
	2023 Retainage			
53	Retained for Tracker Year 2022	(1,793,110)	L. 13, Col. e - L. 5	
54	Retained for Tracker Year 2023	7,818,432	L. 26, Col. f + L 39	9, Col. f - L. 53
55	Total	6,025,321	L. 26, Col. f + L 39	9, Col. F
		•		
ANA	LYSIS OF TRUE-UP	MMBTU	Value	
		[a]	[b]	
	2022 True-up			
56	2022 Actual Fuel		12,979,033	L. 13, Col.e
57	2022 Retained for 2022		14,772,143	L. 51
58	2023 Retained for 2022		(1,793,110)	L. 53
59	Total Retained for 2022		12,979,033	L. 57 + L. 58
60	Remaining value to recover for 2022		-	L. 56 - L. 59
61	Price adjusted volume to apply in 2024 to recover	-		L. 60/ L. 39, Col.d
	remaining value			
	2023 True-up			
62	2023 - 2024 Actual Fuel		7,989,488	
63	2023 - 2024 Retained for 2023		7,818,432	
64	Remaining value to recover for 2023		171,056	
65	Price adjusted volume to apply in 2023 to recover remaining value	64,811		L. 64/ L. 39, Col.d

NOTES:

1-P. 1, Column d prices for Apr 2021 through Feb 2023 are the average of actual Inside FERC ANR-Okla and Panhandle, Tx-Okla prices.

2-P. 2, Column d prices for Mar 2024 through Mar 2025 are NYMEX Henry Hub futures prices less a current basis quote as of Feb 22, 2024.

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

EXHIBIT B

TO

Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services

RATE SUMMARY FOR SECTION 311 FIRM AND INTERRUPTIBLE TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

In accordance with Section 284.123(b)(2) of the FERC's regulations, as revised by Order

No. 714, Transporter hereby provides the following rate summary:

Maximum Rates Per MMBtu

Firm Section 311	Firm Section 311	Interruptible Section	Interruptible Section
East Zone	West Zone	311 East Zone	311 West Zone
(Demand)	(Demand)	(Commodity)	(Commodity)
\$0.2155	\$0.1173	\$0.2320	\$0.1300

Minimum Rates Per MMBtu

Firm Section 311	Firm Section 311	Interruptible Section	Interruptible Section
East Zone	West Zone	311 East Zone	311 West Zone
(Demand)	(Demand)	(Commodity)	(Commodity)
\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00

Fuel Percentages for April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024

East Zone	West Zone
0.90%	0.59%

Fuel Percentages for April 1, 2024 through March 31, 2025

East Zone	West Zone
1.67%	0.82%

The tariff record reflecting the fuel percentages for the April 1, 2023 through March 31, 2024 Fuel Year was approved under the Commission's optional notice procedure in Docket No. PR23-36-000 effective April 1, 2023.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR STATEMENT OF OPERATING CONDITIONS

of

ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR STATEMENT OF OPERATING CONDITIONS OF ENABLE OKLAHOMA INTRASTATE TRANSMISSION, LLC

1.		
2.	QUALITY	3
3.	MEASUREMENT AND TESTS	5
4.	WARRANTY AND INDEMNIFICATION	9
5.	FORCE MAJEURE	9
6.	GOVERNMENTAL RULES, REGULATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS	11
7.	BILLINGS AND PAYMENT	11
8.	CREDITWORTHINESS	14
9.	CHOICE OF LAW	
10.	EEOC COMPLIANCE	16
11.	MISCELLANEOUS	17
12.	DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS	17

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. **DEFINITIONS**

In addition to the definitions of terms contained in Transporter's Statement of Operating Conditions Applicable to Transportation Services ("SOC"), which are incorporated by reference, and except in those certain instances where the context expressly states another meaning, the following terms, when used in these General Terms and Conditions or in the Statement of Operating Conditions, Contract or other agreement into which these General Terms and Conditions are incorporated, shall have the following meanings:

- A. "Btu" shall mean British Thermal Unit and, where appropriate, shall mean the plural thereof. One (1) Btu shall mean one British Thermal Unit and is defined as the quantity of heat required to raise the temperature of one (1) pound of pure water from fifty-eight & five-tenths (58.5) degrees Fahrenheit to fifty-nine and five-tenths (59.5) degrees Fahrenheit at a constant pressure of fourteen & seventy-three hundredths' pounds per square inch absolute (14.73 psia). The term "MMBtu" shall mean one million (1,000,000) Btu.
- B. "Cubic Foot or Standard Cubic Foot" shall have the meaning ascribed in Section4.1. The term "Mcf" shall mean one thousand (1,000) standard Cubic Feet of Gas.
- C. "Day" shall mean a period of twenty-four (24) consecutive hours beginning at 9:00 a.m. Central Clock Time.
- D. "Delivery", "deliver", or "delivered" shall refer to the physical transfer of possession of Gas from Transporter to Shipper or Shipper's carrier.
- E. "Equivalent Quantities" shall mean the sum of the volumes of Gas measured in MMBtu received by Transporter for the account of Shipper during any given period of time, reduced by Shipper's share of fuel and adjusted for any variations in Btu content. It is the intent of the parties that the volumes of Gas delivered for the account of Shipper be the thermal equivalent of the volumes of Gas received by Transporter for transportation, as so adjusted.

- F. "Gas" and "Natural Gas" shall mean natural gas as produced in its natural state, whether or not stored or processed prior to receipt or delivery, and that meets the respective quality standards for receipt and delivery contained in Section 2 (Quality).
- G. "Heating Value" shall mean, the number of Btu's produced by the complete combustion, at a constant pressure, of the amount of Gas which would occupy a volume of one (1) Cubic Foot at a temperature of sixty (60) degrees Fahrenheit if saturated with water vapor and at a constant pressure of fourteen and seventy-three hundredths pounds per square inch absolute (14.73 psia) and under standard gravitational force (acceleration 980.655 centimeters per second, per second), with air of the same temperature and pressure as the Gas, when the products of combustion are cooled to the initial temperature of the Gas and air and when the water formed by combustion is condensed to the liquid state; provided, however, if the Gas as received or delivered contains seven (7) pounds of water vapor or less per one million (1,000,000) standard Cubic Feet, such Gas shall be assumed to be dry.
- H. "Month" shall mean a period of time beginning at 9:00 a.m. Central Clock Time on the first (1st) Day of a calendar Month and extending to 9:00 a.m. Central Clock Time on the first (1st) Day of the following calendar Month.
- I. "Normal Operating Range of an Orifice Meter Station" shall mean the flow range from the minimum flowrate of a single meter tube to the maximum combined flowrate of all meter tubes installed in the meter station which does not require an orifice plate change.
- J. "p.s.i.g." shall mean pounds per square inch gauge. "p.s.i.a." shall mean pounds per square inch absolute.
- K. "Receipt", "Receive", or "Received" shall refer to the physical transfer of possession of Gas from Shipper or Shipper's carrier to Transporter.

- L. "Secondary Measurement Equipment" shall mean pressure and temperature sensing and recording equipment.
- M. "Thermal Content" shall mean the aggregate number of Btu contained in that volume, when applied to any volume of Gas.
- O. "Transporter's Internet Web Site" shall mean Transporter's electronically accessible site.

2. QUALITY

- 2.1 Gas tendered to Transporter for transportation must meet the quality specification in this Section 2.1 or such more stringent standards as may be required at any Point(s) of Delivery. Gas received by Transporter and delivered to Shipper under a Contract, including the Statement of Operating Conditions, shall meet the minimum quality specifications below:
 - A. The Gas shall in no event have in excess of seven (7) pounds of water vapor per million (1,000,000) standard Cubic Feet of Gas.
 - B. The Gas shall be free of objectionable liquids and solids and other impurities, including, but not limited to, methanol, and shall be commercially free from dust, gum, gum-forming constituents, free water and other liquids and solids.
 - C. The Gas shall not at any time have an oxygen content in excess of ten (10) parts per million by volume and the parties hereto shall make every reasonable effort to keep the Gas free of oxygen.
 - D. The Gas shall not contain more than one quarter (0.25) grain of hydrogen sulfide per one hundred (100) standard Cubic Feet (four (4) parts per million by volume).
 - E. The Gas shall not contain more than 5 grains of total sulfur (including the sulfur in any hydrogen sulfide and mercaptans) per one hundred (100) standard Cubic Feet.

- F. The Gas shall not contain mercaptans in excess of one-quarter (.25) grain per one hundred standard Cubic Feet.
- G. The Gas shall not have a carbon dioxide content in excess of two (2) percent by volume.
- H. The Gas shall not contain more than three (3) percent nitrogen by volume.
- I. The Gas shall have a total heating value per Cubic Foot of not less than nine hundred seventy-five (975) Btu or more than one thousand eighty (1,080) Btu.
- J. The Gas shall not have a hydrocarbon dew point of more than forty (40) degrees Fahrenheit (the hydrocarbon dew point shall be calculated at 600 psig).
- K. The Gas shall be received at a temperature not in excess of one hundred twenty (120) degrees Fahrenheit and not less than forty (40) degrees Fahrenheit.
- L. The Gas must be interchangeable with the Gas in Transporter's system at the Point(s) of Receipt.
- 2.2 If, at any time, Gas tendered for receipt shall fail to conform to any of the quality specifications set forth above, Transporter may, at its Reasonable Discretion, refuse to accept receipt of such Gas. Transporter shall notify Shipper of the deficiency as soon as possible after its occurrence. Such notice may be by any reasonable means, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, facsimile transmission and/or telephone, including voice messages. Transporter may elect to bill Shipper for all further costs for related Gas testing to confirm that any such deficiency has been corrected.
- 2.3 Transporter has the right to charge Shipper for all costs and expenses, including but not limited to, costs related to clean up and/or remediation, associated with the receipt of Gas that does not conform with the quality specifications for Gas to be received by Transporter as set forth in this Section.

2.4 Transporter's acceptance of non-conforming Gas without invoking its rights set forth in Sections 2.2 or 2.3 shall not constitute any continuing waiver of Transporter's rights to require compliance or application of Transporter's rights as set forth herein.

3. MEASUREMENT AND TESTS

The measurement of Gas at the Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery shall be in accordance with the following provisions:

- 3.1 For all of the purposes of the SOC, a standard Cubic Foot of Gas shall be that quantity which occupies one Cubic Foot of space at a temperature of sixty (60) degrees Fahrenheit and at a pressure of fourteen and seventy-three hundredths (14.73) pounds per square inch absolute. The volumes of Gas received and delivered hereunder shall be measured and computed in accordance with methods prescribed by the American Gas Association. Installation of new measurement facilities, whether by Transporter or Shipper, shall be in accordance with the latest and approved version of the applicable American Gas Association's standards.
- 3.2 The total heating value of the Gas in Btu per Cubic Foot and the specific gravity received and delivered hereunder shall be determined from a sample of Gas taken by means of a composite sampler, a spot sample, a Gas chromatograph, or any other method in general use in the Gas industry. The recorded average specific gravity to the nearest one thousandth (0.001), obtained while Gas is being received and/or delivered, shall be the applicable specific gravity of Gas for the period under consideration.
- 3.3 Transporter shall make reasonable efforts to collect spot samples from a flowing Gas stream during normal business hours. In the event that Transporter's attempts to coordinate spot sampling are unsuccessful, Transporter shall use the most recently available Gas sample information.
- 3.4 Transporter, in its Reasonable Discretion, may elect to discontinue Gas sampling at Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery that have been continuously inactive for sixty (60) consecutive Days.

- 3.5 If, at any time during the term hereof, a new method or technique is developed with respect to Gas measurement or determination of factors used in such Gas measurement, such new method or technique may, in Transporter's Reasonable Discretion, be substituted for the Gas measurement method or technique set forth herein.
- 3.6 Transporter may, at its Reasonable Discretion, install computers, transducers and other associated sensing devices to accomplish the accurate measurement of Gas received and/or delivered.
- 3.7 It is recognized that all facilities necessary to measure Gas at Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery have been or will be installed and in operation as of the date of first delivery of Gas to Transporter hereunder. Unless otherwise agreed, Transporter shall install, maintain and operate all facilities and equipment for the accurate measurement of the Gas received, transported and delivered hereunder. Shipper shall have access to the measuring equipment at all reasonable times, but readings, calibrations and adjustments thereof, and changing of charts, shall be done by Transporter unless otherwise agreed.
- 3.8 Upon written permission from Transporter, Shipper may, at its option, install, maintain and operate such new, additional or revised equipment, including check measuring and signal sharing equipment, as it may desire, at its own expense, and provided that such equipment is installed so as not to interfere with the custody measurement equipment of Transporter. Equipment installed by Shipper and not authorized in writing by Transporter may be removed by Transporter, at Shipper's expense. Each party shall have the right of access, at all reasonable times when Gas is being received or delivered, to the measuring equipment installed by the other party. The calibrating and adjusting of Transporter's measuring equipment and changing of meter charts on Transporter's meters shall be done only by Transporter and the calibrating and adjusting of Shipper's measuring equipment and changing of meter charts on its check meters shall be performed only by Shipper. Transporter, upon written request by Shipper, or Shipper, upon request by Transporter, shall mail or deliver to the other all meter charts and/or records used in measurement of Gas received and delivered hereunder during any specified period for which charts and/or records are required to be retained as hereinafter

provided, but such charts and/or records shall be mailed or returned to Transporter or Shipper, as the case may be, within thirty (30) Days after their receipt. Transporter's Check Measurement Agreement form shall be available upon request.

- 3.9 Each party shall have the right to be present at the time of any scheduled installation, testing, cleaning, changing, repairing, inspection, calibration or adjusting of measuring equipment of the other party used in measurement of Gas received and delivered hereunder.
- 3.10 All measuring equipment shall be installed in such a manner as to permit an accurate determination of the quantity of Gas received or delivered and ready verification of the accuracy of measurement. The parties shall exercise reasonable care in the installation, maintenance and operation of check measuring, pressure regulating equipment, Gas compressors or other related equipment so as to prevent inaccuracy in the determination of the quantity of Gas being measured. Shipper shall control flow rates such that measurement of the Gas quantity is within the Normal Operating Range of the Orifice Meter Station. Transporter shall size the orifice plate such that the flow-dependent average monthly flow rate falls within the Normal Operating Range of the Orifice Meter Station. In its Reasonable Discretion, Transporter may elect to not provide volumetric adjustments pursuant to Section 3.13 for flow exceeding the differential pressure instrument's range or for flows resulting in damage to orifice plates. When Transporter determines that pulsation problems or other measurement inaccuracies exist, in addition to any remedies otherwise available to it, Transporter shall have the right to require Shipper or other third parties to install and continuously operate and maintain pulsation dampening equipment and/or to regulate Gas flows in a manner which would prevent or eliminate such problems or inaccuracies within thirty (30) business Days of notification by Transporter. Following notice to the affected parties and pending the correction of the problem, measurement based on charts or meters at any such affected points for system operating purposes shall be made in a manner which reasonably adjusts or compensates for the inaccuracy identified.

- 3.11 The accuracy of the measuring equipment at each Point(s) of Receipt and each Point(s) of Delivery shall be verified at intervals not exceeding one (1) year and at such other times as may be requested by Shipper or Transporter, and if any such verification shall be requested by Shipper or Transporter and the measuring equipment is found to measure Gas quantities within two percent (2%) accuracy, the expense of such verification shall be borne by the party requesting verification.
- 3.12 Transporter may elect to discontinue regular verification of measurement equipment accuracy at Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery that have been continuously inactive for sixty (60) Days. Following the discontinuation of measurement equipment accuracy verification at a Point of Receipt or Point of Delivery, Shipper must provide three (3) business Days' notice prior to Transporter's subsequent receipt or delivery of Gas at such Point of Receipt or Point of Delivery.
- 3.13 If, upon test, the measuring equipment measures Gas quantities within two percent (2%) accuracy at any Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery, previous readings of such equipment after the last preceding test shall be considered correct, but the equipment shall be adjusted to record accurately. However, even if the inaccuracy is less than two percent (2%), if the volume discrepancy is quantifiable and exceeds 250 MMBtu, the volumes shall be adjusted appropriately. If, at the Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery, upon any test, the measuring equipment measures Gas quantities with an inaccuracy requiring adjustment, or if at any time the measuring equipment should be out of service or not registering, Gas received or delivered through the period during which the measuring equipment was registering inaccurately or was out of service or not registering shall be estimated and agreed upon by use of the first of the following methods which may be applicable:
 - A. By using the registration of any check measuring equipment installed by either party if registering accurately; or
 - B. By computing error if percentage of error is ascertainable by calibration, test or mathematical calculation; or

- C. By estimating the quantity received or delivered and/or its thermal content by reference to actual receipts or deliveries during preceding periods under similar conditions when the measuring equipment was registering accurately. If the period during which the measuring equipment at the Point(s) of Receipt or Point(s) of Delivery had been registering inaccurately or had been out of service or not registering is not definitely known or agreed upon, correction shall be made for the last half of the time elapsed since the measuring equipment was previously tested and found to accurately measure Gas within two percent (2%). All corrections made as above provided shall be made to zero error.
- 3.14 The charts and/or records from the measuring equipment shall remain the property of the party owning the measuring equipment and shall be kept on file for a period of not less than two (2) years.

4. WARRANTY AND INDEMNIFICATION

4.1 Each party hereby warrants to the other that at the time of receipt or delivery of Gas hereunder, it will have the right to receive or deliver, as the case may be, such Gas, and that such Gas shall be free and clear of all liens and adverse claims; and each party agrees, with respect to the Gas received or delivered by it, to indemnify the other party against all suits, actions, debts, accounts, damages, costs (including reasonable attorney fees), losses and expenses arising from or out of any adverse claim of any and all persons to or against said Gas while that party has responsibility for the Gas.

5. FORCE MAJEURE

5.1 In the event of either party being rendered unable, wholly or in part, by reason of force majeure to carry out its obligations under the Contract (other than the obligation to make payment of amounts due hereunder), it is agreed that such party shall give notice and reasonably full particulars of such force majeure by electronic mail, facsimile transmission or in writing to the other party within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the cause relied on, and the obligations of the party giving such notice, so far as they are affected by such force majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of any

inability so caused, but for no longer period, and such cause shall, so far as possible, be remedied with all reasonable dispatch.

- 5.2 The parties' obligations hereunder shall also be suspended during the continuance of any force majeure situation to the extent such force majeure conditions prevent delivery of Gas for Shipper's account.
- 5.3 The term, "force majeure", as employed herein shall mean acts of God; strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances; conditions arising from a change in governmental laws, orders, rules, or regulations; acts of public enemy; wars; blockades; insurrections; riots; epidemics; landslides; lightning; earthquakes; fires; storms; floods; washouts; arrests and restraints of governments and people; civil disturbances; explosions; breakage or accident to machinery or lines of pipe; the necessity for making repairs, tests, alterations, or performing maintenance to machinery or lines of pipe; freezing of wells or lines of pipe; partial or entire failure of wells or treating facilities; and any other causes, whether of the kind herein enumerated or otherwise, not within the control of the party claiming suspension, and which by the exercise of due diligence, such party is unable to prevent or overcome. Such term shall likewise include: (a) those instances where either Transporter or Shipper is required to obtain servitudes, rights-of-way, grants, permits or licenses to enable such party to fulfill its obligations under the Contract; the inability of such party to acquire or the delays on the part of such party in acquiring, at reasonable costs, and after the exercise of reasonable diligence, such servitudes, rights-of-way, grants, permits, or licenses, and (b) those instances where either Transporter or Shipper is required to furnish materials and supplies for the purpose of constructing or maintaining facilities or is required to secure permits or permissions from any governmental agency to enable such party to fulfill its obligations under the Contract, the inability of such party to acquire, or the delays on the part of such party in acquiring, at reasonable costs, and after the exercise of reasonable diligence, such material and supplies, permits and permissions.
- 5.4 It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes or lockouts shall be entirely within the discretion of the party having the difficulty, and that the above requirement that any force majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall not require the

settlement of strikes or lockouts by acceding to the demands of the opposing party when such course is inadvisable in the discretion of the party having the difficulty.

5.5 Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is specifically understood and agreed by the parties hereto that force majeure shall in no way terminate the parties' obligations to balance those volumes of Gas received and delivered hereunder.

6. GOVERNMENTAL RULES, REGULATIONS AND AUTHORIZATIONS

- 6.1 This Statement of Operating Conditions is subject to all valid orders, laws, rules and regulations of duly constituted governmental authorities having jurisdiction or control over the parties, their facilities or Gas supplies, this Statement of Operating Conditions or any provisions hereof. If at any time during the period of transportation of Gas hereunder, any such governmental authority shall take or threaten to take any action, directly or indirectly, whereby the receipt, transportation and delivery of Gas as contemplated hereunder shall be proscribed or possibly subjected to terms, conditions, restraints or regulations, including without limitation by enumeration, rate or price controls or ceilings that, in the sole judgment of the party affected, would be adverse or unduly burdensome to that party, such party may, upon written notice, cancel and terminate the Contract, including the Statement of Operating Conditions, without further liability hereunder except for payment for services provided hereunder prior to such cancellation and termination.
- 6.2 The parties agree to timely file and prosecute all applications, statements and notices with any governmental regulatory authority having appropriate and applicable jurisdiction.

7. BILLINGS AND PAYMENT

7.1 On or about the tenth (10th) Day of each Month after delivery of Gas has commenced hereunder, Transporter shall render to Shipper a statement for the preceding Month setting forth the total quantity of Gas, and the Btu content thereof, at the Point(s) of Receipt and Point(s) of Delivery which was received and delivered, respectively, the amount due Transporter by Shipper for the transportation or other applicable services

performed hereunder and such other information sufficient to explain and support any adjustments made by Transporter in determining the amount billed.

- 7.2 Shipper shall pay Transporter the amount due on the later of the twenty-fifth (25th) Day of the Month following the Month of production or (i) fifteen (15) Days after the date of the invoice described in Section 8.1; or (ii) fifteen (15) Days after the date of any other invoice Transporter renders. In the event Shipper fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter will assess, and Shipper shall pay an interest charge equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) per Month on the unpaid balance. Further, in the event Shipper fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter stall pay an interest charge equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) per Month on the unpaid balance. Further, in the event Shipper fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter may, in its Reasonable Discretion, suspend all transportation of Gas pursuant to Section 7.6.
- 7.3 Under Firm Contracts for which demand charges are applicable, Transporter will submit an invoice to Shipper for demand charges during the Month preceding the Month to which such demand charges apply. Payment of such invoices shall be due on the latter of (i) the 25th day of the Month in which such invoice is received or (ii) fifteen (15) Days after the receipt of the invoice (the "Demand Payment Date"). Shipper shall pay the full amount of the demand charges set forth on the invoice on or before the Demand Payment Date. In the event that Shipper does not make timely payment of demand charges on or before the Demand Payment Date as required by this Section 7.3, Transporter may exercise all of its rights available at law and pursuant to the Firm Contract. In the event Shipper fails to timely pay Transporter according to this Section, Transporter will assess, and Shipper shall pay an interest charge equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) per Month on the unpaid balance.
- 7.4 All parties hereto shall have the right at any and all reasonable times to examine the books and records of the other party to the extent necessary to verify the accuracy of any statement, charge, computation or demand made under or pursuant to a Contract, including the Statement of Operating Conditions. The parties agree to schedule such audits in advance and at mutually agreeable times. Within thirty (30) Days following any such audit, the auditing party shall notify the audited party of the results of such audit and

specifically, whether the accuracy of any statement, charge, computation or demand will be challenged. Such books and records shall be kept for not less than two (2) years following the month the charge was billed or the credit issued ("Exception Period"). All charges and credits shall be conclusively deemed to be correct and accurate unless written exception is taken to specific charges or credits within the Exception Period. All charges and credits beyond the Exception Period and not subject to written exception are considered final and not subject to review or adjustment with regard to any such statement, charge, computation or demand was made under or pursuant to a Contract, including the SOC. In the event the examination of either party's records requires disclosure of confidential third-party agreements, the auditing party shall use the services of an independent third-party auditor who shall be required to keep the terms of such third-party agreements confidential and shall disclose confidential information only to the extent necessary to render the audit. Any requested disclosure of confidential information to the auditing party must be submitted to the audited party for approval. The cost of any independent third-party auditor shall be borne by the auditing party.

- 7.5 Shipper agrees to reimburse Transporter for all taxes that may be levied upon and/or paid by Transporter based on additional tax requirements imposed or implemented on or after the date the rates set forth in Exhibit B to this Statement of Operating Conditions became effective, with respect to the transportation services rendered hereunder.
- 7.6 If Shipper in good faith disputes any amount billed hereunder, Shipper shall not be required to pay interest in accordance with Sections 7.2 and 7.3 on any such amount that is ultimately determined to be in error; provided, however, interest shall be due if such amount billed is found not to be in error. Shipper shall pay when due the full amount of the invoice, including the amount in dispute, and Transporter shall refund with interest any disputed amount that ultimately is determined to be in error. If Shipper fails to pay any amount due hereunder, Transporter may, in addition to exercising any other rights it may have under the Contract, under the SOC, at law, or in equity, suspend service, including deliveries of Gas, subject to Transporter may, without waiving any other rights or remedies it may have, withhold further delivery until such payment or security is

received or take whatever steps it deems necessary, in its sole judgment, to insure that non-payment of invoices by Shipper does not occur, including but not limited to, termination of Shipper's Contract. In the event Transporter pursues collection on late payment, Shipper shall be liable for any and all expenses and costs, including court costs and reasonable attorney fees, incurred as a result of such failure to timely pay.

7.7 Transporter may set off any amount owed by Transporter to Shipper under any Contract(s) against the amount owed by Transporter or any affiliate of Transporter under any Contract(s) and any other agreements.

8. CREDITWORTHINESS

- 8.1 To establish and maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, Shipper shall maintain an investment grade credit rating, and Shipper shall otherwise demonstrate to Transporter's satisfaction the ability to meet its financial obligations hereunder. An "investment grade credit rating" means a long-term senior unsecured non-credit enhanced debt rating of: at least BBB- from Standard & Poor's Rating Group (a division of McGraw-Hill Inc.) or its successor ("S&P") or "Baa3" from Moody's Investor Services, Inc. or its successor ("Moody's"), in either case with a short-term and long-term outlook or credit watch of stable or positive. If Shipper is rated by S&P and Moody's, the lower credit rating will apply.
- 8.2 Transporter shall not be required to commence service or to continue to provide service under a Contract with any Shipper that:
 - A. Is or has become insolvent;
 - B. Has voluntarily commenced a case or proceeding or the filing of any petition under any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law seeking dissolution, liquidation or reorganization or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator for itself or a substantial portion of its property, assets or business; or to effect a plan or other arrangement with its creditors; or has filed an answer admitting the jurisdiction of the court and the material allegations of any involuntary petition filed against it in any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar case or proceeding, has

been adjudicated as bankrupt, has made a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or has consented to, or acquiesced in the appointment of, a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator for itself or a substantial portion of its property, assets or business or has taken corporate action for the purpose of effectuating any of the foregoing; or

- C. Has been the subject of the commencement of involuntary proceedings or the filing of an involuntary petition against Shipper under any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law seeking the dissolution, liquidation, or reorganization of Shipper, or the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator for Shipper, or of a substantial part of the property, assets or business of Shipper, or the issuance or levy of any writ, judgment, warrant or attachment, execution or similar process against a substantial part of the property, assets, or business of Shipper; or
- D. Fails to establish and maintain creditworthiness with Transporter; or
- E. Fails to provide Adequate Assurances.
- 8.3 If Shipper fails to establish or maintain creditworthiness with Transporter, Shipper may be required by Transporter to provide adequate assurances. "Adequate Assurances" shall mean a cash prepayment, a guaranty or an irrevocable standby letter of credit, from a financial institution in a form acceptable to Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion, as may be requested by Transporter, in an amount equal to three (3) Months of service at the full Maximum Daily Quantity (or, for interruptible Shippers, an amount equal to three (3) Months of estimated service based on historical or projected usage, as determined by Transporter in its Reasonable Discretion), plus any other required monthly fees, plus an amount equal to the highest imbalance payment accrued in one (1) Month during the previous twelve (12) consecutive Months. Shipper must deliver to Transporter the Adequate Assurances within three (3) business Days of receipt of Transporter's written request, make payment in full within three (3) business Days of receipt of Transporter's written request for all amounts due from Shipper under any Contract(s) and any other agreements between Transporter and Shipper including netting arrangements, and maintain such Adequate Assurances until Shipper can establish creditworthiness with

Transporter. If Shipper fails to provide Adequate Assurances upon request, Transporter may, in addition to exercising any other rights it may have under the Contract, under the SOC, at law, or in equity, immediately suspend service, including deliveries of Gas.

8.4 In the event that Transporter agrees to construct new facilities or to expand or extend its existing facilities and Shipper has agreed pursuant to Section 7.9 of this SOC to pay a facilities charge to defray the cost of such facilities, and regardless of whether Shipper is deemed "creditworthy" within the meaning of GT&C Section 8.1, Transporter may require additional Adequate Assurances in a form, amount, for a term and from an issuer all as reasonably acceptable to Transporter and as agreed to by the parties in a request for service. Adequate Assurances for such new construction, expansion or extension may in addition to, and shall not be limited to, amounts equal to three months of service at Shipper's full Maximum Daily Quantity or estimated service charges as described in GT&C Section 8.3 above.

9. CHOICE OF LAW

9.1 The interpretation and performance under Shipper's Contract, and the Statement of Operating Conditions and these General Terms and Conditions shall be in accordance with the laws of the State of Oklahoma, excluding any conflict of law principle that might refer such interpretation and performance to the laws of another jurisdiction. With respect to any cause of action associated directly or indirectly with the terms and conditions of a Contract and the Statement of Operating Conditions, the parties agree and consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal or state courts sitting in the State of Oklahoma, and acknowledge proper venue to be in either state or federal court located in Oklahoma County, Oklahoma, and hereby waive any defenses or objections thereto; provided, however, that Transporter may agree to permit a court with jurisdiction to decide venue as to a specific matter or matters.

10. EEOC COMPLIANCE

10.1 To the extent applicable, each party hereby respectively warrants that it is in compliance with, and during the term hereof will remain in compliance with, all applicable laws,

executive orders and acts concerning equal opportunity employment and wage and hours regulations.

11. MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 As between the parties hereto, Shipper shall be deemed to be in exclusive control and in possession of the Gas prior to such Gas being received hereunder by Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt and responsible for any damages, losses or injuries caused thereby, except for injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Transporter. After Shipper delivers or causes Gas to be delivered to Transporter at the Point(s) of Receipt, Transporter shall be deemed to be in exclusive control and possession of such Gas, and responsible for any injuries or damages caused thereby, until it is redelivered to Shipper or for the account of Shipper at the Point(s) of Delivery, except injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Shipper following such redelivery. At the Point(s) of Delivery, Shipper shall thereafter be deemed to be in exclusive control and possession of such Gas and responsible for any injuries or damages caused thereby, except injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Shipper following such redelivery. At the Point(s) of Delivery, Shipper shall thereafter be deemed to be in exclusive control and possession of such Gas and responsible for any injuries or damages caused thereby, except injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Shipper following such redelivery. At the Point(s) of such Gas and responsible for any injuries or damages caused thereby, except injuries and damages which shall be occasioned solely and proximately by the negligent acts or omissions of Transporter.

12. DESCRIPTIVE HEADINGS

12.1 The descriptive headings of the provisions of Shipper's Contract and of this SOC, including these General Terms and Conditions are formulated and used for convenience only and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any such provision.

Document Content(s)
Transmittal_Letter_EOIT_Metadata.pdf1
EOIT_Marked_SOC.pdf3
EOIT_Clean_SOC.pdf52
FERC GENERATED TARIFF FILING.rtf108